
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
UTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETINGS 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, JUNE 28, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. May 31, 2022 

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items) 

A. Utility Easements and Bill of Sale by and between 1017 Lake Ave, LLC and the City 
of Lake Worth Beach 

B. Interlocal Agreement between Palm Beach County and City of Lake Worth Beach for 
utility adjustments for Congress Ave at Lantana Road project 

C. Change Order to Purchase Order 187340 with Cleaveland Price Inc. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. Ordinance No. 2022-11 – Second Reading – Water Conservation for Landscape 
Irrigation 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Agreement with USIC Holdings, Inc. d/b/a USIC Locating Services, LLC for 
Underground Facilities Line Locating Services 

B. Agreement with US Peroxide, LLC dba USP Technologies for Hydrogen Sulfide 
Control Services 

C. Electric Utility Integrated Resource Planning Process Presentation and Discussion 

D. Agreement with American Wire Group LLC., for the purchase and delivery of wire and 
cable 

E. First Amendment to Hooper Corp. Work Order No. 1 

F. Second Amendment to Hooper Corp. Work Order No. 1 

G. Agreement with Stuart C. Irby Company for the purchase and delivery of underground 
cable 



H. Temporary Relocation of Customer Service during renovations of the 1st floor of the 
Annex Building 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 
online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  (F.S. 286.0105) 



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

UTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, MAY 31, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:09 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:19) 

 

Present were Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy (via Zoom), 

Commissioners Sarah Malega and Reinaldo Diaz.  Also present were City Manager Carmen 

Davis, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and City Clerk Melissa Coyne.  Commissioner 

Kimberly Stokes was absent. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (0:42) led by Commissioner Sarah Malega. 

 

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering: (1:02) 

There were no changes to the agenda. 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (1:17) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

following minutes:  

 

A. April 26, 2022 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Stokes. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: (1:29) (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-

Agendaed items) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

Consent Agenda: 

 

A. Agreement with Precision Contracting Services, Inc. for fiber optic engineering, design, 

material and installation 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Stokes. 

 



Pg. 2, Utility Meeting, May 31, 2022 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (1:40) 

 

A. Agreement with Utility Service Partners Private Label, Inc. d/b/a Service Line Warranties 

of America for royalty marketing of water and sewer service line warranty programs (1:41) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

Agreement with Utility Service Partners Private Label, Inc. d/b/a Service Line Warranties of 

America for royalty marketing of water and sewer service line warranty programs. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Stokes. 

 

B. Ordinance No. 2022-11 – First Reading – Water Conservation for Landscape Irrigation 

(3:43) 

 

City Attorney Goddeau read the ordinance by title only. 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

BEACH, FLORIDA, ADOPTING CHAPTER 18 “UTILITIES,” ARTICLE II “WATER 

UTILITY,” SECTION 18-21 “WATER CONSERVATION AND IRRIGATION,” 

PROVIDING FOR LOCAL IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MANDATORY YEAR-

ROUND LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION CONSERVATION MEASURES RULE OF THE 

SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT (40E-24, F.A.C.); 

PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS, APPLICABILITY OF THE ORDINANCE, A 

LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION SCHEDULE, EXCEPTIONS TO THE SCHEDULE, 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS, VARIANCES, ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES; 

RENUMBERING OF ARTICLE III “EMERGENCY WATER USE  AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 

CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Ordinance No. 2022-11 on first reading and set the second reading and public hearing for June 

28, 2022. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Stokes. 

 

C. Change Order 01 to Globaltech, Inc. for the WTP Flash Mixer Improvements Project (5:47) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve 

Change Order 01 to Globaltech, Inc. for the WTP Flash Mixer Improvements Project. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Stokes. 

 

D. Florida Municipal Power Agency (FMPA) Solar Projects Update (6:08) 

 



Pg. 3, Utility Meeting May 31, 2022 

 

 

E. Solar Energy Loan Fund (SELF) Options for Lake Worth Beach (48:05) 

 

Action: Consensus to start with Option A, adding the program information to the website and mailing 

information in the utility bills; waiting to commit to Option B or C should there be funds 

available in the supplemental budget. 

 

F. First Amendment to Rep Serve Professional Services Agreement for consulting services 

(1:21:07) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve the 

First Amendment to Rep Serve Professional Services Agreement for consulting services. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Stokes. 

 

G. Task Order No. 8 with Radise International, L.C., to complete geotechnical services for the 

Intercoastal Waterway distribution crossing (1:32:17) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Commissioner Malega to approve Task 

Order No. 8 with Radise International, L.C., to complete geotechnical services for the 

Intercoastal Waterway distribution crossing. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Stokes.  

 

H. Second Amendment to Agreement with KVA, Inc., for the Canal 138kV Switchyard 

Prefabricated Control House (1:36:02) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz approve the 

Second Amendment to Agreement with KVA, Inc., for the Canal 138kV Switchyard 

Prefabricated Control House. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Stokes.  

 

I. Purchase Order with Stuart C. Irby Company for GE current limiting reactors (1:40:45) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz approve 

Purchase Order with Stuart C. Irby Company for GE current limiting reactors. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Stokes.  

 

ADJOURNMENT: (1:43:51) 

 

Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Malega and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to adjourn the 

meeting at 7:53 PM. 



Pg. 4, Utility Meeting, May 31, 2022 

 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Malega 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Stokes. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: June 28, 2022 

 

 

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting available on YouTube. 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
 

AGENDA DATE:   June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Water Utility 

 

TITLE: 

Utility Easements and Bill of Sale by and between 1017 Lake Ave, LLC and the City of Lake Worth 
Beach 

 
SUMMARY: 

1017 Lake Ave, LLC will dedicate Utility Easements and Bill of Sale to the City of Lake Worth 
Beach in accordance with the conditions of approval of The Bohemian Building Permit. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

1017 Lake Ave, LLC is nearing the final completion of The Bohemian, a residential development 
project located on East Coast St, south of Lake Ave. The City of Lake Worth Beach currently has 
public storm water utilities that traverse the property, and is requiring a twenty-foot-wide Utility 
Easement be dedicated to provide unrestricted access to the City of Lake Worth for all associated 
utility maintenance, repair and new installations. Other Utility Easement segments include a five-
foot-wide electric easement that fronts the property along East Coast St. This easement will 
provide the City the same unrestricted access. This item provides for both legal ownership and 
access. The attached Bill of Sale gives ownership of the public water and sewer utilities located 
in East Coast Street to the City of Lake Worth Beach. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Utility Easements and Bill of Sale between 1017 Lake Ave, LLC 
and the City of Lake Worth Beach 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Utility Easement Dedication 
Bill of Sale 













Ji
m

 S
ul

liv
an 

C
:\p

w
w

or
ki

ng
\w

gi
\ji

m
.s

ul
liv

an
\d

18
62

03
3\

55
82

00
-S

V-
U

E.
dw

g
 8

x1
1 

Pl
ot

te
d:

 4/
20

/2
02

2 
11

:4
2:

19
 A

M S
av

ed
: 4

/2
0/

20
22

 1
1:

35
:3

5 
AM

&+(&.('�4&

'5$:1�'(6,*1('

&$'

'$7(

-2%�12� ��RI��

/06

-6

�������

6+((7�

352-(&7� 7$6.�
7+(�%2+(0,$1

6859(<25
6�127(6�/(*(1'�

35(3$5('�%<�

�����9LVWD�3DUNZD\��:HVW�3DOP�%HDFK��)/������
3KRQH�1R�����������������ZZZ�ZJLQF�FRP

&HUW�1R���������/%�1R������

70

����������

87,/,7<�($6(0(17
���������87,/,7<�($6(0(17�':*

3
UR
IHVVLRQDO 6XUYH\RU

DQ
G

0
DS

S
H
U

/LF
HQVH 1XPEHU

67$7(�2)
)/25,'$

- ,0
68// ,9$1

����

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: UTILITY EASEMENT A PORTION OF BLOCK 500, AND A PORTION OF LOT 17, BLOCK 57, BOTH ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF THE PALM BEACH FARMS COMPANY PLAT NO 2 LUCERNE TOWNSITE, (NOW KNOWN AS THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH), AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 2 AT PAGES 29-40, AND A PORTION OF REPLAT OF A PORTION OF BLOCK 500, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 32 AT PAGE 14, ALL BEING RECORDED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LANDS AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 34 AT PAGE 14, IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH NORTH 01°22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 164.89 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH NORTH 88°37'12" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01 22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE NORTH 01°22'48" EAST, A DISTANCEOF 32.43 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 37'12" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 119.96 FEET; THENCE THENCE NORTH 88 37'12" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 119.96 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°37'12" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 119.96 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°50'08" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 20.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88 37'12" EAST, A SOUTH 88°37'12" EAST, ADISTANCE OF 93.27 FEET; THENCE NORTH 76 55'32" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 27.76 FEET;  THENCE NORTH 76 55'32" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 27.76 FEET;  76°55'32" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 27.76 FEET;THENCE NORTH 01 22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 47.40 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 37'12" NORTH 01°22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 47.40 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 37'12" NORTH 88°37'12"WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01 22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 10.00 THENCE NORTH 01 22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 10.00 NORTH 01°22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 10.00FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88 37'12" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH ; THENCE SOUTH 88 37'12" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH SOUTH 88°37'12" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH NORTH 01°22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 6.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 37'12" WEST, A DISTANCE NORTH 88°37'12" WEST, A DISTANCEOF 5.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01 22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH ; THENCE NORTH 01 22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH NORTH 01°22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH SOUTH 88°37'12" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01 22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE NORTH 01°22'48" EAST, A DISTANCEOF 264.17 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 37'12" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE HENCE NORTH 88 37'12" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°37'12" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 5.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°22'48" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88 37'12" EAST, A SOUTH 88°37'12" EAST, ADISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 01 22'48" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 406.93 FEET TO THENCE SOUTH 01 22'48" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 406.93 FEET TO SOUTH 01°22'48" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 406.93 FEET TOTHE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID LANDS CONTAIN 4,679 SQUARE FEET OR 0.107 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOT A SURVEY-DESCRIPTION AND SKETCH ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
= Palm Beach County Records

AutoCAD SHX Text
PBCR

AutoCAD SHX Text
= Plat Book

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB

AutoCAD SHX Text
= Page

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
= Planned Unit Development

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUD

AutoCAD SHX Text
For The Firm: WGI, Inc. BY: ___________________________  DATE: ____________     JIM SULLIVAN, PSM  Professional Surveyor and Mapper   State of Florida License No. 6889      

AutoCAD SHX Text
= Official Record Book

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. DATA SHOWN HEREON WAS COMPILED FROM OTHER INSTRUMENTS AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A FIELD SURVEY AS SUCH.  2. THE BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON THE BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON GRID NORTH, AND ARE REFERENCED TO THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, EAST ZONE, NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983, ADJUSTMENT OF 1990, (NAD 83/90).  THE BASIS OF BEARING FOR THIS SURVEY IS THE CENTERLINE OF EAST COAST STREET, HAVING A BEARING OF NORTH 01 22' 48" EAST.



32,17�2)�&200(1&(0(17
�87,/,7<�($6(0(17

1257+($67�&251(5
�3%�����3*����

15'

15'

32,17�2)�%(*,11,1*
87,/,7<�($6(0(17

1ST AVE. SOUTH

EA
ST

 C
O

AS
T 

ST
R

EE
T

N
01

°2
2'

48
"E

(B
AS

IS
 O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
)

Ji
m

 S
ul

liv
an 

C
:\p

w
w

or
ki

ng
\w

gi
\ji

m
.s

ul
liv

an
\d

18
62

03
3\

55
82

00
-S

V-
U

E.
dw

g
 8

x1
1 

Pl
ot

te
d:

 4/
20

/2
02

2 
11

:4
1:

40
 A

M S
av

ed
: 4

/2
0/

20
22

 1
1:

35
:3

5 
AM

&+(&.('�4&

'5$:1�'(6,*1('

&$'

'$7(

-2%�12� ��RI��
-6

�������

6+((7�

352-(&7� 7$6.�

35(3$5('�%<�

�����9LVWD�3DUNZD\��:HVW�3DOP�%HDFK��)/������
3KRQH�1R�����������������ZZZ�ZJLQF�FRP

&HUW�1R���������/%�1R������

70

/06

����������

7+(�%2+(0,$1 87,/,7<�($6(0(17
��������87,/,7<�($6(0(17�':*

� �� �� ��

6&$/(����� ��


AutoCAD SHX Text
100' (OPERATING R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA EAST COAST RAILWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PCN 38-43-44-21-15-500-0010 JELL, LLC ORB 31731, PG. 1522

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17 BLOCK 57 LAKE WORTH  (FORMERLY TOWNSITE OF LUCERNE) PB 2, PG. 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 500 PARCEL "2" (P.B. 2, PG. 29,)

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOT A SURVEY-DESCRIPTION AND SKETCH ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 3



15'

EA
ST

 C
O

AS
T 

ST
R

EE
T

N
01

°2
2'

48
"E

(B
AS

IS
 O

F 
BE

AR
IN

G
)

15'

LAKE AVENUE

Ji
m

 S
ul

liv
an 

C
:\p

w
w

or
ki

ng
\w

gi
\ji

m
.s

ul
liv

an
\d

18
62

03
3\

55
82

00
-S

V-
U

E.
dw

g
 8

x1
1 

Pl
ot

te
d:

 4/
20

/2
02

2 
11

:4
0:

26
 A

M S
av

ed
: 4

/2
0/

20
22

 1
1:

35
:3

5 
AM

&+(&.('�4&

'5$:1�'(6,*1('

&$'

'$7(

-2%�12� ��RI��
-6

�������

6+((7�

352-(&7� 7$6.�

35(3$5('�%<�

�����9LVWD�3DUNZD\��:HVW�3DOP�%HDFK��)/������
3KRQH�1R�����������������ZZZ�ZJLQF�FRP

&HUW�1R���������/%�1R������

70

/06

����������

7+(�%2+(0,$1 87,/,7<�($6(0(17
��������87,/,7<�($6(0(17�':*

� �� �� ��

6&$/(����� ��


AutoCAD SHX Text
PCN 38-43-44-21-15-500-0010 JELL, LLC ORB 31731, PG. 1522

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17 BLOCK 57 LAKE WORTH  (FORMERLY TOWNSITE OF LUCERNE) PB 2, PG. 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 500 PARCEL "1" (P.B. 2, PG. 29,)

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
 

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOT A SURVEY-DESCRIPTION AND SKETCH ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 2



 

 

Return to: 
City of Lake Worth Beach  
Attn: City Clerk’s Office  
7 N. Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 
 
 
 

BILL OF SALE 

BY 1017 LAKE AVE, LLC TO THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that 1017 LAKE AVE, LLC, a Florida 
limited liability company (hereinafter “Seller”) for the sum of TEN and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) 
and other good and valuable considerations paid by THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, a 
Florida municipal corporation (hereinafter “Buyer”), the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged by Seller, has granted, bargained, sold, transferred, assigned, set over and 
delivered, and by these presents does grant, bargain, sell, transfer, assign, set over and deliver, 
unto Buyer, its successors and assigns, the following: 

The newly installed water and sewer mains, liners and appurtenances located in East Coast Street 
as well as the utility easements 

See attached as-builts (Record of Assets Exhibit) for specifics.   

   

   

  and 

related assets as located in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

Seller represents for itself, its successors and assigns that all expenses in connection with 
construction and installation of the water and sewer system have been paid in full and the same is 
free from liens and debts. Seller agrees to indemnify and hold Buyer harmless from any lawful 
claims of any party for labor and/or materials arising out of construction and installation of the 
system. 

Seller further represents for itself, its successors and assigns that it has exclusive 
ownership, possession, control and marketable title to the Water and Sewer System and the 
System is subject to no mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, security interest, encumbrance or 
restriction. 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
  











EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE:   June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Water Utility 

 

TITLE: 

Interlocal Agreement between Palm Beach County and City of Lake Worth Beach for utility 
adjustments for Congress Ave at Lantana Road project 

 
SUMMARY: 

Interlocal Agreement authorizes joint participation and project funding between Palm Beach 
County and City of Lake Worth Beach for the construction of utility adjustments for Congress Ave 
at Lantana Road Project for a total cost of $35,535.50 in FY2023. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Palm Beach County has designed a roadway alignment improvement at Lantana Road west of 
Congress Ave.  The new alignment widens the edge of pavement further south and thus a 
drainage is relocated to match the gutter edge.  This structure relocation will be in conflict with 
existing sewer force main that is owned by the City but located in the County right of way.  This 
main must be deflected horizontally to allow for the construction of the road improvements and 
associated drainage collection system.  The City staff prepared a relocation plan along with a bid 
item list and County included this information with their advertisement for construction bid.    

The County received bids for the project with R&D Paving, LLC. as the lowest responsive, 
responsible bidder.  R&D Paving bid the City work at total of $27,335.00.  The project has a 30% 
contingency value of $8,200.50 that will be available for unforeseen conditions or minor utility 
changes.  The total, not to exceed value of the interlocal agreement is $35,535.50.  City must 
reimburse the County within 30 days of the submission of an invoice for completed utility work, 
which is anticipated no sooner than the start of FY 2023. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Interlocal Agreement between Palm Beach County and City of Lake 
Worth Beach for utility adjustments for the Congress Ave at Lantana Road project for a total cost 
of $35,535.50 in FY2023. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Interlocal Agreement 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 35,535.50 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 35,535.50 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY23 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

405-7421-
535.34-88 

Regional 
Sewer 

Pumping Contractual 
Services/PBC 
R&R 

NA TBD TBD NA $35,535.50 TBD 

          

 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 
AND 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
FOR JOINT PARTICIPATION AND PROJECT FUNDING 
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF UTILITY ADJUSTMENTS FOR 

CONGRESS AVENUE AT LANTANA ROAD 
PALM BEACH COUNTY PROJECT NO. 2019108 

THIS Interlocal Agreement, (AGREEMENT), for intersection improvements to Congress 
Avenue at Lantana Road, (PROJECT), is made as of the __ day of ______ _, 
2022, by and between Palm Beach County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, by and 
through its Board of County Commissioners (COUNlY) and the City of Lake Worth Beach, an 
interlocal government entity existing under the laws of Florida, (hereinafter "CITY'1, each one 
constituting a public agency defined in Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (individually Party 
and collectively Parties). 

WHEREAS, Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, authorizes local governments to make the 
most efficient use of their powers by enabling them to cooperate with other localities on a basis 
of mutual advantage, thereby providing services and facilities that will harmonize geographic, 
economic, population, and other factors influencing the needs and development of local 
communities; and 

WHEREAS, Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, permits public agencies as defined 
therein to enter into Interlocal Agreements with each other to jointly exercise any power, 
privilege, or authority which such agencies share in common and which each might exercise 
separately; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY has requested the COUNlY to construct force main and 
associated appurtenance adjustments to the CITY'S system (UTILilY WORK) within the limits of 
the PROJECT; and 

WHEREAS, the COUNlY and the CllY desire to jointly participate in the UTILITY 
WORK; and 

WHEREAS, both COUNlY and CITY declare that it is in the public interest that the 
UTILilY WORK be constructed with the PROJECT; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and 
representations contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals. 

The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein. 

1 



City of Lake Worth Beach Construction Agreement 

Section 2. COUNTY Responsibilities: 

A. COUNTY shall provide construction and administrative services to the PROJECT as more 
specifically described in the Bid Documents for Palm Beach County Project No. 2019108 (Exhibit 
"A'1- Said Bid Documents include the UTILITY WORK as shown in CITY prepared Utility Matrix, 
Applicable Technical Specifications, Standard Construction Details, and Approved Product List. 

B. COUNTY shall obtain written approval from the CITY'S designated representative, Giles 
Rhoads, P.E., (CITY REPRESENTATIVE) in advance of COUNTY approving any change order, 
which change order would result in any cost attributable to the UTILITY WORK exceeding the 
total cost amount in section 3.A. below. CITY'S Approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

C. COUNTY shall secure all necessary easements and permits required for PROJECT. 

D. COUNTY shall publicly bid, administer, construct and inspect the PROJECT and UTILITY 
WORK in accordance with the Bid Documents and Exhibit "A". 

E. COUNTY shall require the contractor to provide a Public Construction Bond in an amount 
equal to the contractor's bid for the PROJECT and the UTILITY WORK. 

Section 3. CITY'S_ResQonsibilities: 

A. CITY shall reimburse COUNTY a total estimated cost including 30% contingency of 
Thirty-Five Thousand Five Hundred Thirty-Five Dollars and Fifty Cents ($35,535.50), 
provided COUNTY performs pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement for all 
UTILITY WORK in accordance with the Bid Tabulation (Exhibit "A'') and cost summary (Exhibit 
"B''). CITY hereby authorizes and delegates the authority to approve any change orders, 
invoices, and associated documents related to this AGREEMENT, to the CITY REPRESENTATIVE. 
Any cost exceeding this amount attributable to CITY'S Utility Items shall be paid by the CITY. 

8. Costs shall be based upon actual contract costs using contract unit prices and actual 
constructed quantities, said quantities being measured by the COUNTY with concurrence by the 
CITY. 

C. Upon completion of the PROJECT and the UTILITY WORK, the CITY shall repair and 
maintain the UTILITY WORK, at CITY'S expense. 

Section 4. Payments/Invoicing and Reimbursement: 

The COUNTY will invoice the CITY on a periodic basis during construction of the PROJECT and 
the UTILITY WORK. The CITY agrees to provide to COUNTY payment for documented costs for 
the UTILITY WORK in the amount established in Section 3.A. COUNTY shall submit all invoices 
to the CITY identifying the UTILITY WORK, including COUNTY'S total expenditure for the 
PROJECT, and identifying the amount attributable to the UTILITY WORK under Exhibit "A". 
COUNTY shall supply any further documentation such as copies of paid receipts, canceled 
checks, invoices and other documents deemed necessary by the CITY within seven (7) calendar 
days of request by the CITY. Invoices received from COUNTY will be reviewed and approved by 
the CITY REPRESENTATIVE to ensure that expenditures have been made in conformity with this 

2 



City of Lake Worth Beach Construction Agreement 

AGREEMENT. Upon COUNlY'S submission of acceptable documents needed to substantiate its 
costs for the UTILITY WORK, CITY will provide said payment to COUNlY on a reimbursement 
basis within thirty (30) days of receipt of all required documents. In no event shall the CITY 
provide advance payment to the COUNlY. 

The PROJECT and the UTILITY WORK will be administered by the COUNlY. Only those costs 
incurred by the COUNlY relating to the UTILITY WORK are eligible for reimbursement by the 
CITY pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof. In the event the COUNlY ceases or 
suspends the PROJECT or the UTILITY WORK for any reason, the CITY will reimburse the 
COUNTY for the UTILilY WORK completed as of the date the COUNlY suspends the UTILITY 
WORK. Any remaining unpaid portion of this AGREEMENT shall be retained by the CllY and the 
CllY shall have no further obligation to honor reimbursement requests submitted by the 
COUNlY. 

Section 5. Access_and Audits: 

COUNlY and CllY shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, expenses and costs 
incurred in performing the PROJECT and the UTILilY WORK for at least five (5) years after 
completion or termination of this AGREEMENT. Each Party shall have access to such books, 
records, and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during 
normal business hours, at the other Parties place of business. In the event any work is 
subcontracted by COUNlY, COUNlY shall similarly require each contractor and subcontractor to 
maintain and allow access to such records for audit purposes. 

Section 6. Independent Contractor: 

COUNTY and the CllY are and shall be, in the performance of all work, services and activities 
under this AGREEMENT Independent Contractors and not employees, agents or servants of the 
other Party. All COUNTY employees engaged in the work or services performed pursuant to 
this AGREEMENT shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to COUNTY'S sole direction, 
supervision, and control. All CllY employees engaged in the work or services performed 
pursuant to this AGREEMENT shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to CllY'S sole 
direction, supervision, and control. The Parties shall exercise control over the means and 
manner in which it and its employees perform the work, and in all respects the Parties 
relationship and the relationship of its employees to the other Party shall be that of an 
Independent Contractor and not as employees or agents of the other. 

Neither COUNTY nor the CllY have the power or authority to bind the other in any promise, 
agreement or representation. 

Section 7. Personnel: 

COUNTY represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel 
required to perform the services under this AGREEMENT. Such personnel shall not be 
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the CllY. 
All of the services required hereinunder shall be performed by COUNTY or its contractor, and 
personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if required, authorized 
or permitted under state and local law to perform such services. 

3 



City of Lake Worth Beach Construction Agreement 

All of COUN1Y'S personnel, contractors and all subcontractors while on COUN1Y premises will 
conduct themselves in an acceptable manner and follow acceptable safety and security 
procedures. 

Section 8. Indemnification: 

The CITY and COUNTY recognize their liability for certain tortious acts of its agents, officers, 
employees and invitees to the extent and limits provided in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. To 
the extent permitted by law, the CITY and COUNTY shall indemnify, defend and hold the other 
harmless against any actions, claims and damages arising out of their own negligence in 
connection with the PROJECT and the UTILITY WORK and the use of the funds provided under 
this AGREEMENT. The foregoing indemnification shall not constitute a waiver of sovereign 
immunity beyond the limits set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, nor shall the same be 
construed to constitute an agreement by the CITY or COUN1Y to indemnify each other for sole 
negligence, or willful or intentional acts of the other. The foregoing indemnification shall survive 
termination of this AGREEMENT. 

No provision of this AGREEMENT is intended to, or shall be construed to, create any third party 
beneficiary or to provide any rights to any person or entity not a party to this AGREEMENT, 
including but not limited to any citizen or employees of the COUNTY and/or CITY. 

Section 9. Annual Appropriation: 

All provisions of this AGREEMENT calling for the expenditure of ad valorem tax money by either 
the COUNTY or the CI1Y are subject to annual budgetary funding and should either Party 
involuntarily fail to fund any of their respective obligations pursuant to the AGREEMENT, this 
AGREEMENT may be terminated. However, once the PROJECT and the UTILITY WORK have 
been awarded to the contractor, it shall be prosecuted to completion and this AGREEMENT shall 
be binding upon the Parties and neither Party shall have the right to terminate the subject 
AGREEMENT for the reason that sufficient funds are not available. 

Section 10. Breach and Opportunity to Cure: 

The Parties expressly covenant and agree that in the event either Party is in default of its 
obligations under this AGREEMENT, each Party shall have thirty (30) days written notice before 
exercising any of its rights. 

Section 11. _Enforcement Costs: 

Any costs or expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) associated with the enforcement of 
the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT shall be borne by the respective Parties. 

Section 12. Notice: 

Except as otherwise provided herein, All notices required to be given under this AGREEMENT 
shall be in writing, and deemed sufficient to each Party when sent by United States Mail, 
postage prepaid or hand delivery, to the following: 

4 



City of Lake Worth Beach Construction Agreement 

All notice to the CITY shall be sent to: 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Brian Shields, P.E. Water Utilities Director 
301 College Street 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

All notice to the COUNTY shall be sent to: 

Morton L. Rose, P.E., Director 
Palm Beach County Engineering & Public Works 
Roadway Production Division 
P .0. Box 21229 
West Palm Beach, FL 33416-1229 

Section 13. Modification and Amendment: 

Except as provided in section 2 and 3, and as expressly permitted herein to the contrary, no 
modification, amendment or alteration in the terms or conditions contained herein shall be 
effective unless contained in a written document executed with the same formality and equality 
of dignity herewith. 

Section 14. Re_medies: 

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any legal action 
necessary to enforce this AGREEMENT will be held in a court of competent jurisdiction located 
in Palm Beach County, Florida. No remedy herein conferred upon any Party is intended to be 
exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall 
be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in 
equity by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any Party of any right, power or 
remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof. 

Section 15. No Waiver: 

Any waiver by either Party of its rights with respect to a default under this AGREEMENT, or with 
respect to any other matters arising in connection with this AGREEMENT, shall not be deemed a 
waiver with respect to any subsequent default or other matter. The failure of either Party to 
enforce strict performance by the other Party of any of the provisions of this AGREEMENT or to 
exercise any rights under this AGREEMENT shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment 
to any extent of such Party's right to assert or rely upon any such provisions or rights in that or 
any other instance. 

Section 16. Joint Preparation: 

The preparation of this AGREEMENT has been a joint effort of the Parties, and the resulting 
document shall not, solely as a matter of judicial constraint, be construed more severely against 
one of the Parties than the other. 

5 



City of Lake Worth Beach Construction Agreement 

Section 17. Non-Discrimination: 

COUNlY and CITY agree that both Parties shall not conduct business with nor appropriate any 
funds for any organization or entity that practices discrimination on the basis of race, color, 
national origin, religion, ancestry, sex, age, familial status, marital status, sexual orientation, 
gender identity or expression, disability, or genetic information. COUNlY will ensure that all 
contracts let for the PROJECT and the UTILITY WORK pursuant to the terms of this 
AGREEMENT will contain a similar non-discrimination clause. 

Section 18. Execution: 

This AGREEMENT may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 
an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 19. Filing: 

A copy of this AGREEMENT shall be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Palm 
Beach County, Florida. 

Section 20. Iermina_tion: 

This AGREEMENT may be terminated by either Party upon sixty (60) days written notice to the 
other Party, provided the written notice is delivered to the other party prior to the date the 
PROJECT commenced, and such termination shall be effective upon expiration of the notice 
period even in the event the termination date is subsequent to the commencement of the 
PROJECT. Except as provided in the prior sentence, once the PROJECT has commenced, it shall 
be prosecuted to completion and this AGREEMENT shall be binding upon the Parties and neither 
Party shall have the right to terminate the subject AGREEMENT. 

Section 21. Compliance~ with Codes and Laws: 

COUNTY and CITY shall abide by all applicable federal, state and local laws, orders, rules and 
regulations when performing under this AGREEMENT. COUNlY and CITY further agree to 
include this provision in all subcontracts issued as a result of this AGREEMENT. 

Section 22. Office of the Inspector General: 

Palm Beach County has established the Office of the Inspector General in Palm Beach County 
Code, Section 2-421 - 2-440, as may be amended. The Inspector General's authority includes 
but is not limited to the power to review past, present and proposed County contracts, 
transactions, accounts and records, to require the production of records, and to audit, 
investigate, monitor, and inspect the activities of the contractor, its officers, agents, employees, 
and lobbyists in order to ensure compliance with contract requirements and detect corruption 
and fraud. Failure to cooperate with the Inspector General or interfering with or impeding any 
investigation shall be in violation of Palm Beach County Code, Section 2-421 - 2-440, and 
punished pursuant to Section 125.69, Florida Statutes, in the same manner as a second degree 
misdemeanor. 

6 



City of Lake Worth Beach Construction Agreement 

Section 23. Public Entity Crime Certificl!tion: 

As provided in F.S. 287.132-133, by entering into this AGREEMENT or performing any work in 
furtherance hereof, COUNTY shall have its contractors certify that it, its affiliates, suppliers, 
subcontractors and consultants who will perform hereunder, have not been placed on the 
convicted vendor list maintained by the State of Florida Department of Management Services 
within the 36 months immediately preceding the date hereof. This notice is required by F.S. 
287.133 (3) (a). 

Section 24. Severabili,ty: 

If any term or prov1s1on of this AGREEMENT, or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 
AGREEMENT, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other 
than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other 
term and provision of this AGREEMENT shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent 
permitted by law. 

Section 25. Entirety of Agreement: 

COUNTY and CITY agree that this AGREEMENT sets forth the entire AGREEMENT between the 
Parties, and there are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. 

Section 26. Survival: 

The obligations, rights, and remedies of the Parties hereunder, which by their nature survive 
the termination of this AGREEMENT or the completion of the PROJECT and UTILITY WORK, 
shall survive such termination or PROJECT or UTILITY WORK completion and inure to the 
benefit of the Parties. 

Section 27. Term: 

The term of this AGREEMENT shall be effective on the date of execution of this AGREEMENT by 
both Parties. 

7 



City of Lake Worth Beach Construction Agreement 

WITNESS WHEREOF, the Board of County Commissioners of Palm Beach County, Florida has 
made and executed this AGREEMENT on behalf of the COUNlY and the CITY has hereunto set 
its hand the day and year above written. 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

BY: __________ _ 
Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

BY: ------------
Melissa Coyne, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

BY: -----------
Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney 

APPROVED FOR 
FINANCIAL SUFFICIENCY 

BY: ----------
Bruce T. Miller 
Financial Services Director 

(SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUED) 

8 



City of Lake Worth Beach Construction Agreement 

(SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUED) 

PPROVED AS TO TERMS 
NDC0NDmONS 

y: er"': -- ..,.v "';'£ \ -.f'2',<"4e 

.~ Morton Rose, P.E.,'61rector 
~ Roadway Production Division 

".LM BEACH COUN'TY, A POLITICAL SUBDMSI0N OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, BY AND THROUGH 
"S BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

'(: __________ _ 
David Ricks, P.E., 
County Engineer 

flPROVED AS TO FORM 
\ID LEGAL SUFFIOENCY 

'(: /s/Yelizaveta B. Herman 

Assistant County Attorney 

\ROADWAY\lJTILITY COORDINATION\2019108_1.antana & Congress\City of Lake Worth Construction 
1reementdoc 

9 



:~::,> ~~ :;c:, ;:_'r :~, .,. , · . . _i~ ... B~ TAB~AT~O~s·--· · - ,> -·1~r~-... ,, . · _ .. -:<•· . . 
;:>,f>'\ 

0
:LANTANAIR()M) AT,CONGRESSAVENUE]NTERSEf:TIONf, '• ·,. 

r~:'i~.:r {,:\:~;:f:::\=,::f ·:t c.·/;·· r;",.j (,\,, .; 
Item# Item Descrptlon Qty. Units 

ROADWAY ITEMS 

i" _; :_ ' ' :.;/ .. :~f' t. 
A fBld' ·· .. . ., ' .. '-' ·, ·•·· . .,., ---~iZi~ ,, '.'i~BW~·~~~ :► ·.:-: ~ll~~~~JC;~~c.ton, ~ -c. 

Unit Price \ Unit Price Unit Price Amount 

EXHIBIT "A" 

i ·.,· 

, ">· /. ~r)d~ ~~~ ~~c. 

: 

Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount 

1 Mobili7.ation I LS $ 47,407.12 $ 31,450.58 $ 42,427.0S $ 42,427.05 $ 55,000.00 $ 55,000.00 $ 44,794.32 $ 44,794.32 
i----t----------------------------,f----

2 Maintenance ofTraffic (Includes Pedestrian MOT) I LS $ 17,563.63 $ 47,175.87 $ 29,900.00 $ 29,900.00 $ 16,010.00 $ 16,010.00 $ 6,780.90 $ 6,780.90 

3 Clearing and Grubbing I LS $ 34,542.17 $ 15,725.29 $ 30,000.00 $ 30,000.00 $ 50,374.80 $ 50,374.80 $ 23,251.71 $ 23,251.71 
--------------------+-

4 Regular Excavation 378 CY $ 31.62 $ 11.28 $ 40.00 $ 15,120.00 $ 33.95 $ 12,833.10 $ 20.92 $ 7,907.76 

5 Embankment (Compacted in Place) 102 CY $ 39.81 $ 18.79 $ 22.00 $ 2,244.00 $ 70.60 $ 7,201.20 $ 26.83 $ 2,736.66 

6 Optional Base Group 13 1,140 SY $ 37.46 $ 29.58 $ 36.25 $ 41,325.00 $ 33.70 $ 38,418.00 $ 42.42 $ 48,358.80 
t---+----------------------------f------+---+-------l--------f------+-------1 

7 Mill Existing Asphalt Pavement 5,001 SY $ 3.65 $ 3.97 $ 3.95 $ 19,753.95 $ 3.05 $ 15,253.05 $ 3.96 $ 19,803.96 

I 

-----+----- --+------- i-------+-------
8 Superpave Asphaltic Concrete (Traffic Level C) 99 1N $ 230.66 $ 160.60 $ 146.00 $ 14,454.00 $ 192.45 $ 19,052.55 $ 353.52 $ 34,998.48 

9 StructuralOverbuild 271 1N $ 151.25 $ 144.95 $ 146.00 $ 39,566.00 $ 122.15 $ 33,102.65 S 185.61 $ 50,300.31 

10 Asphalt Concrete Friction Course (1.0") (FC-9.5) 

11 Inlet (Curb)(Type J-6) 

12 Storm Sewer Pumping (Exist.) (24" or Less) (See SP's) 

13 Storm Sewer Pumping (Exist.) (>24" to 48") (See SP's) 

14 Concrete Cwb & Gutter (Type F) 

15 Traffic Separator Cone. (Special) (Variable Width) 

16 Concrete Sidewalk (4" Thick) 

17 Concrete Sidewalk (6" Thick) (Driveways) 

18 Sodding 

SUBTOTAL (ROADWAY) 
·- ;t' 

I 

462 1N $ 191.04 $ 180.32 $ 160.00 $ 73,920.00 $ 179.15 $ 82,767.30 $ 233.97 $ 108,094.14 
- -----+-------+------+-------+------------ +------+--------! 

I EA $ 14,235.77 $ 5,337.00 $ 8,300.00 $ 8,300.00 $ 16,500.00 $ 16,500.00 $ 17,907.30 $ 17,907.30 

95 LF $ 11.65 $ 15.34 $ 12.00 $ 1,140.00 $ I 1.00 $ 1,045.00 $ 11.94 $ 1,134.30 

300 LF S 13.51 $ 15.34 $ 13.00 $ 3,900.00 $ 13.20 $ 3,960.00 $ 14.33 S 4,299.00 

663 LF $ 39.69 $ 27.75 $ 32.00 $ 21,216.00 $ 40.90 $ 27,116.70 $ 46.16 $ 30,604.08 

568 SY $ 72.80 $ 83.65 $ 58.00 $ 32,944.00 $ 76.85 $ 43,650.80 $ 83.54 $ 47,450.72 

448 SY $ 62.97 $ 72.90 $ 38.00 $ 17,024.00 $ 75.70 $ 33,913.60 $ 75.20 $ 33,689.60 

54 SY $ 77.78 $ 87.71 $ 75.00 $ 4,050.00 S 83.15 $ 4,490.10 $ 75.20 $ 4,060.80 

168 SY $ 6.75 $ 5.17 $ 7.00 $ 1,176.00 $ 9.80 $ 1,646.40 $ 3.44 $ 577.92 

$ 398,460.00 $ 462,335.25 $ 486,750.76 

19 ClassIConcrete(Miscellaneous) \ 10 CY $ 173.02 $ 331.86 $ 175.00 $ 1,750.00 $ 165.00 $ 1,650.00 $ 179.07 $ 1,790.70 

20 Flowable Fill ' 10 CY $ 597.45 $ 276.69 $ 160.00 $ 1,600.00 $ 200.00 $ 2,000.00 $ 1,432.36 $ 14,323.60 
t---+----------------------------+----+ 

21 Changeable (Variable Message) Sign (Non MOT) 50 ED $ 23.78 $ 41.79 $ 25.00 $ 1,250.00 $ 16.50 $ 825.00 $ 29.85 $ 1,492.50 
i-----i---- -------------------------+-----+- 1------+------1---- --f--------+-----t--------+-- - ---f--------1 

22 Traffic Control Officer (Non MOT) 50 HR $ 69.87 $ 66.34 $ 67.00 $ 3,350.00 $ 65.00 $ 3,250.00 S 77.60 $ 3,880.00 

Page 1 of2 



23 Storm Sewer Cleaning (Exist.) (24" or Less) (See SP's) 

24 Stonn Sewer Cleaning (Exist.) (>24" to 48") (See SP's) 

25 Relocate Existing light 

SUBTOTAL(CONTINGENCY) 

tfritti'V rr~Ms -cin ·oF LAKE woa/gt.EAC.lf 
26 Deflect Force Main with Fittings <12" 

27 Adjust Manholes - Utility 

SUBTOTAL (UTll..ITY ITEMS) 

Qty. Units 

95 LF $ 

300 LF $ 

EA $ 

I 

I EA $ 

EA $ 

Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price 

19.29 $ 

23.78 $ 

7,155.57 $ 

24,350.56 S 

899.92 $ 

'i 

Page2 of2 

33 .63 $ 12.00 $ 

21.55 $ 14.00 $ 

2,500.00 $ 7,500.00 $ 

$ 

20,000.00 s 18,000.00 1 s 
300.00 $ 750.00 $ 

s 

Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount 

1,140.00 $ 22.00 $ 2,090.00 $ 23.88 $ 2,268.60 

4,200.00 $ 27.50 $ 8,250.00 $ 29.85 $ 8,955.00 

7,500.00 $ 7,150.00 $ 7,150.00 $ 6,816.71 $ 6,816.71 

20,790.00 $ 25,215.00 $ 39,527.11 

18,000.00 $ 26,400.00 $ 26,400.00 28651.68 Is 28,651.68 

750.00 $ 935.00 $ 935.00 1014.75 Is 1,014.75 

18,750.00 $ 27,335.00 $ 29,666.43 



EXHIBIT "B" 
City of Lake Worth Beach 

PROJECT NAME: Lantana Rd. at Congress Ave. 

PROJECT NUMBER: 2019108 

CONTRACTOR: R & D Paving, LLC 

ITEM QUANTITY /UNITS UNIT PRICE AMOUNT 

City of Lake Worth Beach Utility Items 

26 Deflect Force Main with Fittings> 12" 1 EA $26,400.00 $26,400.00 

27 Adjust Manholes - Utility 1 EA $935.00 $935.00 

City of Lake Worth Beach Utility Total $27,335.00 

City of Lake Worth Beach Grand Total Plus 30% Contingency $35,535.50 

F:\ROADWAY\UTILITY COORDINATION\2019108_Lantana & Congress\City ofLWB Exhibit B.doc 

1 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:   June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Electric Utility 

 

TITLE: 

Change Order to Purchase Order 187340 with Cleaveland Price Inc. 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Change Order authorizes a freight charge of $1,264 to be added to Purchase Order 187340, 
with Cleaveland Price Inc, for the purchase of four (4) Copper Vertical Break Switches.  The 
switches have been identified for use in the Electric Utility’s Main Yard Substation.  The original 
Purchase Order was created as a result of the quotations received via the informal competitive 
process for small purchases, per the City’s Procurement Policy, as the total cost was less then 
$50,000.  The additional freight charge of $1,264 now moves the total amount due beyond the 
$50,000 threshold. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Purchase Order 187340 was created with Cleaveland Price Inc as a result of the quotations 
received via the informal competitive process for small purchases, per the City’s Procurement 
Policy, as the total cost was less than $50,000.  The said Purchase Order was for a total of four 
(4) Copper Vertical Break Switches for use in the Electric Utility’s Main Yard Substation. The 
freight charges were not included in the original quotes received. This is due to the volatility in fuel 
costs impacting shipping costs and are not known until the vendor secures the shipping company 
and the unit is shipped. The additional charge for freight in the amount of $1,264 was added to 
the vendors invoice after shipment occurred, and was higher than estimated, causing the total 
amount due to ultimately exceed the $50,000 threshold. 

The Electric Utility is requesting the approval of the Change Order to Purchase Order 187340 with 
Cleaveland Price Inc. for freight charges associated with the purchase of four (4) copper vertical 
break switches in the amount of $1,264. 

 

MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Change Order to Purchase Order 187340 with Cleaveland Price Inc 
for additional freight charges in the amount of $1,263.25. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Cleaveland Price Quotation 
Cleaveland Price Invoice 



 

 

FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures $1,264 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact $1,264 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: Funds have been identified 
in account 421-6034-531-63.15, Project SH2112 for the Main Yard Bus, Insulators and Switch 
Replacement Project.   

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

421-
6034-
531-
63.15 

Electric T&D Improve 
Other than 
Build / 
Infrastructure 

SH2112 890,300 538,504  $1,264 537,240 

 



 

 

 
Quote.21J2414 Anson Sage 

Q21J2414r001.doc                                                                             1 of 3                                                                       v1  

 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH  Revised: 10/7/2021 

1900 2nd Ave. North  Quotation No. 21J2414 Rev. #1 

Lake Worth Florida 33461  Date: September 24, 2021 

  Delivery*: 14 - 16 weeks ARO 

Attention: Robert Farkas  Prices Firm: Through delivery 

Email: RFarkas@Teamworknet.com  Quote Valid To: November 07, 2021 

  F.O.B. Point: Destination 

c: Engineer Sales  Freight Terms: Freight prepay and add to invoice 

  Payment Terms: Net 30 Days 

  Quoted By: Anson Sage 

   

   

         

Item 

No. 

Quan. Description Style Number Unit 

Price (USD) 

Extended 

Price (USD) 
 

 
    

1 4 Outdoor airbreak switch, type V2-C, vertical 

break, three pole, group operated, rated 34.5 kV, 

2000 Amp. , 100 kA  momentary, 200 kV BIL. 

 

All copper switch featuring: 

  •  Horizontal upright mounted pole units 

  •  TR-210 gray station post insulators(fully 

assembled) 

  •  TP-C2 motor operator 

     (See Item 1001 For description) 

  •  Arcing horns 

  •  Silver-plated hinge and jaw contacts 

  •  Tin-plated terminal pads 

  •  Vertical pipe extension for additional 

      21 foot mounting height 

  •  Galvanized steel mounting hardware 

C06A034G16 12,345 49,380 

      



 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

Quotation No. 21J2414 

 

 

 

 

 
Quote.21J2414 Anson Sage 

Q21J2414r001.doc                                                                             2 of 3  

Item 

No. 

Quan. Description Style Number Unit 

Price (USD) 

Extended 

Price (USD) 

1001 Ref. for Item(s) 1 

TP-C2 Motor operator, 125 DC control voltage, 

20,000 inch pounds output torque, for 1.5" IPS 

pipe, with torque relief decoupler. Operating time 

for vertical pipe to rotate 180 °= 5.4 

 

Featuring: 

    •  Stainless steel type 304 enclosure with 

       smooth brushed finish 

    •  12 Spare auxiliary switch contacts rated 

        15A @ 125VAC or .5A @ 125VDC, with 

        terminal block 

    • Provisions to accept customer supplied SEL 

I/O  

      2505-2505364XX 

    •  120 VAC, 250 Watt heater with thermostat 

    •  Interior light activated by door switch 

    •  Standard Printed Circuit Board featuring: 

        - Open/Close switch with toggle guard 

        - Remote/Local Switch with 1 contacts 

          for remote status indication 

        - Stop button 

 

C15A001G002 Included in 

items above 

 

      

    Total: 49,380.00 

 

  

              Revisions to Quote 

 Rev Date 

  1 10/7/2021 Rev to change switch to 34.5/2000 amp 200 kV BIL and make 

cabinet Stainless steel with provision to accept customer 

supplied SEL 2505 

 

 

Technical Notes 

 sales tax by others 

 
 

 

Commercial Notes 

 *Delivery is dependent on factory capacity at time of order placement. 



 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH 

Quotation No. 21J2414 

 

 

 

 

 
Quote.21J2414 Anson Sage 

Q21J2414r001.doc                                                                             3 of 3  

 

 

 

 

 



 1

 068366
 03/22/22

 CITY OF LAKE WORTH  
 7 N DIXIE HWY  
 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE  
 Electric_Invoice@lakeworthbeachfl.gov  $ 

 054387
 187340
 21J2414
 Destination
 Prepaid and add
 R&L CARRIERS 477411111 
 Net 30 Days

 LAKE WORTH, FL  33460

 1  4  C06A034G16 V2-C 34.5/2000  03/22/22  12345.0000  49380.00
 ITEM 01
 PO Item 1

 FREIGHT CHARGE  1263.25

 0.00
 CITY OF LAKE WORTH   50643.25
 117 COLLEGE ST.
 MAIN YARD SUBSTATION
 LAKE WORTH, FL  33460

 INVOICE



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
 

AGENDA DATE:   June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Water Utilities 

 

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 2022-11 – Second Reading – Water Conservation for Landscape Irrigation 

 
SUMMARY: 

Ordinance No. 2022-11 provides for local implementation of the mandatory year-round landscape 
irrigation conservation measures rule of South Florida Water Management District. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) has reached out to local municipalities to 
update and amend their water conservation for landscape irrigation ordinances and codes to align 
with the goals and conservation measures of SFWMD. Ordinance 2022-11 provides adopting 
Chapter 18 “Utilities”, Article II “Water Utility”, Section 18-21 “Water conservation and irrigation” 
which includes 3-day per week watering on specified days, compliance and enforcement 
provisions. The ordinance passed unanimously on first reading at the May 31, 2022 Utility City 
Commission meeting. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-11 on second reading to provide for local 
implementation of the mandatory year-round landscape irrigation conservation measures rule of 
South Florida Water Management District. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Ordinance 2022-11 
 



2022-11 1 

 2 
 3 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 4 
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, ADOPTING CHAPTER 18 5 
“UTILITIES,” ARTICLE II “WATER UTILITY,” SECTION 18-21 6 
“WATER CONSERVATION AND IRRIGATION,” PROVIDING FOR 7 
LOCAL IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MANDATORY YEAR-ROUND 8 

LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION CONSERVATION MEASURES RULE OF 9 
THE SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICT (40E-24, 10 
F.A.C.); PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS, APPLICABILITY OF THE 11 
ORDINANCE, A LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION SCHEDULE, 12 
EXCEPTIONS TO THE SCHEDULE, OTHER REQUIREMENTS, 13 

VARIANCES, ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES; RENUMBERING 14 
OF ARTICLE III “EMERGENCY WATER USE  AND FOR OTHER 15 

PURPOSES; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 16 
CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 17 

 18 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 19 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 20 
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 21 

 22 
 WHEREAS, the South Florida Water Management District (“District”) has the 23 
responsibility and exclusive authority under Chapter 373, Florida Statutes, for regulating 24 

the consumptive use of water; and 25 
 26 

 WHEREAS, the District has promulgated Chapter 40E-2, Florida Administrative 27 

Code (F.A.C), for the consumptive use of water which includes Rule 40E-2.061, F.A.C., 28 

General Consumptive Use Permits by Rule, regulating landscape irrigation at a single 29 
family dwelling or duplex, and Rule 40E-2.071, F.A.C., Noticed General and Individual 30 
Permits, regulating larger landscape irrigation users; and 31 

 32 
 WHEREAS, the District promulgated and amended Chapter 40E-24, F.A.C., 33 

requiring year-round irrigation conservation measures; and 34 
 35 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 40E-24, F.A.C., applies to all users as defined in subsection 36 

40E-24.101(14), F.A.C., including permitted and exempt users under Chapter 40E-2, 37 
F.A.C.; and 38 
 39 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 40E-24, F.A.C., calls for year-round and permanent 40 

landscape irrigation restrictions, separate and independent from water shortage 41 
declarations, in accordance with Chapter 40E-21, F.A.C.; and 42 
 43 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 40E-24, F.A.C., applies to all landscape irrigation regardless 44 
of whether the water comes from ground or surface water, from a private well or pump, 45 

or from a public or private utility; and 46 
 47 
 WHEREAS, Rule 40E-24.301, F.A.C., provides that local governments may adopt 48 
a landscape irrigation ordinance that achieves water conservation consistent with Rule 49 
40E-24.201, F.A.C., including variance and enforcement procedures; and 50 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-11 

 

 WHEREAS, to address utility operational, health, safety and landscape concerns, 51 

the City, which lies within Palm Beach County, a designated county under the Rule, 52 
wishes to allow landscape irrigation three days per week; and 53 
 54 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission desires to adopt the encouraged ordinance, 55 

including variance and enforcement procedures; and 56 
 57 
 WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 58 
ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 59 
City, its residents and visitors. 60 

 61 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 62 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA: 63 

 64 
 Section 1.  The whereas clauses are incorporated herein as true and correct and 65 
as the legislative findings of the City Commission. 66 

 67 
 Section 2.  Chapter 18 “Utilities,” Article II “Water Utility,” Section 18-21 “Water 68 
conservation and irrigation” is hereby adopted to read as follows: 69 

 70 
Sec.  18-21. – Water conservation and irrigation. 71 
 72 

(a) Intent and purpose; applicability.  73 
(1) Intent and purpose. It is the intent and purpose of this section to 74 

implement procedures that promote water conservation through the 75 

efficient use of landscape irrigation. 76 
(2) Applicability. The provisions of this section shall apply to each user 77 

providing landscape irrigation from all water resources within the 78 
boundaries of the city with the following exceptions: 79 

a. The use of reclaimed water, which may or may not be 80 
supplemented from another source; 81 

b. Irrigation at agricultural and nursery operations; and 82 
c. Irrigation of athletic play areas. 83 

 84 
(b) Definitions.  The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this 85 

section, shall have the meanings listed below except where the context 86 
clearly indicates a different meanting. 87 
 88 
Address means the “house number” (a numeric or alphanumeric 89 

designation) that, together with the street name, describes the physical 90 
location of a specific property. This includes “rural route” numbers, but 91 
excludes post office box numbers. If a lot number in a mobile home park or 92 

similar community is used by the U.S. Postal Service to determine a delivery 93 
location, the lot number shall be the property’s address. If a lot number in a 94 
mobile home park or similar residential community is not used by the U.S. 95 
Postal Service (e.g., the park manager sorts incoming mail delivered to the 96 
community’s address), then the community’s main address shall be the 97 



Pg.3, Ord. 2022-11 

property’s address. If a property has no address, it shall be considered 98 
“even-numbered.” 99 
 100 
Athletic play area means all golf course fairways, tees, roughs, greens, and 101 

other athletic play surfaces; including, football, baseball, soccer, polo, 102 
tennis, and lawn bowling fields, and rodeo, equestrian, and livestock 103 
arenas.  104 
 105 
Consumptive Use Permit (CUP) means a permit issued pursuant to Chapter 106 

40E-2, F.A.C., authorizing the consumptive use of water. 107 
 108 
District means the South Florida Water Management District, a government 109 

entity created under Chapter 373, Florida Statutes. 110 
 111 

Even numbered address means an address ending in the numbers 0, 2, 4, 112 

6, 8, or rights-of-way or other locations with no address, or the letters A-M. 113 
 114 

Existing landscaping means any landscaping which has been planted and 115 

in the ground for more than ninety (90) days. 116 
 117 
Landscaping means shrubbery, trees, lawns, sod, grass, ground covers, 118 

plants, vines, ornamental gardens, and such other flora not intended for 119 
resale, which are situated in such diverse locations as residential 120 

landscapes, recreation areas, cemeteries, public, commercial, and 121 
industrial establishments, public medians, and rights-of-way, except athletic 122 
play areas.  123 
 124 
Landscape irrigation means the outside watering of shrubbery, trees, lawns, 125 

sod, grass, ground covers, plants, vines, ornamental gardens, and such 126 
other flora not intended for resale, which are planted and situated in such 127 

diverse locations as residential landscapes, recreation areas, cemeteries, 128 
public, commercial, and industrial establishments, public medians, and 129 

rights-of-way, except athletic play areas. 130 
 131 
Law enforcement officials mean any law enforcement officer employed by 132 

a law enforcement agency charged with the enforcement of laws of the city 133 
and state. 134 
 135 

Low volume hand watering means the watering of landscape by one (1) 136 

person, with one (1) hose, fitted with a self-canceling or automatic shutoff 137 
nozzle. 138 
 139 

Low volume irrigation means the use of equipment and devices specifically 140 

designed to allow the volume of water delivered to be limited to a level 141 
consistent with the water requirement of the plant being irrigated, and to 142 
allow that water to be placed with a high degree of efficiency in the root 143 
zone of the plant.  The term also includes water used in mist houses and 144 
similar establishments for plant propagation.  Overhead irrigation and flood 145 
irrigation are not included.  146 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2022-11 

 

Micro-irrigation means the application of small quantites of water on or 147 

below the soil surface as drops or tiny streams of spray through emitter or 148 
applicators placed along a water delivery line.  Micro-irrigation includes a 149 
number of methods or concepts, such as bubbler, drip, trickle, mist or 150 
microspray, and subsurface irrigation. 151 
 152 
New landscaping means any landscaping which has been planted in the 153 

ground for ninety (90) days or less. 154 
 155 
Odd numbered address means an address ending in the numbers 1, 3, 5, 156 

7, 9, or the letters N-Z. 157 
 158 
Reclaimed water means wastewater that has received at least secondary 159 

treatment and basic disinfection, and is reused after flowing out of a 160 
wastewater treatment facility as defined by Rule 62-40.210, F.A.C. 161 
 162 

User means any person, individual, firm, association, organization, 163 

partnership, business trust, corporation, company, agent, employee, or 164 

other legal entity whether natural or artificial, which directly or indirectly 165 
takes water from the water resource, including uses from private or public 166 
utility systems, uses under water use permits issued pursuant to Chapter 167 

40E-2, F.A.C., or uses from individual wells or pumps. 168 
 169 
Wasteful and unnecessary means allowing water to be dispersed without 170 

any practical purpose to the water use; for example, excessive landscape 171 

irrigation, leaving an unattended hose on a driveway with water flowing, 172 
allowing water to be dispersed in a grossly inefficient manner regardless of 173 
the type of water use; for example, allowing landscape irrigation water to 174 

unnecessarily fall onto pavement, sidewalks, and other impervious 175 
surfaces; or allowing water flow through a broken or malfunctioning water 176 

delivery or landscape irrigation system. 177 
 178 
Water resource means any and all water on or beneath the surface of the 179 

ground, including natural or artificial watercourses, lakes, ponds, or diffused 180 

surface water, and water percolating, standing, or flowing beneath the 181 
surface of the ground. 182 
 183 

Water shortage means when the District determines there is the possibility 184 

that insufficient water will be available to meet the present and anticipated 185 
needs of the users, or when conditions are such as to require a temporary 186 
reduction in total use within a particular area to protect water resources from 187 

serious harm. A water shortage usually occurs due to drought.  188 
 189 
Water shortage emergency means when the District determines the 190 

provisions listed in Part II of Chapter 40E-21, F.A.C., are not sufficient to 191 
protect the public health, safety, or welfare, the health of animals, fish, or 192 
aquatic life, a public water supply, or commercial, industrial, agricultural, 193 
recreational, or other reasonable-beneficial uses. 194 



Pg.5, Ord. 2022-11 

 195 
(c) Rules.  The city hereby adopts the rules of the District, listed in subsection 196 

40E-24.201 (1)-(5) and (7), F.A.C., including subsequent additions or 197 
corrections, which are set out as follows:   198 

(1) The year-round landscape irrigation conservation measures 199 
contained in this section 18-21 are applicable to all users including 200 
permitted and exempt users under Chapter 40E-2, F.A.C., unless 201 
otherwise indicated. These conservation measures apply to all 202 
water resources, unless otherwise indicated. In addition to the 203 

requirements of this section, all permitted users under Chapter 40E-204 
2, F.A.C., are required to maintain compliance with all CUP 205 
conditions and terms, including requirements to implement water 206 
conservation practices. 207 

(2) It shall be the duty of each user to keep informed as to the 208 

landscape irrigation conservation measures within this section 209 
which affect each particular water use. 210 

(3) In addition to the specific conservation measures, all wasteful and 211 

unnecessary water use is prohibited.  212 

(4) The following requirements shall apply to all users, unless specified in 213 
this subsection (c) or subsection (d) below. 214 

a. Landscape irrigation shall be prohibited between the hours of 215 

10:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., except as otherwise provided.  216 
b. Irrigation of existing landscaping shall comply with the following 217 

provisions: 218 
 i. Even addresses, installations with irrigation systems that 219 

irrigate both even and odd addresses within the same zones, 220 

such as multi-family units and homeowners’ associations, and 221 

rights-of-way or other locations with no address shall have the 222 
opportunity to accomplish necessary landscape irrigation three 223 
(3) days a week, only on Sunday, Tuesday and/or Thursday. 224 

 ii. Odd addresses shall have the opportunity to accomplish 225 
necessary landscape irrigation three (3) days a week, only on 226 

Saturday, Monday and/or Wednesday.  227 

c. Irrigation of new landscaping shall comply with the following 228 
provisions:  229 

 1. New landscaping may be irrigated once on the day it is 230 
installed without regard to the listed watering days and times. 231 
Irrigation of the soil immediately prior to the installation of the new 232 

landscaping is allowed without regard to the normal watering 233 
days and times. 234 

 2. A ninety (90) day establishment period begins on the day the 235 
new landscaping is installed. The new landscaping shall be 236 

installed within a reasonable time from the date of purchase, 237 
which may be demonstrated with a dated receipt or invoice.  238 

 3. Irrigation of new landscaping which has been in place for thirty 239 
(30) days or less may be accomplished on Monday, Tuesday, 240 
Wednesday, Thursday, Saturday, and/or Sunday. 241 



Pg. 6, Ord. 2022-11 

 

 4. Irrigation of new landscaping which has been in place for 242 

thirty-one (31) to ninety (90) days may be accomplished on 243 
Monday, Wednesday, Thursday, and/or Saturday. 244 

 5. Irrigation of new landscaping is limited to areas only 245 
containing the new landscaping. An entire zone of an irrigation 246 

system shall only be utilized for landscape irrigation under this 247 
subsection if the zone contains at least 50% new landscaping. If 248 
a zone contains less than 50% new landscaping, or if the new 249 
landscaping is in an area that will not typically be irrigated by an 250 
irrigation system, only the individual new plantings are eligible for 251 

additional irrigation. Targeted watering may be accomplished by 252 
low volume hand watering or any appropriate method which 253 
isolates and waters only the new landscaping. 254 

(5) Any water shortage restrictions or other measures declared pursuant 255 
to Chapter 40E-21, F.A.C., or related District governing board or 256 
executive director orders which are more restrictive than a measure 257 

contained within this section, shall supersede this section for the 258 
duration of the applicable water shortage declaration. 259 

 260 
 (d) Exceptions. Landscape irrigation scheduling shall be subject to the 261 

following exceptions: 262 

(1) Landscape irrigation systems may be operated during restricted days 263 
and/or times for cleaning, maintenance, and repair purposes with an 264 
attendant on site in the area being tested. Landscape irrigation 265 

systems may routinely be operated for such purposes no more than 266 

once per week, and the run time for any one (1) test should not exceed 267 
ten (10) minutes per zone.   268 

(2) Landscape irrigation for the purpose of watering-in fertilizers, 269 

insecticides, pesticides, fungicides and herbicides, where such 270 
watering-in is recommended by the manufacturer, or by federal, state 271 

or local law, or best management practices, shall be allowed under the 272 
following conditions:   273 

a.  Such watering-in shall be limited to one (1) application, unless the 274 
need for more than one (1) application is stated in the directions 275 

for application specified by the manufacturer; and   276 
b.  Such watering-in shall be accomplished during normally 277 

allowable watering days and times set forth in subsection 18-278 

21(c) unless a professional licensed applicator has posted a 279 
temporary sign containing the date of application and the date(s) 280 
of needed watering-in activity.  281 

(3)  Any plant material may be watered using low volume irrigation, micro-282 

irrigation, low volume hand watering method, rain barrels, cisterns, or 283 
other similar rain-harvesting devices without regard to the watering 284 
days or times allowed pursuant to this section. 285 

 286 
 (e) Additional requirements.  Any user who purchases and installs an automatic 287 

landscape irrigation system shall properly install, maintain, and operate technology that 288 



Pg.7, Ord. 2022-11 

inhibits or interrupts operation of the system during periods of sufficient moisture in 289 
accordance with section 373.62, Florida Statutes. 290 

 291 
 (f) Variances.  292 

 (1)  If a user wishes to request a variance from the specific day or days 293 
identified in subsection 18-21(c), the user may file a petition for variance or 294 
waiver, in a form satisfactory to the city, with the director of Water Utilities  295 

 (2) A variance from the specific day or days identified in subsection 18-296 
21(c) may be granted by the city if strict application of the restrictions would 297 

lead to an unreasonable or unfair result; provided the applicant 298 
demonstrates with particularity that compliance with the schedule will result 299 
in substantial economic, health, or other hardship on the applicant or those 300 
served by the applicant.  Further, relief may be granted only upon a 301 
demonstration that such hardship exists, is peculiar to the person or the 302 

affected property, is not self-imposed, and that granting the variance would 303 
be consistent with the general intent and purpose of this section. 304 

 (3) The decision of the city shall be final.  305 

 (4) If granted, the applicant shall be required to post a notice at each 306 

parcel to which the variance pertains. 307 
 (5) The city recognizes all irrigation variances or waivers issued by the 308 

District under Rule 40E-24.501, F.A.C.  309 

 (g) Declaration of water shortage or water shortage emergency.  Declaration of 310 

a water shortage condition and/or water shortage emergency within all or parts of the city 311 
by the District’s governing board or executive director shall supersede this section for the 312 

duration of the applicable water shortage declaration in accordance with the city’s Water 313 
Shortage Emergencies set forth in Chapter 18, Article III Emergency Water Use.  A water 314 

shortage usually occurs due to drought. 315 
 316 
 (h) Enforcement.  317 

 (1) In the absence of a declaration of water shortage or water shortage 318 
emergency within all or any part of the city by the District’s governing board 319 

or executive director, the listed landscape irrigation restrictions shall be 320 
subject to enforcement action.  321 

 (2) The city authorizes law enforcement officials to enforce the provisions 322 
of this section. In addition, the city manager may delegate this section’s 323 
enforcement responsibility to departments within the city government. 324 

 325 

 (i) Penalties.  326 

 (1) Violation of any provision of this section shall be subject to the 327 

following penalties: 328 
1.  First violations, a warning. 329 
2.  Second violations, a $50.00 fine. 330 
3. Third violations, a $250.00 fine. 331 
4. Fourth and subsequent violations, a $500.00 fine. 332 

 (2) Each day a violation of this section occurs shall be a separate 333 
offense.  Law enforcement officials, and others as delegated, may provide 334 
violators with no more than one (1) written warning. In addition to civil 335 

penalties, the city may take any other appropriate legal action, including but 336 
not limited to, injunctive action to enforce the provisions of this section. 337 



Pg. 8, Ord. 2022-11 

 

Secs. 18-22 – 18-23. – Reserved. 338 

 339 
 Section 3.   Chapter 18 Utilities, Article III Emergency Water Use is hereby 340 

renumbered as follows. 341 
 342 

ARTICLE III. – EMERGENCY WATER USE 343 
 344 
Sec. 18-2421. – Definitions. 345 
* * * 346 
Sec. 18-2522. – Intent and purpose. 347 

* * * 348 
Sec. 18-2623. – Applicability. 349 
* * * 350 

Sec. 18-2724. – Enforcement. 351 
* * * 352 
Sec. 18-2822. – Penalties. 353 

* * * 354 
Sec. 18-2922. – Intent and purpose. 355 

 * * * 356 
 357 
Secs. 18-26 – 18-29. – Reserved. 358 

 359 
 Section 4.  Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 360 
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 361 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 362 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 363 
portions thereof. 364 
 365 

 Section 5.  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 366 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 367 

 368 
 Section 6.  Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 369 
the City’s Code of Ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to accomplish such, 370 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or any other appropriate 371 

word. 372 
 373 
 Section 7.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days 374 

after its final passage. 375 
 376 

The passage of this ordinance was moved by Vice Mayor McVoy, seconded by 377 
Commissioner Malega, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:  378 

 379 
Mayor Betty Resch AYE  380 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 381 
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE 382 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes ABSENT  383 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  AYE 384 



Pg.9, Ord. 2022-11 

 385 
 386 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 387 
31st day of May, 2022. 388 

 389 
 390 
 The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by Commissioner 391 
_________, seconded by Commissioner ___________, and upon being put to a vote, the 392 
vote was as follows: 393 

 394 
Mayor Betty Resch  395 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  396 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  397 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  398 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 399 
 400 

 401 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 402 

_____________________, 2022. 403 
 404 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 405 

 406 
 407 

By: __________________________ 408 
Betty Resch, Mayor 409 

 410 

ATTEST: 411 

 412 
 413 
________________________ 414 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 415 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE:   June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Water & Electric Utilities 

 

TITLE: 

Agreement with USIC Holdings, Inc. d/b/a USIC Locating Services, LLC for Underground Facilities 
Line Locating Services 

 
SUMMARY: 

Agreement authorizes Underground Facilities Line Locating Services with USIC Holdings, Inc. 
d/b/a USIC Locating Services, LLC in the amount not to exceed $500,000 annually. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City Water and Electric Utility Departments are required to respond to utility locate design and 
dig request tickets that are called in to Sunshine 811 before digging. Underground utilities are 
required to be spray painted to notify the party digging that a line exists there within 48 hours of 
the ticket being called in. The City solicited bids under RFP 16-211 with USIC Locating Services, 
LLC being the selected contractor. The Agreement has expired but the City wishes to continue 
having USIC Locating Services, LLC provide these Underground Facilities Line Locating Services 
and utilize the terms and conditions of the Orlando Utility Commission (OUC) Agreement from 
RFP 21 5038 for Underground Facilities Line Locating Services. The term of the Agreement shall 
follow the OUC Agreement and be valid until December 16, 2024 with two (2) one-year renewal 
options. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Agreement with USIC Holdings, Inc. d/b/a USIC Locating Services, 
LLC for Underground Facilities Line Locating Services in the amount not to exceed $500,000 
annually. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
USIC Agreement 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 $500,000 $500,000 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 $500,000 $500,000 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

401-
6034-
531.34-
50 

Electric 
Transmission 

Distribution Other 
Contractual 
Services 

NA      

402-
7034-
533.34-
50 

Water Distribution Other 
Contractual 
Services 

NA      

403-
7231-
535.34-
50 

Local Sewer Collection Other 
Contractual 
Services 

NA      

408-
5090-
538.34-
50 

Public 
Services 

Stormwater Other 
Contractual 
Services 

NA      

*The City will utilize this agreement at start of Fiscal Year 2023 in the above accounts. 



















EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE:   June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Water Utilities 

 

TITLE: 

Agreement with US Peroxide, LLC dba USP Technologies for Hydrogen Sulfide Control Services 

 
SUMMARY: 

Agreement authorizes Hydrogen Sulfide Control Services with US Peroxide, LLC dba USP 
Technologies in the amount not to exceed $400,000 annually. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City Water Utility Department has used the chemical peroxide for odor control of hydrogen 
sulfide in the wastewater collection system for several years with great success. The City had an 
agreement in place with USP Technologies to provide this chemical and reporting services, but 
the agreement has expired and the City wishes to continue these services. The Agreement with 
USP Technologies enables the City to utilize the terms and conditions of the City of Orlando’s 
contract that was competitively bid under IFB221-0285 for Hydrogen Sulfide Control Services. The 
term of the Agreement is valid until August 23, 2024 unless extended, and for a not to exceed 
amount of $400,000 annually. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Agreement with US Peroxide, LLC dba USP Technologies for 
Hydrogen Sulfide Control Services in the amount not to exceed $400,000 annually. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
US Peroxide Agreement 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 $400,000 $400,000 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 $400,000 $400,000 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY23 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

403-
7231-
535.52-
30 

Local Sewer Collection Chemicals NA      

405-
7421-
535.52-
30 

Regional 
Sewer 

Collection Chemicals NA      

*The City will utilize this agreement at start of Fiscal Year 2023 in the above accounts. 

 













EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: June 28, 2022  DEPARTMENT:  Electric Utility 

 

TITLE: 

Electric Utility Integrated Resource Planning Process Presentation and Discussion 

 
SUMMARY: 

Development of an Integrated Resource Plan (IRP) for City’s Electric Utility 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
 

Resource Plans are an important element in planning for future sources of energy and capacity 
by an electric utility.  Integrated Resource Plans blend both supply-side options with demand-side 
options to develop a roadmap of preferred options for meeting customer needs and serve as a 
guide in building the utility’s portfolio.  Factors considered while developing an IRP include system 
load growth, carbon reduction goals, generation and demand reduction technology alternatives 
and costs, fuel availability and prices, market capacity and energy prices, market economics, 
operations and maintenance costs, etc. 
  
In 2018 City’s electric utility developed a Resource Plan as a part of its Generation and 
Transmission Improvement Program (GTIP) which served as a roadmap for types of electric 
generation technologies that were available in the market and identified a recommended path 
forward for the City’s electric utility supply portfolio.  At that time City’s electric utility had no formal 
resource plan and time was of the essence in formalizing a path forward in response to 
deteriorating transmission system and power plant reliability.  The 2018 Resource Plan identified 
solar photovoltaic energy as a preferred resource option and served as a significant driver in City’s 
subsequent decision to contract for 36.55 MW of solar power from the Florida Municipal Power 
Agency (FMPA).  The 2018 Resource Plan also recognized the need for the electric utility to 
implement a second tie line to the regional transmission grid as a preferred alternative to improve 
transmission reliability, a project which is underway today.  
 
It has now been four years since the completion of the 2018 Resource Plan.  Resource Plans are 
not static tools however and should be refreshed from time to time allow for corrections in course 
that may be warranted as new technologies emerge, economic conditions change, customer 
needs change, etc.  The next evolution of the plan is to include demand-side options to allow for 
a plan that recognizes demand-side alternative as a contributor to meeting future system needs.  
 
City’s electric utility staff will be working with the authors of the 2018 Plan to develop the 2022 
Integrated Resource Plan.  

 
MOTION: 

N/A 



Presentation by Horizons Energy & Staff 
 
FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS: 
 
N/A 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 



INTEGRATED RESOURCE PLAN

Lake Worth Beach Electric Utilities (LWBEU)

Presented By:
Horizons Energy
June 28, 2022



AGENDA

• Introduction

• Horizons Energy

• Integrated Resource Planning Process

• Lake Worth Beach 2022 IRP

• Conclusion and Question/Answer

2



HORIZONS ENERGY

• Established in 2016

• Credentials:

• Average 25 years of experience in power 
market analytics

• Contributed to over 25 integrated resource 
plans

• Over 30 national clients (developers, banks, 
utilities)

• Services:

• EnCompass National Database

• North American Advisory Outlook

• Consulting

• Utilizes the EnCompass Power Planning model 
from Anchor Power Solutions

3



4

Greg Turk

Principal/Project Manager
• 30+ years of power planning 

methods, consulting, product 

and project management

Kathy Jones

Executive Consultant
• 30+ years of analytic data 

development, resource screening, 

scenario creation, and study 

simulations

Relevant Engagements Last 2 Years:

✓2022 AES Indiana IRP

✓2021 NMPP IRP

✓2021 PNM IRP

✓2021 AECC Uncertainty Analysis

✓2020 PNM San Juan Replacement

✓2020 PCWA Hydro Stochastic Analysis

✓2020 KYMEA IRP

Relevant Experience:

✓Southeast U.S. Lead 2006-2017

✓Renewables Lead 2013-2017

✓25 years IRP experience

✓Performed $ billions in asset valuation

✓Horizons advisory and market assessments

✓Environmental compliance planning

✓Uncertainty and risk assessment



WHAT WE DO

• EnCompass National Database

• North American Advisory Outlook

• Fundamental forecast of energy markets

• Nine scenarios

• Interactive dashboard of results

• Custom Scenarios

• Consulting

5



INTEGRATED RESOURCE PLANNING

• Integrated Resource Planning or IRP is the process by which supply- and 
demand-side options are consistently planned, implemented, and 
evaluated to provide energy services at a cost that appropriately balances 
the interests of stakeholders

• Develop plan for LWBEU to reach its goals of low-cost, reliable and low 
carbon service

• Horizons Energy uses the EnCompass power planning model by Anchor 
Power Solutions which performs a mixed integer linear programming 
algorithm which:

• Develops an outlook for supply- and demand-side options that minimize cost as 
well as reach carbon emission targets and maintain reliability

6



DEMAND FORECAST

• Represent electricity customer demand

• Hourly

• Monthly

• Annually

7



ELECTRIC VEHICLE OUTLOOK

8



RESOURCES: DEMAND SIDE OPTIONS

• Demand response

• Energy efficiency

• Behind the meter

9

Percent change in BTM Generation since 2017



RESOURCES: SUPPLY SIDE OPTIONS

• Existing generation and contracts

• Tom G. Smith

• Stanton 

• St. Lucie

• Solar

• New options

• Solar

• Batteries

• Combustion turbines

• Purchase power agreements (PPA) 

10



ENCOMPASS
POWER PLANNING MODEL

11



MARKET AREAS

12



SERC/FLORIDA

13



NATURAL GAS PRICES

14



OVERNIGHT CAPITAL COST

15



PPA PRICES

16

Source: LEVELTEN ENERGY Q1 2022 PPA PRICE INDEX NA



HORIZONS SCENARIOS

• Base

• High Natural Gas

• Low Natural Gas

• High Demand

• Low Demand

• Carbon Limit with High Natural Gas

• Carbon Limit with Low Natural Gas

• National Carbon Tax

• Zero Carbon Additions Only (equivalent of Cheap 
Renewables)

17



SCENARIO MATRIX

18

Medium Higher Really High Low Really Low

Reference High NG Low NG High Demand Low Demand Nat'l CO2 Tax

CO2 Limit High 

NG

CO2 Limit Low 

NG

Zero Carbon 

Additions

Load

Natural Gas Price

Coal Price

Technologies

Nuclear Economic Retirements

Nuclear License 80 Years 80 Years

Coal Economic Retirements Unlimited

Natural Gas Additions Limited

Natural Gas Retirements

All eligible beg. 

2023 Unlimited

Hydro

Geothermal

Other Renewables

Carbon Tax Limit Limit State/Province

% of Generation Additions

Solar 45.4% 45% 44% 40% 48% 46% 48% 47% 48%

Wind 23.2% 25% 22% 23% 23% 25% 24% 26% 26%

GT 3.8% 4% 4% 7% 3% 5% 0% 2% 0%

CC 13.1% 9% 18% 15% 12% 8% 2% 4% 0%

IC 1.3% 1% 1% 2% 1% 1% 0% 0% 0%

Storage 13.2% 16% 11% 13% 13% 16% 25% 21% 25%

Distributed Generation

Transmission Additions EconomicKnown/under construction additions

Scenarios

B

u

i

l

d

s

60% reduction from 2019 no carbon price except State/Province

M

a

r

k

e

t

 

D

r

i

v

e

r

s

CA, DE, MD, NM, OR, VA Limited Limited after 2030

Staggered beg. 2024 None

60 Years

Staggered beg. 2024 All eligible beg. 2024

60 Years

Staggered beg. 2024 All eligible beg. 2024

Existing

Existing

Existing



HORIZONS FLORIDA RESOURCE MIX - 2050

19



FLORIDA ENERGY PRICES

20



FLORIDA CARBON EMISSIONS

21



2018 PLANNING EFFORT

22

Resource 

Decisions

Transmission Upgrade(s)

Uncertainties

Repower / Retire Existing Resources

Extend / Cancel Power Contracts

Develop In-city Generation

Solar, Storage, Other Renewable

Off-shore Wind

Technology Costs

Power Contract Prices

Distributed Generation

Load Growth

Other

Natural Gas Price 

Solution

Optimized long-term 

resource plans 

• Across a range of 

uncertain futures

• Least cost outcomes

• Identify and manage 

risks

• To produce a robust 

resource strategy



2022 PLANNING EFFORT

23

Resource 

Decisions Uncertainties

Retire Existing Resources

Demand Side Management 

Distributed Generation

Solar, Storage, Other Renewable

Environmental footprint

Technology Costs

PPA Prices

CO2 Emissions

Load Growth

Other

Natural Gas Price 

Solution

Optimized long-term 

resource plans 

• Across a range of 

uncertain futures

• Least cost outcomes

• Identify and manage 

risks

• To produce a robust 

resource strategy



PROCESS

24

Select 
portfolio

Gather data 
– demand, 
resource, 
contracts

Available 
options –

traditional, 
renewable

Validate 
options

Determine 
metrics –

NPV savings

Analyze 
options –
against 
market

Assess 
sensitivity –

possible 
future states



TIMELINE

25

June 28 
Introductory 

Meeting

Data 
Validation 

with LWBEU

Demand 
Response 

Alternatives

Results 
Validation

Preliminary 
Results

Final Results Presentation



QUESTIONS?

26



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

Award-Memo-2022 
Agreement with American Wire Group LLC.  

AGENDA DATE:   June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Electric Utility 

Utility 

TITLE: 

Agreement with American Wire Group LLC., for the purchase and delivery of wire and cable 

 
SUMMARY: 

Agreement with American Wire Group LLC., for the purchase and delivery of wire and cable for 
the City’s Electric Utility under Florida Municipal Power Agency’s (FMPA) Joint Purchasing Project 
solicitation (ITB # 2021-006).  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The FMPA was formed in 1978 to provide a number of services for Florida municipal-owned 
utilities. In July of 1994, FMPA created a joint purchasing project for the joint purchasing of 
services, materials, supplies and equipment utilized in the generation, transmission, and 
distribution of electricity. FMPA members desiring to share in the benefits of the FMPA joint 
purchasing project enter a project procurement agreement with FMPA. The City has been a 
participating member of FMPA since its inception in 1978 and signed a project procurement 
agreement in 1994.  

Under its joint purchasing project, FMPA issued a solicitation for the Purchase and Delivery of 
Wire and Cables for use on electrical transmission and distribution systems.  FMPA received 
several bids and the City selected American Wire Group LLC. to provide the materials needed for 
the Electric Utility.  

The City is currently implementing the Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability 
Improvement Program (SHRIP). As part of this project, old wire and cables are replaced as 
needed to improve system reliability and storm resiliency. Wire and cables purchased under this 
agreement will be utilized for both Capital and Operations & Maintenance projects and will be 
charged out to the projects accordingly.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove  Agreement with American Wire Group LLC., for the purchase and 
delivery of wire and cable at a cost not to exceed $250,000 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 250,000 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 250,000 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

401-
0000-
141-02-
10 

Electric Warehouse Parts / 
General 

 12,452,587 6,218,326  250,000 5,968,326 

 



Page 1 of 10 

AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF WIRE & CABLE 

(Utilizing Florida Municipal Power Agency Contract) 

This AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND DELIVERY OF WIRE AND CABLE (“Agreement”) is made 

as of the _____________, 2022, by and between the CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 7 N. Dixie 

Highway, Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460, a Florida municipal corporation organized and existing under the 

laws of the State of Florida (“City”), and American Wire Group LLC, limited liability company authorized 

to do business in the State of Florida, whose address is 2980 NE 207th Street, PH, Aventura, FL 33180 

(“Contractor”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City’s Electric Utility is in need of wires and cables; and 

WHEREAS, on or about February 28, 2022, the Florida Municipal Power Agency (“FMPA”) 

awarded a contract for purchase and delivery of wire and cable under Invitation to Bid# 2021-006 to the 

Contractor (“FMPA Contract”); and 

WHEREAS, the City has requested and the Contractor and FMPA have agreed to extend the terms 

and condition of the FMPA Contract to the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has reviewed the unit prices set forth in the FMPA Contract and determined 

that the unit prices are competitive and will result in the best value to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined entering this Agreement with the Contractor serves a valid 

public purpose.  

NOW, THERFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the City and the Contractor agree as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The parties agree that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are fully incorporated

herein by reference.

2. FMPA Contract.  The FMPA Contract (inclusive of all bid documents and terms and conditions

associated therewith) is hereby incorporated by reference and expressly made a part of this Agreement as if

set forth at length herein. The term of this Agreement shall be consistent with the term of the FMPA Contract

and shall expire on February 28, 2023 unless earlier terminated as stated herein. If the FMPA Contract is

extended, this Agreement may be extended by written amendment of the parties.

3. Purchase Orders.  The City’s ordering mechanism under this Agreement shall be a City issued

Purchase Order; however, in the event of a conflict, all contractual terms and conditions stated herein

and as stated in the FMPA Contract shall take precedence over the terms and conditions stated in the

City issued Purchase Order. The Contractor shall not provide any goods and services under this

Agreement without a City issued Purchase Order specifically for this purpose, which shall include the

items listed on the provided quote. The pricing in each Purchase Order shall be consistent with the

pricing set forth in the FMPA Contract and attached as Exhibit “A” hereto for ease of reference. Each

issued Purchase Order shall be incorporated into this Agreement and made a part hereof.

4. Conflict of Terms and Conditions.  Conflicts between documents that make up this Agreement shall

be resolved in the following order of precedence:

1st day of JUNE



Page 2 of 10 

a. This Agreement;

b. The FMPA Contract; and,

b. The City issued Purchase Order.

5. Compensation.  The Contractor shall submit itemized invoices to the City for review and approval by the

City’s representative, indicating that all goods and services have been provided and rendered in conformity

with this Agreement and then will be sent to the Finance Department for payment. The invoices will reflect

the prices set forth in the FMPA Contract. Invoices will normally be paid within thirty (30) days following

the City representative’s approval. If the City disputes any invoice or part of an invoice, City shall notify the

Contractor within a reasonable time after receipt of the invoice. The City reserves the right to off-set, reduce

or withhold any payment to the CONTRACTOR until the dispute is resolved. The maximum amount to

be paid by the City to the Contractor under this Agreement shall not to exceed $250,000 (Two

Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars) annually.

6. Miscellaneous Provisions.

A. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all legal action

necessary to enforce this Agreement will be held exclusively in Palm Beach County. No remedy herein

conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy

shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter

existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise.  No single or partial exercise by any party of any right,

power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

B. Except for any obligation of the Contractor to indemnify the City, if any legal action or other

proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or because of an alleged dispute, breach,

default or misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this Agreement, each party shall be liable

and responsible for their own attorney’s fees incurred in that enforcement action, dispute, breach, default or

misrepresentation. FURTHER, TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE RESOLUTION OF ANY

LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY

LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT.

C. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or circumstances

shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this Agreement, or the application of

such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or

unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Agreement shall be deemed

valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

D. All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested or by

nationally recognized overnight courier, and sent to the addresses appearing on the first page of this

Agreement. Notices to the City shall be to the attention of the City Manager.

E. The City and Contractor agree that this Agreement (including the terms and conditions of FMPA

Contract) sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or

understandings other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this

Agreement may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument

executed by the parties hereto. Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or imposes

an obligation which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or earlier

termination.

F. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed

an original, and will become effective and binding upon the parties as of the effective date at such time



Page 3 of 10 

as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this Agreement. This Agreement may be 

executed electronically. 

G. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or

circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this Agreement, or

the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is

held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this

Agreement shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

H. This Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of who was

more responsible for its preparation.

I. In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the CONTRACTOR

acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach

County Inspector General. The Contractor has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-

009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance.

J. PUBLIC RECORDS.  The CONTRACTOR shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act,

Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the CITY as provided under

section 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to:

1. Keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to perform the service.

2. Upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the

CITY with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a 

reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as 

otherwise provided by law. 

3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public

records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this 

Agreement and following completion of this Agreement if the CONTRACTOR does not transfer the 

records to the CITY. 

4. Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the CITY all public records

in possession of the CONTRACTOR or keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to 

perform the service. If the CONTRACTOR transfers all public records to the CITY upon completion of 

the Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 

confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the CONTRACTOR keeps and 

maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall meet all 

applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided 

to the CITY, upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records or designee, in a format that is 

compatible with the information technology systems of the CITY.  

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 

CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 

TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 

RECORDS AT (561) 586-1660, 

CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, OR 7  NORTH DIXIE 

HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 33460. 

K. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES.

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV


Page 4 of 10 

1. The Contractor certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized

Companies that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 

287.135, Florida Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the 

Contractor or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the 

Contractor or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List 

or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

2. If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the Contractor certifies that it and

its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized 

Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations 

in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the 

City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Contractor, or any of its 

subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Contractor or any of its 

subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized 

Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with 

business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

3. The Contractor agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts

entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

4. The Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied

upon by the City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

5. The Contractor agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to

any certification herein, the Contractor shall immediately notify the City of the same. 

6. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to

authorize the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

L. E-VERIFY.

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021, the Contractor 

shall: 

1. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all

newly hired employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this 

Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the 

subcontractors’ newly hired employees; 

2. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under

this Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an 

“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

3. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and

provide the same to the City upon request; 

4. Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095,

Florida Statutes; 

5. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens;

employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

6. Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida

Statutes, Contractor may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement 

is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the City as a result of the termination of 

the Agreement.  

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 





Page 6 of 10 

“EXHIBIT A” 

(Price List) 



Page 7 of 10 



Page 8 of 10 



Page 9 of 10 



Page 10 of 10 



 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
     
    February 28, 2022 
 
 
TO: Members participating in the Wire & Cable Bid 
 
FROM: Sharon Samuels 
 
SUBJECT: Award of the Wire & Cable Bid (ITB# 2021-006)  
 
**************************************************************************************************************** 
In response to the FMPA Invitation to Bid No. 2021-006, the Joint Purchase Project reviewed the 
bids received for the Purchase and Delivery of Wire & Cable Bid.   
 
FMPA received bids from American Wire Group of Miami, FL; Electric Supply of Tampa, FL; Stuart 
C. Irby (Irby Utilities) of Lake Mary, FL; and Tri-State Utility Products of Havana, FL. 
 
Based on vendor pricing, lead times, and adherence to FMPA Terms and Conditions, the 
recommended award is for American Wire Group; with the exception of the items below. 
 

City of New Smyrna Beach 
FMPA # Description Awarded Bidder 
200-05025 #4, Soft Drawn Copper, Solid, 110ML Poly Black Tri-State Utility Prod. 
200-06091 750 KCMIL, Aluminum, 25 kV, Stranded Stuart C. Irby 

These items awarded to Tri-State Utility and Stuart Irby will be managed in its entirety by New 
Smyrna Beach. 
 

Beaches Energy Services 
FMPA # Description Awarded Bidder 
200-05002 #2, Bare, Soft Drawn Copper, Solid Electric Supply 
200-05003 #4 Bare, Medium Hard, Copper Electric Supply 
200-06049 1/0 XLP/TRXLP, 280 MIL, Aluminum, 28 kV, Full Neutral Electric Supply 
200-06055 350 MCM XLP/TRXLP, 280 MIL, Aluminum, 28 kV, 1/3 Neutral Electric Supply 
200-06058 1000 MCM XLP/TRXLP, 280 MIL, Aluminum, 28 kV, 1/3 Neutral Electric Supply 

These items awarded to Electric Supply will be managed in its entirety by Beaches Energy Services. 
 
This bid award expires February 28, 2023.  The prices bid are valid until February 28, 2022. In March, 
(and each month thereafter), the pricing for this commodity will fluctuate based on changes in the 
metals indices specified in the bid.  With the exception of items awarded to Tri-State Utility, Stuart 
Irby, and Electric Supply, FMPA will distribute the adjusted prices to all Participating Members on 
the first business day of each month.  Prices, as adjusted, are then firm for all orders placed during 
the month.   
 
All of the exceptions or other conditions taken by American Wire Group, Tri-State Utility, Stuart Irby, 
and Electric Supply are included with this letter.  If you have any questions, please give me a call. 
 
Attachments 
cc: Bidders  



WIRE AND CABLE BID 
FMPA ITB# 2021-006 

 
Bidders Exceptions and Clarifications - REVISION 

 
AMERICAN WIRE GROUP 

• Bid American Wire Group, Alcan, and Nehring 
• Lead time is 49 to 98 days, depending on the item. 
• American Wire Group will NOT pass on the Nehring freight allowed on 5000lb 

shipments to one location and price adjustment at time of shipment to participants. 
 

ELECTRIC SUPPLY 

• Bid Southwire 
• Lead time is 14 – 34 weeks, average time is 224 days; depending on the item. 
• Southwire provided participants with a pricing option of “firm” and “adjustable” on 

their quoted items.  Their adjustment policy is based on the Metals Week U.S. 
Transaction daily pricing from the previous month and their own pricing formula; this 
is an exception to FMPA’s Terms & Conditions.  FMPA recommends that 
Southwire be rejected for that reason. 
 

IRBY UTILITIES 
• Bid Okonite and Southwire 
• Lead time is 210 - 266 days, depending on the item and manufacturer. 
• Minimum Order Amount applies; please see the tab sheet for details. 
• $3000.00 per reel deposit charge on some items; see the bid tab for details. 
• Any items awarded are only good through 12/21/2022; not thru February 2023 per 

the bid term. 
• Southwire provided participants with a pricing option of “firm” and “adjustable” on 

their quoted items.  Their adjustment policy is based on the Metals Week U.S. 
Transaction daily pricing from the previous month and their own pricing formula; this 
is an exception to FMPA’s Terms & Conditions.  FMPA recommends that 
Southwire be rejected for that reason. 

• Southwire requires that their base metal be (CU $4.48 and AL $1.70) not per 
American Metals Market or Wall Street Journal per FMPA Terms & Conditions. 
FMPA recommends that Southwire be rejected for that reason – However 
acceptance can be made at utility’s discretion. 

• Okonite requires that their base metal be (CU $4.534 and AL $1.608740) not per 
American Metals Market or Wall Street Journal per FMPA Terms & Conditions. 
FMPA recommends that Southwire be rejected for that reason – However 
acceptance can be made at utility’s discretion. 

• Okonite took several exceptions to the technical specifications of the cable.  Please 
see the attachment for clarification. 
 

TRI-STATE UTILITY PRODUCTS 
• Bid Connex and Nehring 
• Lead time is 35 to 340 days, depending on the item. 
• Nehring orders are freight allowed on 5000lb shipments 5000lbs and less will be plus 

freight prices subject to adjustment at time of shipment all wire made and shipped 
from Dekalb, IL USA; this is an exception to FMPA’s Terms & Conditions.  FMPA 
recommends that Nehring be rejected for that reason – However acceptance 
can be made at utility’s discretion. 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE:   June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Electric Utility 

 

TITLE: 

First Amendment to Hooper Corp. Work Order No. 1 

 
SUMMARY: 

This First Amendment to Work Order No. 1 authorizes Hooper Corp., to complete additional 
construction services for the Canal Substation Circuit 6004 in the amount not to exceed 
$2,058,346.  This project has been identified as an element of the City’s electric utility System 
Hardening and Reliability Improvement Project (SHRIP) and for which bonds were sold in 
November 2020. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued a Request for Proposal (RFP 18-206) seeking proposals from qualified Electric 
Utility Contractors to build and construct numerous hardening and reliability improvements on the 
City’s electrical transmission and distribution systems. A total of six Electric Utility Contractors 
were selected by the evaluation committee to complete these services.  

The Canal Substation 6001, 6003 & 6004 Circuits provide power to the western portion of the 
City’s electrical distribution service area. The area serviced is bound by Congress Avenue on the 
east, Military Trail on the west, the L-10 canal on the north and the L-14 Canal on the south and 
includes areas of The Village of Palm Springs and un-incorporated Palm Beach County. The Canal 
Substation circuits provide power to approximately 5,900 customers.  

On February 16, 2021 the City Commission approved Work Order No. 1 with Hooper Corp. to 
complete system hardening and reliability improvements on the Canal Substation Circuits 6001, 
6003 & 6004. The scope of work under this Work Order included;  replacement of deteriorated 
wood poles, replacement of steel cross-arms, removal of open-wire secondary & installation of 
insulated tri-plex secondary service wire, installation of animal-guards, replacement of damaged 
lightning arrestors, testing and remediation of system bonding and grounding conductors.  

During the construction phase of the project and closer inspection additional problems with 
deteriorated poles and lengthy pole spans were identified that needed to be corrected, thereby 
increasing the number of poles to be replaced/added and additional hours under the contract.  For 
example, problems with rotting wooden pole tops were not readily visible from the ground and 
became apparent while attempting to replace cross arms, remove old metal brackets supporting 
insulators, and remove old pole-top insulators for replacement.  The scope of additional work 
included under this First Amendment includes but not limited to; removal and replacement of steel 
pole top pins, removal of additional open-wire secondary, installation of additional fiberglass cross-
arms, replacement of additional rotten or deteriorated wood poles, addition of additional 
intermediate poles to reduce span widths to withstand higher storm winds, installation of additional 
down-guys & anchors, relocation/transfer of underground services, additional grounding, 
additional animal guards, removal & installation of transformers,  underground conversion work 
from 4kV to 26kV in several locations, installation of additional insulated wire, service transfers 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 2,058,346 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 2,058,346 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 
  

and Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) services for crew and public safety during the construction 
process.   

At the onset of this project, the Canal Circuits were ranked in the top five (5) worst performing 
circuits. Through the course of the work, additional items were found requiring replacement and 
improvement to bring the circuits up to current system hardening and reliability improvement 
construction standards. To date the hardening of the 6004 circuit is 90% complete and is estimated 
that the remainder of the work will be completed within 45 to 60 days at a cost not to exceed 
$2,058,346.  The work performed in this area of the service territory has led to significant 
decreases in customer outages and the new equipment and hardened infrastructure will benefit 
customers for many years into the future. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove First Amendment to Work Order No. 1 with Hooper Corp., for 
construction services for electric distribution System Hardening and Reliability Improvements at a 
cost not to exceed $2,058,346. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
First Amendment Work Order No. 1  
Work Order No. 1 
 



B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: Funds have been identified 
in the account indicated below.  

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

421-
6034-
531-
63.15 

Transmission Distribution Improve 
Other than 
Build / 
Infrastructure 

SH2130 2,780,981 967,135 1,200,000 2,058,346 108,789 

 



Page 1 of 5 
 

CONTRACT FOR SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENT  
FIRST AMENDMENT TO WORK ORDER NO. 1 

Canal Substation Circuits - 6004 Storm Hardening &  
Reliability Improvements 

 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT f o r  S y s t e m  H a r d e n i n g  a n d  R e l i a b i l i t y  
I m p r o v e m e n t s  ( “ F i r s t  A m e n d m e n t ”  h e r e a f t e r )  i s  made on                              
, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation located at 7 
North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 ("City") and Hooper Corp., a Florida 
corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment identified 
herein related to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements project generally described 
as:  Canal Substation Circuit – 6004 Storm Hardening & Reliability Improvements (the 
“Project”). The Project is more specifically described in the Contractors Request for Change 
Order prepared by The Hooper Corp., dated March 22, 2022, and is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“1” and incorporated herein. 

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Amendment, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth with additional 
construction services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  Request for 
Change Order attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". Additional 
services to be provided under this Amendment include but not limited to; Installation of 
additional poles, replacement of additional damaged poles, replacement of additional cross-
arms, transformers & insulators; installation of additional animal guards, down-guys and 
transfer of services both overhead and underground. 
 

3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 
 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Amendment shall be within 45 working 
days from the Effective Date of this Amendment. Final completion of all services and work (and 
all punch-list items (if any)) under this Amendment shall be within 60 working days from the 
Effective Date of this Amendment. The Effective Date of this Amendment is the date following the 
parties' execution of this Amendment and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed to the 
Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. Substantial 
completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in the opinion 
of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents and this 
First Amendment, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final 
completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has been completed 
and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this First Amendment and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial 
loss if the services and work described in this First Amendment and the Contract 
Documents are not completed within the times specified in this First Amendment. The City 
and Contractor recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and 
extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the 
event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work 
within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and 
Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor 
shall pay the City $100 dollars ($100.00) for each day that expires after the time specified 



Page 2 of 5 
 

in this First Amendment. 
 
 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This First Amendment is issued for a not to exceed amount of $ _2,058,345.63. The attached proposal 
identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this First Amendment by the City: City to 
provide all materials. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is _Omar Delgado, phone: 407-319-9951; email: 
ODelgado@hoopercorp.com; and, the Project Manager for the City is James Woolley, phone: 561-
533-7384; email: jwoolley@Lakeworthbeachfl.gov. 
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule bi-weekly progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Amendment, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this First Amendment, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations 
that in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated Amendment price within the Amendment stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Amendment price, within the Amendment time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor 
 
 

mailto:jwoolley@Lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 5 
 

8.0 Warranty 
 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Amendment will be in accordance with this Amendment and the other Contract Documents. 
The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Amendment shall be free 
from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer manufacturer 
warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Amendment will be free from defects 
for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully operational without 
unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform to the 
requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (I) year 
warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties or the 
Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, upon 
written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, promptly 
correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any necessary 
removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection 
of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, 
or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, 
to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the event the Contractor 
fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the Contractor's receipt of 
the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may undertake such corrective 
action at the Contractor's expense. 
 

7.0 Authorization 
 

This Amendment is pursuant to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements Contract 
for between the City of Lake Worth and the Contractor, dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" 
hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of this First Amendment 
and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall prevail. 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “1” 
Contractors Request for Change Order 

 
 



   
 

Phone: (608) 249-0451 6450 Pederson Crossing Blvd 
Fax: (608) 249-7360 P.O. Box 7455 • DeForest 

Building Strong Partnerships Since 1913 

6450 Pederson Crossing Blvd 
DeForest, WI 53532 

 
 
 

                                  Request for Change Order 
 
 
Date:                        March 22, 2022 
 
Project:                    Contract for System Hardening and Reliability Improvement  
                                WO 1 Canal Substation Circuits - 6001, 6003 & 6004 Storm  
                                Hardening & Reliability Improvements. 
                                                    
Change Order Request Number:          1 
 
To: City of Lake Worth Beach 
 
Reason for Request:  Out of Scope Work to Harden Circuit 6001, 6003, & 6004 
 
 
Item Description  Total 

1 Out of scope work on 6001 (See attached summary – 6001)  $268,533.15 

2 Out of scope work on 6003 (See attached summary – 6003)  $1,186,552.35 

3 Out of scope work on 6004 (See attached summary – 6004) $2,058,345.63 

   

   

  Original Contract Amount $2,300,905.72 

  Change Orders to Date $0.00 

  Contract Amount Prior to this Change $2,300,905.72 

  This Change Order Amount $3,513,431.13 

  The New Contract Sum including this Change Order $5,814,336.85 

 
 

 

pnicholas
Rectangle

pnicholas
Highlight

pnicholas
Cross-Out

pnicholas
Text Box
CHANGE ORDER AMOUNT ITEMS 1                                                            $2,058,345.63



Change Order Summary - Circuit 6004

Orginal Contract Amount 6004 $1,481,035.90
Change Orders to Date 6004 $0.00
Contract Amount Prior to this Change $1,481,035.90
This Change Order Amount 6004 $2,058,345.63
The New Contract Sum including this Change Order $3,539,381.53

(a) (b) Equals (a) +(b)

Item
Orig SOW (QTY or 

LF)

Additional Qty 

Changed/Replaced

Additional 

to Replaced
Total

Extended 

Dollar Amount

Remove Steel pole top pins 320 300 50 350 $35,700.00

Install Polymer insulator and pole top pin 320 300 50 350 $71,400.00

Remove Open Wire Secondary 17,900 5,600 4500 10100 $10,988.80

Remove Wood or Steel Xarms w/ insulators 131 75 18 93 $31,620.00

Install Fiberglass xarm & Insulator 131 75 18 93 $60,078.00

R/R Wood Poles (rotten) 47 244 35 279 $535,666.05

Additional Wood Poles (reduce span width) 0 124 35 159 $305,272.05

Install down guys and anchors 0 80 10 90 $30,600.00

Relocate Underground services 0 185 12 197 $107,168.00

Install additional pole grounding 0 368 368 $100,096.00

Additional Wildlife protection  at additional location 0 115 115 $7,820.00

Remove & Install transformers 0 202 202 $240,380.00

Additional UG Conversion Not in original SOW 0 $208,111.65 $72,000.00 $280,111.65 $280,111.65

After Hours Outages for customer(Manhours) 0 150 60 210 $32,550.00

Future Conversion @ professional building and Medical Offices 

3175 Congress 0 $75,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00

1/0 ACSR installed 0 1600 1600 $2,176.00

4/0 MX Install 8000 1500 1200 2700 $4,406.40

1/0 MX Install 0 1700 1700 $2,543.20

House Service to retap at pole location 520 0 $0.00

House Services transferred to new pole loction 94 315 315 $85,680.00

MOT $0.00 $27,500.00 $27,500.00 $27,500.00

Dumpster (Waste Management) $0.00 $9,589.48 $2,000.00 $11,589.48 $11,589.48

0 $0.00

$2,058,345.63

pnicholas
Highlight

pnicholas
Highlight

pnicholas
Rectangle

pnicholas
Rectangle



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F

2/25/2021

        C-2283-WO1
        2/16/21 RM
       LWBEU CON-1



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F

MAC for:



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F













EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE:   June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Electric Utility 

 

TITLE: 

Second Amendment to Hooper Corp. Work Order No. 1 

 
SUMMARY: 

This Second Amendment to Work Order No. 1 authorizes Hooper Corp., to complete additional 
construction services for the Canal Substation Circuits 6001 and 6003 in the amount not to exceed 
$1,455,086.  This project has been identified as an element of the City’s electric utility System 
Hardening and Reliability Improvement Project (SHRIP) and for which bonds were sold in 
November 2020. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued a Request for Proposal (RFP 18-206) seeking proposals from qualified Electric 
Utility Contractors to build and construct numerous hardening and reliability improvements on the 
City’s electrical transmission and distribution systems. A total of six Electric Utility Contractors 
were selected by the evaluation committee to complete these services.  

 

The Canal Substation 6001, 6003 & 6004 Circuits provide power to the western portion of the 
City’s electrical distribution service area. The area serviced is bound by Congress Avenue on the 
east, Military Trail on the west, the L-10 canal on the north and the L-14 Canal on the south and 
includes areas of The Village of Palm Springs and un-incorporated Palm Beach County. The Canal 
Substation circuits provide power to approximately 5,900 customers.  

 

On February 16, 2021 the City Commission approved Work Order No. 1 with Hooper Corp. to 
complete system hardening and reliability improvements on the Canal Substation Circuits 6001, 
6003 & 6004. The scope of work under this Work Order included;  replacement of deteriorated 
wood poles, replacement of steel cross-arms, removal of open-wire secondary & installation of 
insulated tri-plex secondary service wire, installation of animal-guards, replacement of damaged 
lightning arrestors, testing and remediation of system bonding and grounding conductors.  

 

During the construction phase on similar areas in our system closer inspection revealed additional 
problems with deteriorated poles and lengthy pole spans were identified that needed to be 
corrected, thereby increasing the number of poles to be replaced/added and additional hours 
under the contract.  For example, problems with rotting wooden pole tops that were not readily 
visible from the ground and became apparent while attempting to replace cross arms, remove old 
metal brackets supporting insulators, and remove old pole-top insulators for replacement.  Based 
on experience gained from work performed to date on similar potions of the system, additional 
work has been determined to be needed to continue with the system hardening and reliability 
improvements. The additional work required which will increase the quantity of labor hours and 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 1,455,086 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 1,455,086 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: Funds have been identified 
in the account indicated below.  

costs should be noted at this time.  The scope of additional work included under this Amendment 
includes but is not limited to; removal and replacement of steel pole top pins, removal of additional 
open-wire secondary, installation of additional fiberglass cross-arms, replacement of additional 
rotten or deteriorated wood poles, addition of new poles to reduce span width, installation of 
additional down-guys & anchors, relocation/transfer of underground services, additional 
grounding, additional wildlife protection, removal & installation of transformers,  installation of 
additional insulated wire, service transfers, street light transfers and Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) 
services.  

At the onset of this project, the Canal Circuits were ranked in the top five (5) of the poorest 
performing circuits in the service territory. With the work done so to date the performance of the 
hardened areas has improved significantly.  To date the 6001 and 6003 circuits are 30% 
complete and is estimated the remainder of the work will be completed within 12 to 14 months at 
a cost not to exceed $1,455,086. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Second Amendment to Work Order No. 1 with Hooper Corp., for 
construction services for electric distribution System Hardening and Reliability Improvements at a 
cost not to exceed $1,455,086. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Second Amendment Work Order No. 1  
Work Order No. 1 
 



 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

421-
6034-
531-
63.15 

Transmission Distribution Improve 
Other than 
Build / 
Infrastructure 

SH2130 2,780,981 967,135 1,800,000 1,455,086 344,914 

 



Page 1 of 5 
 

CONTRACT FOR SYSTEM HARDENING AND RELIABILITY IMPROVEMENT  
SECOND AMENDMENT TO WORK ORDER NO. 1 

Canal Substation Circuits – 6001 & 6003 Storm Hardening &  
Reliability Improvements 

 

THIS S E C O N D  AMENDMENT f o r  S y s t e m  H a r d e n i n g  a n d  
R e l i a b i l i t y  I m p r o v e m e n t s  ( “ F i r s t  A m e n d m e n t ”  h e r e a f t e r )  i s  
made on                              , between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal 
corporation located at 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida 33460 ("City") and Hooper 
Corp., a Florida corporation ("Contractor"). 

 
1.0 Project Description: 

 
The City desires the Contractor to provide all goods, services, materials and equipment identified 
herein related to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements project generally described 
as:  Canal Substation Circuit – 6001 & 6003 Storm Hardening & Reliability Improvements 
(the “Project”). The Project is more specifically described in the Contractors Request for Change 
Order prepared by The Hooper Corp., dated March 22, 2022, and is attached hereto as Exhibit 
“1” and incorporated herein. 

 
2.0 Scope 

 
Under this Amendment, the Contractor will provide the City of Lake Worth with additional 
construction services for the Project as specified in the C o n t a c t o r ’ s  Request for 
Change Order attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit "1". Additional 
services to be provided under this Amendment include but not limited to; Installation of 
additional poles, replacement of additional damaged poles, replacement of additional cross-
arms, transformers & insulators; installation of additional animal guards, down-guys and 
transfer of services both overhead and underground. 
 

3.0 Schedule and Liquidated Damages 
 

Substantial completion of all services and work under this Amendment shall be within 270 working 
days from the Effective Date of this Amendment. Final completion of all services and work (and 
all punch-list items (if any)) under this Amendment shall be within 305 working days from the 
Effective Date of this Amendment. The Effective Date of this Amendment is the date following the 
parties' execution of this Amendment and the City's delivery of a Notice to Proceed to the 
Contractor via e-mail, facsimile or other form of delivery as documented by the City. Substantial 
completion occurs when the services and work has progressed to the point where, in the opinion 
of the City, the work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents and this 
First Amendment, so that the Project can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. Final 
completion occurs when all services and work (including punch-list items) has been completed 
and the project becomes fully operational and accepted by the City. 

 
Liquidated Damages. The City and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence under 
this First Amendment and the Contract Documents, and that the City will suffer financial 
loss if the services and work described in this First Amendment and the Contract 
Documents are not completed within the times specified in this First Amendment. The City 
and Contractor recognize, agree and acknowledge that it would be impractical and 
extremely difficult to ascertain and fix the actual damages that the City would suffer in the 
event Contractor neglects, refuses, or otherwise fails to complete the services and work 
within the time specified. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, the City and 
Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) Contractor 
shall pay the City $100 dollars ($100.00) for each day that expires after the time specified 



Page 2 of 5 
 

in this First Amendment. 
 
 
4.0 Compensation 

 
This First Amendment is issued for a not to exceed amount of $ _1,455,085.50. The attached proposal 
identifies all costs and expenses included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount.  
 
The following Direct Purchases are to be made under this First Amendment by the City: City to 
provide all materials. 
 

5.0 Project Manager 
 

The Project Manager for the Contractor is _Omar Delgado, phone: 407-319-9951; email: 
ODelgado@hoopercorp.com; and, the Project Manager for the City is James Woolley, phone: 561-
533-7384; email: jwoolley@Lakeworthbeachfl.gov. 
 

6.0 Progress Meetings 
 

The Contractor shall schedule bi-weekly progress review meetings with the City Project Manager as 
necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 
 

7.0  Contractor’s Representations 
 
In order to induce the City to enter into this Amendment, the Contractor makes the following 
representations:  
7.1  Contractor has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents 
including this First Amendment, work, site, locality, and all local conditions and laws and regulations 
that in any manner may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.  
 
7.2  Contractor has obtained at his/her own expense and carefully studied, or assumes 
responsibility for obtaining and carefully studying, soil investigations, explorations, and test reports 
which pertain to the subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site or otherwise may affect the 
cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the work at the stated Amendment price within the Amendment stated 
time and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including 
specifically the provisions of the RFP; and no additional examinations, investigations, explorations, 
tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are or is deemed necessary by Contractor for 
such purposes.  
 
7 .3  Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site and 
assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities. No additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data in 
respect of said Underground Facilities are or is deemed necessary by the Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the work under this Amendment price, within the Amendment time and in 
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.4 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.5 Contractor has given the City's Contract Administrator written notice of all conflicts, errors or 
discrepancies that he or she has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution 
thereof by City or its designee is acceptable to the Contractor 
 
 

mailto:jwoolley@Lakeworthbeachfl.gov


Page 3 of 5 
 

8.0 Warranty 
 
Warranty. The Contractor warrants and guarantees to the City that all services and work provided 
under this Amendment will be in accordance with this Amendment and the other Contract Documents. 
The Contractor warrants that (a) all materials and parts supplied under this Amendment shall be free 
from defects for one (1) year from the final completion of all work (unless a longer manufacturer 
warranty applies); (b) all services and work performed under this Amendment will be free from defects 
for one ( 1) year from the final completion of all work and the project shall be fully operational without 
unreasonable downtime or failures; and (c) that the services and work will conform to the 
requirements of the Contract Documents. If, at any time prior to the expiration of the one (I) year 
warranty period, the City discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties or the 
Contractor discovers any failure or breach of the Contractor's warranties, the Contractor will, upon 
written notice from City or of its own accord, at the Contractor's sole cost and expense, promptly 
correct such failure or breach (which corrective action must include, without limitation, any necessary 
removal, disassembly, reinstallation, repair, replacement, reassembly, retesting, and/or re-inspection 
of any part or portion of the work and any other property damaged or affected by such failure, breach, 
or corrective action). The Contractor will remedy any such failure or breach so, to the extent possible, 
to avoid unnecessary disruptions to the operations of City or its systems. In the event the Contractor 
fails to initiate and diligently pursue corrective action within five (5) days of the Contractor's receipt of 
the City's notice or the Contractor's discovery of the same, the City may undertake such corrective 
action at the Contractor's expense. 
 

7.0 Authorization 
 

This Amendment is pursuant to the System Hardening and Reliability Improvements Contract 
for between the City of Lake Worth and the Contractor, dated May 15, 2018 ("Contract" 
hereafter). If there are any conflicts between the terms and conditions of this First Amendment 
and the Contract, the terms and conditions of the Contract shall prevail. 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 

  





Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT “1” 
Contractors Request for Change Order 

 
 



   
 

Phone: (608) 249-0451 6450 Pederson Crossing Blvd 
Fax: (608) 249-7360 P.O. Box 7455 • DeForest 

Building Strong Partnerships Since 1913 

6450 Pederson Crossing Blvd 
DeForest, WI 53532 

 
 
 

                                  Request for Change Order 
 
 
Date:                        March 22, 2022 
 
Project:                    Contract for System Hardening and Reliability Improvement  
                                WO 1 Canal Substation Circuits - 6001, 6003 & 6004 Storm  
                                Hardening & Reliability Improvements. 
                                                    
Change Order Request Number:          1 
 
To: City of Lake Worth Beach 
 
Reason for Request:  Out of Scope Work to Harden Circuit 6001, 6003, & 6004 
 
 
Item Description  Total 

1 Out of scope work on 6001 (See attached summary – 6001)  $268,533.15 

2 Out of scope work on 6003 (See attached summary – 6003)  $1,186,552.35 

3 Out of scope work on 6004 (See attached summary – 6004) $2,058,345.63 

   

   

  Original Contract Amount $2,300,905.72 

  Change Orders to Date $0.00 

  Contract Amount Prior to this Change $2,300,905.72 

  This Change Order Amount $3,513,431.13 

  The New Contract Sum including this Change Order $5,814,336.85 

 
 

 

pnicholas
Rectangle

pnicholas
Highlight

pnicholas
Highlight

pnicholas
Cross-Out

pnicholas
Text Box
CHANGE ORDER AMOUNT ITEMS 1 & 2                                                       $1,455,085.50



Change Order Summary - Circuit 6001

Orginal Contract Amount 6001 $123,272.90

Change Orders to Date 6001 $0.00

Contract Amount Prior to this Change $123,272.90

This Change Order Amount 6001 $268,533.15

The New Contract Sum including this Change Order $391,806.05

(a) (b) Equals (a) +(b)

Item
Orig SOW (QTY or 

LF)

Additional 

Qty 

Changed/

Replaced

Additional 

to 

Replaced

Total

Remove Steel pole top pins 38 0 0.00 $0.00

Install Polymer insulator and pole top pin 38 0 0.00 $0.00

Remove Open Wire Secondary 8790 0 0.00 $0.00

Remove Wood or Steel Xarms w/ insulators 0 0 0.00 $0.00

Install Fiberglass xarm & Insulator 0 31 31.00 $20,026.00

R/R Wood Poles (rotten) 0 31 31.00 $59,518.45

Additional Wood Poles (reduce span width) 0 61 61.00 $117,116.95

Straighten Wood Pole 0 3 3.00 $4,080.00

Install down guys and anchors 4 40 40.00 $13,600.00

Relocate Underground services 0 17 17.00 $9,248.00

Install additional pole grounding 3 61 61.00 $16,592.00

Additional Wildlife protection  at additional location 0 0.00 $0.00

Remove & Install transformers 0 42 42.00 $49,980.00

Change out Porcelain Insulators 42 89 89.00 $24,208.00

Customer Outages - Commercial Manhours 0 180 180.00 $24,480.00

Remove Automatic Sleeve & Install compression sleeve 0 6 6.00 $2,040.00

Install Guy Insulator 0 4 4.00 $544.00

4/0 MX Install 1465 0 0.00 $0.00

1/0 MX Install 0 0 0.00 $0.00

House Service to retap at pole location 28 0 0.00 $0.00

House Services transferred to new pole loction 0 72 72.00 $19,584.00

MOT 0 15 15.00 $9,693.75

Dumpster (Waste Management) 0 1 1.00 $2,500.00

600 amp Disconnect I&R w/ Jumpers 0 0 0.00 $0.00

Transfer St. Light 0.00 19.00 19.00 $4,522.00

Remove Location 1,2,&3 from scope. MH Hours -1200.00 -1200.00 -$109,200.00

$268,533.15

pnicholas
Highlight

pnicholas
Rectangle

pnicholas
Rectangle

pnicholas
Highlight



Change Order Summary - Circuit 6003

Orginal Contract Amount 6003 $696,596.92

Change Orders to Date 6003 $0.00

Contract Amount Prior to this Change $696,596.92

This Change Order Amount 6003 $1,186,552.35

The New Contract Sum including this Change Order $1,883,149.27

(a) (b) Equals (a) +(b)

Item
Orig SOW (QTY or 

LF)

Additional 

Qty 

Changed/

Replaced

Additional 

to 

Replaced

Total
Extended 

Dollar Amount

Remove Steel pole top pins 126 35 35 $3,570.00

Install Polymer insulator and pole top pin 126 35 35 $7,140.00

Remove Open Wire Secondary 11200 2450 2450 $2,665.60

Remove Wood or Steel Xarms w/ insulators 45 57 57 $19,380.00

Install Fiberglass xarm & Insulator 45 57 57 $36,822.00

R/R Wood Poles (rotten) 0 193 193 $370,550.35

Additional Wood Poles (reduce span width) 0 35 35 $67,198.25

Straighten Wood Pole 0 6 6 $8,160.00

Install down guys and anchors 42 124 124 $42,160.00

Relocate Underground services 0 51 51 $27,744.00

Install additional pole grounding 45 228 228 $62,016.00

Additional Wildlife protection  at additional location 377 60 60 $4,080.00

Remove & Install transformers 0 125 125 $148,750.00

Change out Porcelain Insulators 361 526 526 $143,072.00

Customer Outages - Commercial Manhours 0 420 420 $57,120.00

Remove Automatic Sleeve & Install compression sleeve 0 54 54 $18,360.00

Install Guy Insulator 0 48 48 $6,528.00

4/0 MX Install 5600 1825 1825 $2,978.40

1/0 MX Install 0 0 0 $0.00

House Service to retap at pole location 168 24 24 $3,264.00

House Services transferred to new pole loction 0 257 257 $69,904.00

MOT 0 111 111 $71,733.75

Dumpster (Waste Management) 0 1 1 $2,500.00

600 amp Disconnect I&R w/ Jumpers 0 6 6 $3,240.00

Transfer St. Light 26.00 32.00 32 $7,616.00

$1,186,552.35

pnicholas
Highlight

pnicholas
Highlight

pnicholas
Rectangle

pnicholas
Rectangle



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F

2/25/2021

        C-2283-WO1
        2/16/21 RM
       LWBEU CON-1



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F

MAC for:



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 4

A
F

03
9B

6-
41

B
7-

4E
4C

-B
F

E
1-

45
D

37
6B

26
88

F



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4AF039B6-41B7-4E4C-BFE1-45D376B2688F













EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

Agreement 
Bid Tabulation  

AGENDA DATE:   June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:  Electric Utility 

 

TITLE: 

Agreement with Stuart C. Irby Company for the purchase and delivery of underground cable 

 
SUMMARY: 

Agreement with Stuart C. Irby Company, for the purchase and delivery of underground cable for 
the City’s Electric Utility in the amount not to exceed $516,300.  Materials purchased under this 
agreement are essential elements of the City’s electric utility System Hardening and Reliability 
Improvement Project (SHRIP) and for which bonds were sold in November 2020. 

 

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City issued an Invitation for Bid (IFB 22-106) seeking bids from qualified vendors for the 
supply of Underground Cable for Electrical Distribution Systems. Stuart C. Irby was the only 
vendor to bid and was found to be the most responsive and responsible bidder and was 
recommended for the award. The initial term of the Agreement is for one (1) year and may renew 
for up to four (4) additional one (1) year periods.  

The City is currently implementing the Electric Utility System Hardening and Reliability 
Improvement Program (SHRIP). As part of this project, old underground cables are replaced as 
needed to improve system reliability and storm resiliency. Wire and cables purchased under this 
agreement will be utilized for both Capital and Operations & Maintenance projects and will be 
charged out to the projects accordingly.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Agreement with Stuart C. Irby Company, for the purchase and 
delivery of underground wire and cable at a cost not to exceed $516,300. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 516,300 0 0 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 516,300 0 0 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

401-
0000-
141-02-
10 

Electric Warehouse Parts / 
General 

 12,452,587 6,218,326  516,300 5,702,026 

 

































ITEM # DESCRIPTION QTY Unit Price Total

1 Primary Underground Distribution Cable 30,000ft 17.21$              $516,300.00

$516,300.00

Bid Package Cover Sheet (B1)

Minimum Qualifications (B2)

Reference List (B7)

Substitution Sheet (B5)

Supplement Provided

Schedule of Unit Prices  (B4)

yes

TOTAL BID

yesBid (B3)

yes

n/a

yes

yes

yes

IRBY UTILITIES

City of Lake Worth Beach

IFB# 22-106 Cable for Electrical Distribution Systems

Bid Tab

Scrutinized Companies Certification (B11)

Campaign Contribution Statement (must be submitted) (B10) yes

Affidavit Of Prime Bidder re Non-collusion (B8) yes

Drug Free Certification (B9) yes

Addendum Acknowledgement (if any issued) yes

Small Business and/or Local Business preference documents (B12) no

yesManufacturer Data Sheet (must be submitted)



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
UTILITY MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE:  June 28, 2022 DEPARTMENT:   Customer Service 

 

TITLE: 

Proposed lease of temporary space for Utility Customer Service subject to approval of City Attorney and 
City Manager  

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed lease is to relocate Customer Service Staff Offices and Customer in-person service function 
to nearby leased office space while renovations of the Annex Building’s first floor space are conducted. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The aged facilities and deteriorated facilities of the Annex building where City’s Customer Service functions 
are located are having a deleterious impact on staff and customers alike.  The City is experiencing a 
significant issue with employee retention in Customer Service and is routinely trying to hire to replace 
people who quit within days or months of being hired.  It has been many years since the last renovation 
and the condition of the floors, walls, ceilings, rest rooms, and interiors are unsightly and in need of constant 
repairs. The condition of the space is no longer conducive to a satisfactory work environment, nor does it 
present a good welcoming image to customers. 
 
Staff observations and comments of the Annex building 1st floor in which the Customer Service function 
currently resides include: 
 

 The current interior is not conducive to an efficient Customer Service operation due to limitations of 
existing space and office layout; limited storage for record retention, and housing of customer service 
representatives not being able to fit in one area together with supervisor offices.  

 Due to recent rains, tiles from the ceiling have caved-in in the front office 

 The facility has unsatisfactory bathrooms, musty odor of mold or mildew, regularly experiences rodents 
in the ceiling areas and sub-floors with horrible odors  

 Lead paint and asbestos may be present in some materials 

 Electric wiring upgrades are needed 

 Windows are not impact glass and the building has no generator to sustain operations during power 
outages 

 
Staff has researched and, in some cases visited, alternative locations within the City with a preference for 
maintaining a presence in or close to the downtown corridors. The ideal location will need to accommodate 
the in-person customer service functions and meet the space requirements of the Customer Service team. 
Staff has located a suitable space available for lease a block away where staff and the public can be 
accommodated during the process of renovating the existing space. The proposed office space is furnished 
and the City may be able to buy the furnishings and get years of future use at a lower cost than new 
furniture. The space to be leased is considered “Class B” office space, which is considered average office 
space and is suitable for staff’s intended use. Furthermore, the space would accommodate additional 
Customer Service staff needed to support the City Commissions desire for City staff to handle higher 
percentages of phone calls to Customer Service.  
 
City staff received the proposed lease for the location on June 15, 2022 and the City Attorney’s office is 
just starting to review. The space is available now, which would give staff time to move from the existing 
space. Relocating ahead of the process of redesigning the Annex space will also make it easier to open 
up walls and floors for closer inspections needed to complete the design, bid, construction phases of the 
project while staff maintains continuity of operations at the leased space. 

Included with this item is a Letter of Intent setting forth the basic terms of the proposed lease. 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: FY 2022 Operating costs will be allocated amongst water, 
sewer and electric utility departments via budget transfers. 

 
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 
 
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating Expenditures 33,491 101,964 84,970 0 0 
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0 
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
In-kind Match  0 0 0 0 0 
 
Net Fiscal Impact 33,491 101,964 84,970 0 0 
 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 

 

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Account 
Number 

Department 
Name  

Division  
Name 

Account 
Description 

Project 
Number 

FY22 
Budget 

Current 
Balance 

Budget 
Transfer 

Agenda 
Expenditure 

Balance 
 

401-1240-
531-31.90 

Electric Customer 
Service 

Other 
Professional 
Services 

N/A 0 0 33,491 -33,491 0 

 

If approved, staff requests that authorization be provided to the City Manager to execute the finalized lease 
once the City Attorney and City Manage have approved the same. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove proposed lease of temporary space for Utility Customer Service subject to 
approval of City Attorney and City Manager with the City Manager authorized to execute the finalized lease 
on behalf of the City. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Letter of Intent  
CPH Task Order No. 3 
Lease/Rental Costs 
Draft of Lease Agreement 
 



  500 Northpoint Parkway, Suite 300 

                                                                                                          West Palm Beach, FL 33407 

                                                                                                                                Tel: (561) 471-5353 ∙ Fax (561) 471-5355 

               www.strategicrealty.com 
 

 
Wednesday, June 1, 2022    Via Email: nmcteague@lakeworthbeachfl.gov 

 

 

Attn:   Nanette McTeague 

 City of Lake Worth Beach Utilities 

414 Lake Ave 

 Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

 

RE:  Letter of Intent to Lease  

         The Promenade at Lake Worth, Suites 202-203 and Suite 104  

 120 N Federal Hwy 

         Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460 

  

This non-binding Letter of Intent is for the purpose of outlining the general terms to proceed with respect to 

the lease of real property located in the above referenced project.  

  

Location: Suite # 202-203 and Suite 104 – Approximately 3684 sq. ft. of lease space located in the 

Promenade at Lake Worth, Lake Worth Beach, Florida.  

  

Landlord: HH Promenade, LLC  

  

Tenant:  City of Lake Worth Beach Utilities 

    

Lease Term:  Two (2) years with the option to terminate after one year with three months prior written 

notice. 

 

Schedule of Rents: Base Rent $19.00/SF or $5,833.00/month plus estimated CAM and Expenses currently 

$6.12/SF. 

 

Additional Charges: Tenant shall pay its pro rata share of the real estate taxes, building/general liability 

insurance, and common area maintenance charges.  Actual pro rata share will be square footage of Leased 

Premises divided by total leasable square feet in building estimated to be $6.12 per sq. ft. per year or 

$1,878.84/month. 

 

Total Monthly Rent: Year 1 Base Rent:   $5,833.00 

   CAM and Add’l Charges ($6.12/SF):     $1,878.84 

    

Total Rent:    $7,711.84    

  

  Commencement Date:   July 1, 2022 

  

Advance Rent & Security Deposit: First month’s rent plus sales tax and Security Deposit of $8000.00 

   

Utilities: Tenant shall be responsible for paying the cost of all utilities directly to the appropriate 

governmental authorities relating to the Leased Premises.  

  

Use: Tenant may use the Leased Premises for (i) the operation of an Administration Office for Lake Worth 

Utilities ("Tenant Use").    

  

Landlord Work:  Space to be delivered clean.  Plumbing, HVAC and electrical systems to be in good 

  C o m m e r c i a l  R e a l  E s t a t e  

http://www.strategicrealty.com/


working order, otherwise tenant to take space as is. 

 

Tenant Work: Tenant to construct premises for its intended use, all work to have Landlords prior written 

consent.  

 

Guaranty: N/A  

  

Confidentiality: Landlord and its partners, agents, and representatives will not disclose the subject matter 

or terms of this letter or the transaction contemplated herein to anyone other than Landlord's consultants, 

and prospective lenders, unless written consent is obtained by Tenant, which written consent may be 

withheld at Tenant's sole discretion.  

  

 

 

  Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that the proposal is not a lease, and that it is intended only as the basis 

for the preparation of a lease.  With the exception of the confidentiality provisions contained herein, this letter of 

intent shall not be binding upon the parties until a formal lease has been negotiated and executed, and either party 

shall have the right to terminate negotiations at any time prior to lease execution, without liability.  If the foregoing 

terms are sufficient to allow the preparation of the necessary documents and to serve as a framework for further 

discussions, please sign in the space provided below.  

  

Sincerely,  

  

Strategic Realty Services, LLC  

           ___________________

 Christopher F. Fleming          Date 

  

  

Christopher F. Fleming      ________________________________ 

Sr. Broker/Associate       Tenant 

  

  

 



DocuSign Envelope ID: E259BAD2-732A-4AF3-8C97-5198CEEB809D

1/18/2022

C-1722-3
     DNG



DocuSign Envelope ID: E259BAD2-732A-4AF3-8C97-5198CEEB809D



DocuSign Envelope ID: E259BAD2-732A-4AF3-8C97-5198CEEB809D



DocuSign Envelope ID: E259BAD2-732A-4AF3-8C97-5198CEEB809D



DocuSign Envelope ID: E259BAD2-732A-4AF3-8C97-5198CEEB809D



DocuSign Envelope ID: E259BAD2-732A-4AF3-8C97-5198CEEB809D



Landlord:

Tenant:

Leasing Term:

Effective Date:

$19 p/sq ft 1st mth $6.12 p/sq ft Total

Months Base Rent
Security 

Deposit
CAM

Furniture 

Lease
Monthly Cost

Electric ‐ Meter 

%

Water ‐ Meter 

%

Sewer ‐ Meter 

%

Jul‐22 5,833$          8,000$          1,879$        785 16,497$         

Aug‐22 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Sep‐22 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

33,491$         

Oct‐22 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Nov‐22 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Dec‐22 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Jan‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Feb‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Mar‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Apr‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

May‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Jun‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Jul‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Aug‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Sep‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Oct‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Nov‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Dec‐23 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Jan‐24 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Feb‐24 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Mar‐24 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Apr‐24 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

May‐24 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Jun‐24 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Jul‐24 5,833$          ‐                1,879$        785 8,497$            

Total 145,825$     8,000$         46,971$      19,625$       220,421$       

FY 2022 17,499          8,000            5,637          2,355            33,491$         

FY 2023 69,996          ‐                22,546        9,420            101,962$       

FY 2024 58,330          ‐                18,788        7,850            84,968$         

Total 145,825$     8,000$         46,971$      19,625$       220,421$       

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

HH Promenade, LLC

City of Lake Worth Beach Utilities

2 years

July 1st 2022

Customer Services Cost of Rental Space
Total  Cost Allocation

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost Analysis by Fiscal Years

FY
 2
0
2
2

FY
 2
0
2
3

FY
 2
0
2
4

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer

Cost allocated to Electric, Water & Sewer



 
 

 
LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
 

between 
 
 

HH Promenade, L.L.C. 
a Florida Limited Liability Company 

 
 
 

and 

 

City of Lake Worth Beach Utilities 
 
 

Dated: 2022 
 

Suite: 202, 203 and 104 
 

 

 

120 N Federal Highway 
Lake Worth, FL 33460

DRAFT



SUMMARY OF LEASE 
 

THIS DOCUMENT IS MERELY A SUMMARY AND ANY PROVISIONS OF THE LEASE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS 
BETWEEN LANDLORD AND TENANT SHALL PREVAIL OVER CONFLICTING PROVISIONS CONTAINED HEREIN. 

 

(A) LANDLORD'S MAILING ADDRESS:  HH Promenade, LLC 
       c/o Strategic Realty Services, LLC 
       500 Northpoint Parkway, STE 300 

       West Palm Beach, FL 33407 
    

 

(B) TENANT'S NAME:     City of Lake Worth Beach Utilities 
            

 

          MAILING ADDRESS:   414 Lake Avenue 
  Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

 

(C) DEMISED PREMISES:    Suite 202, 203 and 104 of The Promenade at Lake Worth 

   120 N Federal Highway 

   Lake Worth, Florida  33460 
 
      RENTABLE SQUARE FOOTAGE:   3684 Rentable Square Feet  

 

(D) TERM:      Two (2)          years 
 
 OPTION TERMS:    N/A    

 

(E) LEASE COMMENCEMENT DATE:   July 1, 2022 
 

 RENT COMMENCEMENT DATE:   August 1, 2022 
 

 OCCUPANCY DATE:    July 1, 2022 

 
      EXPIRATION DATE:    July 31, 2024  
 

(F)   BASE RENT:                 $19.00 Per Square Foot  

 
      LEASE TERM  ANNUAL RENT  MONTHLY INSTALLMENT 
  
 *24 Months  $69,996.00  Base Rent    $5,833.00      

 
Additional Rent $1,878.84  

 
Sales Tax  N/A  

 

TOTAL    $7,711.84      
 
 

(G) INTERIM OPERATING EXPENSES:    $6.12 Per Square Foot 

.12 

(H) SECURITY/DAMAGE DEPOSIT:     $7,800.00 

 

(I) PERMITTED USE:     Corporate Offices 
 
(J) EXHIBITS:     The following exhibits attached to this Lease are hereby 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 
 

EXHIBIT "A" -  Legal Description 
EXHIBIT "B" -  Floor Plan 

EXHIBIT "C" -  Site Plan 
EXHIBIT "D" -  Estoppel Certificate 
EXHIBIT "E" -  Tenant Rules and Regulations 

EXHIBIT "F" -  Electrical Service Agreement 
EXHIBIT “G” - Sign Criteria 

 
Please make all checks payable to:  HH Promenade, LLC             
       

PLEASE INCLUDE HH Promenade, LLC, AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED ON ALL INSURANCE POLICIES. 

DRAFT



 
 Page 3 of 17 

 

 
 

 
LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the "Lease") is made and entered into the  _____        day 

of June, 2022, by and between HH Promenade, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability Company (hereinafter referred to as "Landlord") 

and _City of Lake Worth Beach Utilities,  a governmental entity in the State of Florida(hereinafter referred to as "Tenant"). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
THAT LANDLORD, in consideration of the rents and agreements hereafter promised and agreed by Tenant to 

be paid and performed, does hereby lease to Tenant, and Tenant does hereby lease from Landlord, the real property described 
herein, subject to the following terms. 
 

ARTICLE I 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY; TERM 

 
Section 1.1  Description of Property.  Landlord hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant hereby leases from 

Landlord the following space:  approximately 3684 rentable square feet (hereinafter called the "Demised Premises" or 
"Premises") approximately as shown on Exhibit "A" and made a part of this Lease, Suite 202-203 and 104, in the building 

known as The Promenade at Lake Worth, located at 120 N Federal Highway, Lake Worth, FL 33460 (hereinafter called the 
"Building"), as described in Exhibit "B" and depicted on the site plan attached hereto as Exhibit "C", together with the right 

to use in common with other tenants of the Building, their invitees, customers and employees, all common facilities contained 
in the Building and parking areas.  All of the land and real property underlying the Building or adjacent thereto, with all 
improvements thereto including the Building, and used in connection with the operation of the Building shall be referred to 

herein as the "Property". 
 

Section 1.2  Term. Tenant shall have and hold the Premises for a term two (2) years (hereinafter referred to 

as the "Term" or "Lease Term"), commencing on  July 1, 2022 (the "Commencement Date") and expiring on July 31, 
2024 (the "Expiration Date"). *After July 1, 2023, Tenant shall have the right to cancel the lease with ninety (90) 
days prior written notice to Landlord.   Tenant agrees that it will execute, prior to occupancy, an Estoppel Certificate in 

the form attached hereto as Exhibit "D", certifying said dates. Tenant's failure or refusal to execute said Estoppel Certificate 
shall constitute a default hereunder. 

 
ARTICLE II 

BASE RENT 
 

Section 2.1  Base Rent; Late Charge; Sales Tax.  Tenant agrees to pay Landlord an aggregate base rent for the 
first year of the Lease Term commencing upon Landlord’s delivery of space to tenant in the condition required hereunder in 
the amount of $69,996.00 (the "Base Rent"), payable in twelve (12) equal monthly installments of $5,833.00    in advance 
of the first day of each and every month during the first year of the Lease Term.  The first month's Base Rent shall be paid 

simultaneously with the execution of this Lease.  In addition, Tenant shall be responsible for the payment of Additional Rent 
as provided in Article III below (the Base Rent and Additional Rent shall sometimes be collectively referred to as the "Rent").  
In the event any monthly Rent payment is not paid within ten (10) days after it is due, Tenant agrees to pay a late charge of 

ten (10%) percent of the amount of the payment due.  Tenant further agrees that the late charge imposed is fair and 
reasonable, complies with all laws, regulations and statutes, and constitutes an agreement between Landlord and Tenant as 
to the estimated compensation for costs and administrative expenses incurred by Landlord due to the late payment of Rent 

to Landlord by Tenant.  Tenant further agrees that the late charge assessed pursuant to this Lease is not interest, and the 
late charge assessed does not constitute a lender or borrower/creditor relationship between Landlord and Tenant, and may 

be treated by Landlord as Additional Rent owed by Tenant.  Tenant shall pay to Landlord all sales or use taxes pertaining to 
the Rent (currently 6%), which shall be remitted by Landlord to the Florida Department of Revenue.   

 
Section 2.2  Rental Adjustment.  Commencing on the 1st Rent Commencement anniversary of this Lease, and 

each and every anniversary thereafter, including any option periods, the Base Rent shall increase by the greater of CPI or 

five percent (5%) over the previous year's Base Rent. 
 

Section 2.3  Payment Without Notice or Demand.  The Rent called for in this Lease shall be paid to Landlord 

without notice or demand, and without counterclaim, offset, deduction, abatement, suspension, deferment, diminution or 
reduction (except as otherwise expressly provided herein).  Tenant hereby waives all rights now or hereafter conferred by 

statute or otherwise to quit, terminate or surrender this Lease or the Premises or any part thereof, or to any abatement, 
suspensions, deferment, diminution or reduction of the Rent on account of any such circumstances or occurrence; provided, 
however, if Tenant is deprived of the use of the Premises on account of the gross negligence or intentional conduct of 

Landlord, its agents, employees or contractors, rent shall abate until such interference shall cease. 

 

DRAFT



Section 2.4  Place of Payment.  All payments of Rent shall be made and paid by Tenant to HH Promenade, LLC, 
500 Northpoint Parkway, STE 300 West Palm Beach, FL 33407, or at such other place as Landlord may, from time to time, 

designate in writing to Tenant.  All Rent shall be payable in current legal tender of the United States, as the same is then by 
law constituted.  Any extension, indulgence, or waiver granted or permitted by Landlord in the time, manner or mode of 
payment of Rent, upon any one (1) occasion, shall not be construed as a continuing extension, indulgence or waiver, and 

shall not preclude Landlord from demanding strict compliance herewith 
 

 

 
ARTICLE III 

ADDITIONAL RENT 
 

Section 3.1  Additional Rent.  In addition to the Base Rent, Tenant shall pay as "Additional Rent" its proportionate 
share ("Tenant's Proportionate Share") of the Operating Expenses (as herein defined) of the Building and the Property and 

the full cost of Tenant's management fee.  Additional Rent shall be paid to Landlord in accordance with the following 
provisions: 

 

1.  Landlord shall furnish to Tenant prior to thirty (30) days after the beginning of each calendar year, including 

the first calendar year, a budget setting forth Landlord's estimate of Operating Expenses for the upcoming year.  The 
Operating Expenses shall be determined as though the Building were occupied at the actual occupancy rate or at an occupancy 
rate of ninety five (95%) percent, whichever is higher.  Tenant shall pay to Landlord, on the first day of each month as 

Additional Rent, an amount equal to one-twelfth (1/12th) of Tenant's Proportionate Share of Landlord's estimate of the 
Operating Expenses for that calendar year.  If there shall be any increase or decrease in the Operating Expenses for any year, 
whether during or after such year, Landlord shall furnish to Tenant a revised budget and the Operating Expenses shall be 

adjusted and paid or credited, as the case may be.  If a calendar year ends after the expiration or termination of this Lease, 
the Additional Rent payable hereunder shall be prorated to correspond to that portion of the calendar year occurring within 
the Term of this Lease. 

 
2.  Within a reasonable period of time after the end of each calendar year, Landlord shall furnish to Tenant an 

operating statement showing the actual Operating Expenses incurred for the preceding calendar year.  Tenant shall either 

receive a refund or be assessed an additional sum based upon the difference between Tenant's Proportionate Share of the 
actual Operating Expenses and the Additional Rent payments made by Tenant  during said year.  Any additional sum owed 

by Tenant to Landlord shall be paid within ten (10) days of receipt of assessment.  Any refund owed by Landlord to Tenant 
shall be credited toward Tenant's next month's rental payment or promptly refunded to Tenant if such overpayment occurs 
at the end of the term.  Each operating statement given by Landlord shall be conclusive and binding upon Tenant unless, 

within thirty (30) days after Tenant's receipt thereof, Tenant shall notify Landlord that it disputes the accuracy of said 
operating statement, in which event Tenant shall have the right to examine the books and records of Landlord to determine 
the accuracy of said charges.  Failure of Landlord to submit the written statement referred to herein shall not waive any rights 

of Landlord, unless such statement is not submitted within one year from the end of the prior calendar year. 

 

3.  Landlord's "Operating Expenses", as calculated pursuant to Section 3.1.1 above, shall mean expenses relating 
to the operation and maintenance of the Building and the Property, and all amenities and appurtenances relating thereto, 

including, without limitation, the following: 
 
(a) reasonable and customary, wages and salaries of all persons engaged in the maintenance and operation of the 

Building and Property (and pro rata to the extent such persons do not work solely for the Building); 
 

  (b) social security taxes and all other taxes which may be levied against Landlord; 

 

  (c) medical and general benefits for all Building employees, pension payments and other fringe benefits; 

 

  (d) administrative expenses and charges (but Landlord shall not charge both an administrative fee and a management 

fee); 

 

  (e) all insurance premiums; 

 

  (f) stand-by sprinkler charges, water charges and sewer charges; 

 

  (g) electricity and fuel used in the heating, ventilation, air-conditioning, lighting and all other operations of the common 
areas of the Building; 

 

  (h) trash removal from the Building 

 

  (i) painting of all common areas in the Building and Property; 

 

  (j) window cleaning and related equipment and supplies; 

 

  (k) maintenance and repair of the Building and Property; 

DRAFT



 
 Page 5 of 17 

 

 

         (l)        maintenance and service contracts; 

 

  (m) tools, equipment and supplies necessary for the performance of repairs and maintenance (which are not required to 
be capitalized for federal income tax purposes); 

 

  (n) maintenance and repair of all mechanical and electrical equipment in the Building; 

 

  (o) maintenance and repair of elevators, restrooms, lobbies, hallways and other common areas of the Building; 

 

  (p) maintenance of pavement, curbs, walkways, lighting facilities, landscaping, driveways, parking areas and drainage 
areas upon the Property; 

 

  (q) personal property taxes; 

 

  (r) real estate taxes assessed against the Building and the Property.  The term "real estate taxes" shall mean any tax or 
assessment levied, assessed or imposed at any time by any governmental authority upon or against the Building or 

the Property or any part thereof, any tax or assessment levied, or any franchise, income, profit or other tax or 
governmental imposition levied, assessed or imposed against or upon Landlord in substitution in whole or in part for 
any tax or assessment against or upon the Building and the Property or any part thereof; real estate taxes shall not 

include any inheritance, income, gross receipts, transfer or other tax based upon the income of Landlord; 

 

  (s) assessments for public improvements imposed against the Building and the Property and assessments of the 
Association (defined below);  

 
  (t) a reasonable amortization (amortized in accordance with general accepted accounting principles) cost due to any 

capital expenditures incurred to reduce or limit Operating Expenses of the Property and Building, to provide electronic 

security for the Building, or which may now or hereafter be required by governmental authority or by Landlord's 
insurance carrier; 

 

  (u) all other costs and expenses which would be considered as an expense of maintaining, operating or repairing the 
Building and the Property. 

 

4. "Tenant's Proportionate Share" shall, at any given time, be defined as that fraction having as a numerator 
the total rentable square footage leased hereunder at said time, and having as a denominator the total rentable square 

footage of The Promenade at Lake Worth. 

 

 

Section 3.2  Interim Operating Expenses.  During the period from the Rent Commencement Date through the 
following twelve (12) months, Tenant shall pay as Interim Operating Expenses $6.12 per square foot per year, payable 

monthly as Additional Rent, which is merely an estimate of the actual Interim Operating Expenses for such period.  After the 
end of the calendar year, Landlord shall compute the actual Operating Expenses incurred during such period.  Tenant shall 

either receive a refund or be assessed an additional sum based upon the difference between Tenant's Proportionate Share of 
the actual Operating Expenses and the payments of Interim Operating Expenses made by Tenant during such period. Any 
additional sum owed by Tenant to Landlord shall be paid within ten (10) days of receipt of assessment.  Any additional sum 

owed by Landlord to Tenant shall be credited toward Tenant's next month's rental payment. 
 

ARTICLE IV 

SECURITY/DAMAGE DEPOSIT 
 

Section 4.1  Security/Damage Deposit.  Simultaneously with the execution of this Lease, Tenant shall pay the 

sum of $7,800.00 to be held by Landlord as a damage deposit and/or as security for the performance by Tenant of all of 
the terms, covenants and conditions hereof and the payment of Rent or any other sum due Landlord hereunder.  Following 
the default by Tenant hereunder, Landlord  shall have the right to apply all or any part of the security deposit against:  (a) 

unreasonable wear and tear of the Premises; (b) loss or damage to the Premises or other property of the Landlord caused by 
Tenant, Tenant's employees, agents invitee, or licensees; (c) the cost of restoring the Premises, except for reasonable wear 
and tear, to the same condition it was in at the time Tenant began occupancy thereof; and (d) Rent payments which remain 

due and owing beyond any applicable grace period.  Landlord shall not be limited in pursuing Landlord's remedies against 
Tenant for costs, losses or damages to the Premises or to any other property of  Landlord for any such costs, losses or 
damages which are in excess of  the above described security deposit amount.  Such security deposit shall bear no interest 

and may be commingled with other security deposits or funds of Landlord. The security deposit shall be refunded to Tenant 
within thirty days after the expiration of the term. 

 
 

DRAFT



ARTICLE V 
USE OF PREMISES 

 
Section 5.1 Use of Premises. Tenant shall use the Premises for governmental corporate offices, and for no other 

purpose without first obtaining the written consent of Landlord.  Tenant will not use or permit the use of the Premises or any 

part thereof for any unlawful purpose, or in violation of any and all applicable ordinances, laws, rules or regulations of any 
governmental body, the Association or of Landlord provided for in Exhibit "E" herein, and will not do or permit any act which 
would constitute a public or private nuisance or waste or which would be a nuisance or annoyance or cause damage to 

Landlord or Landlord's other tenants or which would invalidate any policies of insurance or increase the premiums thereof, 
now or hereafter written on the Building and/or the Property. 

 
ARTICLE VI 
PARKING 

 
Section 6.1  Parking.  There shall be available nonexclusive parking at the Building. 

 

ARTICLE VII 
PREPARATION OF THE PREMISES 

 

Section 7.1  Leasehold Improvements.  The Premises shall be delivered in broom clean condition, free of 

hazardous materials and the personal property of any prior tenant, and with all utilities in good working order. Such 
other facilities, materials and work which may be undertaken by or for the account and at the expense of Tenant to 
equip, decorate and furnish the Premises for Tenant's occupancy are hereinafter referred to as "Tenant's Work". 

 
 

Section 7.2  Completion by Landlord.  Intentionally Deleted 
 

Section 7.3  Delay by Tenant.   Intentionally Deleted 

 
Section 7.4  Acceptance of Premises.  Tenant acknowledges that Landlord has not made any representations or 

warranties with respect to the condition of the Premises and neither Landlord nor any assignee of Landlord shall be liable for 
any latent defect therein.  The taking of possession of the Premises by Tenant shall be conclusive evidence that the Premises 
were in good and satisfactory condition at the time such possession was taken.  If Landlord shall give Tenant permission to 

enter into  possession of the Premises prior to the Commencement Date, such possession or occupancy shall be deemed to 
be upon all the terms, covenants, conditions, and provisions of this Lease, including the execution of an estoppel certificate. 
Nothing herein shall limit, restrict or modify Landlord’s repair obligations hereunder. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

LANDLORD AND TENANT OBLIGATIONS 

 
Section 8.1  Tenant's Obligations.   Landlord shall perform, at Tenant's expense throughout the Lease Term, any 

repairs to the fixtures and appurtenances within the Premises.  Said expenses shall be reasonable, and in addition to the 

Operating Expenses set forth in Section 3.1 above.  Tenant shall be responsible for all repairs, the need for which arises out 
of: (a) the performance or existence of Tenant's Work or alterations; (b) the installation, use or operation of Tenant's Property 
(defined below) in the Premises; (c) the moving of Tenant's Property in or out of the Building; (d) the act, omission, misuse 

or neglect of Tenant or any of its subtenants, employees, agents, contractors or invitees.  Tenant shall also be responsible 
for the replacement of all scratched, damaged or broken doors and glass in and about the Premises, the maintenance and 

replacement of wall and floor coverings in the Premises, and for the repair and maintenance of all sanitary and electrical 
fixtures therein and exclusively serving the Premises.  All such repairs shall be performed at such times and in such a manner 
as shall cause the least interference with Tenant's use of the Premises, the operation of the central systems of the Building 

and the use of the Building by other tenants. Tenant shall not be required to furnish any services or facilities to, or to make 
any repairs to or replacements or alterations of the Premises where necessitated due to the gross negligence or intentional 
acts of Landlord, its agents and employees.   

 
 

 

Section 8.2  Landlord's Obligations.  Landlord shall be obligated to keep and maintain the common areas of the 
Building, and the structural elements and all systems and facilities serving the Premises, in good working order and shall 
make all repairs as and when needed in or about the common areas and the Premises, except for those repairs for which 

Tenant is responsible pursuant to any of the provisions of this Lease.  Landlord shall not be liable for any damage to Tenant's 
Property caused by (a) water from bursting or leaking pipes, or waste water about the Property; (b) from an intentional or 
negligent act of any other tenant or occupant of the Building or the Property; (c) fire, hurricane or other acts of God; (d) riots 

or vandals; or (e) from any other cause not directly attributable to the negligent or wrongful act of Landlord, its agents or 
employees.  Landlord shall not be required to furnish any services or facilities to, or to make any repairs to or replacements 

or alterations of the Premises where necessitated due to the negligence or intentional acts of Tenant, its agents and 
employees, or other tenants, their agents or employees.   
 

Section 8.3  Floor Loads; Noise and Vibration.  Tenant shall not place a load upon any floor of the Premises 
which exceeds the load per square foot which such floor was designed to carry or which is allowed by law.  Business 
machines and mechanical equipment belonging to Tenant which cause noise, electrical interference or vibration that may be 

transmitted to the structure of the Building or to the Premises to such a degree as to be objectionable to Landlord or other 

DRAFT



 
 Page 7 of 17 

 

tenants in the Building, shall, at Tenant's expense, be placed and maintained by Tenant in settings of cork, rubber, or 
spring-type vibration eliminators sufficient to eliminate such noise, electrical interference or vibration. 

 
Section 8.4  Electricity and Telephone.  Tenant's use of electrical energy in the Premises shall not, at any time, 

exceed the capacity of any of the electrical conductors and equipment in or otherwise serving the Premises. In order to ensure 

that such capacity is not exceeded and to avert possible adverse effects upon the Building's electric service, Tenant shall not, 
without Landlord's prior written consent in each instance, connect major equipment to the Building's electric distribution 
system or telephone system, or make any alteration or addition to the electric system of the Premises existing on the 

Commencement Date.  Tenant's electrical usage under this Lease contemplates only the use of normal and customary office 
and computer equipment.  In the event Tenant wishes to install any office equipment which uses substantial additional 

amounts of electricity, then Tenant agrees that Landlord's consent is required before the installation of such additional office 
equipment. Tenant shall be solely liable for electricity and telephone expenses relating to the Premises.  Tenant's electrical 
service shall be separately metered, per Electrical Service Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit F. 

 
Section 8.5  Janitorial Service.  Tenant, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, shall be responsible for providing its 

own janitorial service to the Premises. 

 
Section 8.6  Right  to  Stop  Services.  Landlord reserves the right, without any liability to Tenant and without 

affecting Tenant's covenants and obligations hereunder, to stop service of the heating, air conditioning, electric, sanitary, or 

other Building systems serving the Premises, or to stop any other services required by Landlord under this Lease, whenever 
and for so long as may be necessary, by reason of accidents, emergencies, strikes, or the making of repairs or changes which 
Landlord is required to make pursuant to this Lease, by law or in good faith deems necessary, and Landlord shall not be held 

liable for delays in the restoration of such services resulting from difficulty in securing proper supplies of fuel, steam, water, 
electricity, labor, supplies, or any other cause beyond Landlord's reasonable control; provided, however, unless required by 
law, any such interference lasting more than five business days shall result in an abatement of rent.    

 
ARTICLE IX 

LANDLORD'S AND TENANT'S PROPERTY 

 
Section 9.1  Landlord's Property.  All fixtures, equipment, improvements and appurtenances attached to or built 

into the Premises at the commencement of or during the Term of this Lease, whether or not by or at the expense of Tenant, 
shall be and remain a part of the Premises, and shall be deemed the property of Landlord ("Landlord's Property") and shall 
not be removed by Tenant except as otherwise specifically set forth herein.  Further, any carpeting or other personal property 

in the Premises on the Commencement Date, shall not be removed by Tenant. 
 

Section 9.2  Tenant's Property.  All moveable partitions, business and trade fixtures, machinery and equipment, 

communications equipment and office equipment, whether or not attached to or built into the Premises, which are installed 
in the Premises by or for the account of Tenant without expense to Landlord and which can be removed without structural 
damage to the Building, and all furniture, furnishings and other articles of moveable personal property owned by Tenant and 

located in the Premises (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Tenant's Property") shall be and shall remain the property of 
Tenant and may be removed by Tenant at any time during the Term of this Lease.  In the event Tenant's Property is so 
removed, Tenant shall repair or pay the cost of repairing any damage to the Premises or to the Building resulting from the 

installation and/or removal thereof and restore the Premises to the same physical condition and layout as they existed at the 
time Tenant was given possession of the Premises, reasonable wear and tear excepted.  Any equipment or other property for 
which Landlord shall have granted any allowance or credit to Tenant shall not be deemed to have been installed by or for the 

account of Tenant without expense to Landlord, shall not be considered Tenant's Property and shall be deemed the property 
of Landlord. 

 
Section 9.3  Removal of Tenant's Property.  At or before the Expiration Date of this Lease, or within five (5) 

days after any earlier termination hereof, Tenant, at its expense, shall remove from the Premises all of Tenant's Property 

(except such items thereof as Landlord shall have expressly permitted to remain, which property shall become the property 
of Landlord), and Tenant shall repair any damage to the Premises or the Building resulting from any installation and/or 
removal of Tenant's Property, and shall restore the Premises to the same physical condition and layout as they existed at the 

time Tenant was given possession of the Premises, reasonable wear and tear excepted.  Any other items of Tenant's Property 
which shall remain in the Premises after the Expiration Date of this Lease, or after a period of five (5) days following an earlier 
termination date, may, at the option of Landlord, be deemed to have been abandoned, and in such case, such items may be 

retained by Landlord.  Landlord may request Tenant to remove and pay to Landlord the cost of repairing any damage to the 
Premises or the Building resulting from any installation and/or removal of Tenant's Property and the cost of restoring the 
Premises to the same physical condition and layout as they existed at the time Tenant was given possession of the Premises, 

reasonable wear and tear excepted. 
 

Section 9.4  Landlord's Lien and Security Interest.  As security for the performance of Tenant's obligations 

under this Lease, Tenant hereby grants to Landlord a security interest in and Landlord's lien upon all of Tenant's Property 
located in the Premises.   

 
 
 

 

DRAFT



ARTICLE X 
INSURANCE 

Section 10.1  Tenant's Insurance.   
1.  Tenant shall, during the Term of this Lease, maintain insurance against public liability, including that from 

personal injury or property damage in or about the Premises resulting from the occupation, use or operation of the Premises, 

insuring both Landlord and Tenant, in amount of not less than One Million ($1,000,000) Dollars Combined Single Limit for 
both bodily injury and property damage. 
 

2.  Tenant shall maintain insurance upon all property in the Premises owned by Tenant, or for which Tenant is 
legally liable, and shall provide Landlord with evidence of same.  The insurance specified herein shall provide protection 

against perils included within the standard Florida form of fire and extended coverage insurance policy, together with 
insurance against vandalism and malicious mischief. 
 

3.  All policies of insurance provided for in Section 10.1 shall be issued in a form acceptable to Landlord by 
insurance companies with general policyholder's rating of "A-" as rated in the most current available "Best's Insurance 
Reports", and qualified to do business in Florida.  Each and every such policy: 

 

 (a)   shall be issued in the name of Tenant and liability policies including that from personal injury and property damage 
shall include Landlord and any other parties in interest designated in writing by notice from Landlord to Tenant as 
additional insureds; 

 

 (b) shall be for the mutual and joint benefit and protection of Landlord and Tenant and any such other parties in interest 
named as additional insureds; 

 

 (c) shall (or a certificate thereof shall) be delivered to Landlord and any such other parties in interest within ten (10) 
days before delivery of possession of the Premises to Tenant and thereafter, within thirty (30) days prior to the 

expiration of each policy, and as often as any such policy shall expire or terminate, renewal or additional policies shall 
be procured and maintained in like manner and to like extent; 

 

 (d) shall contain a provision that the insurer will endeavor to give to Landlord and such other parties in interest at least 
thirty (30) days notice in writing in advance of any cancellation, termination or lapse, or the effective date of any 
reduction in the amount of insurance; 

 

 (e) shall be written as a primary policy which does not contribute to and is not in excess of coverage which Landlord may 
carry; and 

 

 (f) shall contain a provision that Landlord and any such other parties in interest, although named as an insured, shall 

nevertheless be entitled to recover under said policies for any loss occasioned to it, its servants, agents and employees 
by reason of the negligence of Tenant. 

 
4.  Any insurance provided for in Section 10.1 may be maintained by means of a policy or policies of blanket 

insurance, provided, however, that:  (i) Landlord and any other parties in interest from time to time designated by Landlord 

to Tenant shall be named as additional insureds thereunder as their interests may appear in any liability policy; (ii) the 
coverage afforded Landlord and any such other parties in interest will not be reduced or diminished by reason of the use of 
such blanket policy of insurance; and (iii) the requirements set forth in this ARTICLE X are otherwise satisfied. 

 
5.  These insurance requirements are subject to modification in the event any Superior Mortgagee (hereafter 

defined) of Landlord requires different insurance.  In such event, the reasonable requirements of such Superior Mortgagee 
shall control. 
 

Section 10.2  Destruction of the Premises or Building.  If, during the Term hereof, the Premises and/or the 
Building are damaged by reason of fire or other casualty, Tenant shall give immediate notice thereof to Landlord.  Subject to 
the prior rights of any Superior Mortgagee, Landlord shall restore the Premises and/or the Building to substantially the same 

condition they were in immediately before said destruction. If, in Landlord's reasonable opinion, the restoration can be 
accomplished within 120 working days after the date Landlord receives notice of the destruction, such destruction shall not 
serve to terminate this Lease.  If, in Landlord's reasonable opinion, the restoration cannot be performed within the time stated 

in this Section, then within ninety (90) days after the parties determine that the restoration cannot be completed within said 
time, Landlord may terminate this Lease upon thirty (30) days notice to Tenant.  If Landlord fails to terminate this Lease and 
restoration is permitted under existing laws, Landlord shall restore the Premises and/or the Building, within a reasonable 

period of time, and this Lease shall continue in full force and effect.  Rent shall be abated during the period in which the 
Premises (or portion thereof on a prorated basis) are rendered untenantable as a result of such damage, unless said damage 
was caused by the negligence or intentional wrongful act of Tenant or its employees, agents or invitees.  Should Landlord 

elect to terminate this Lease, the entire insurance proceeds shall be and remain the outright property of Landlord, subject to 
the prior rights of any Superior Mortgagee, and except any proceeds received for Tenant's Property. If Landlord, for any 

reason, fails to restore the Premises and the Building within 180 days from the date of such fire or other casualty, Tenant 
shall have the right to terminate this Lease. 
 

 

DRAFT



 
 Page 9 of 17 

 

ARTICLE XI 
ALTERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION LIENS 

 
Section 11.1  Alterations by Tenant.  No alterations shall be made by Tenant unless the following conditions 

are met: 

 

 (a) Tenant shall have received the prior written consent of Landlord; 

 

 (b) all such alterations or improvements shall be performed by Landlord at Tenant's expense, or, at Tenant’s election, by 
a contractor reasonably approved by Landlord; 

 
(c) Tenant shall have procured all permits, licenses and other authorizations required for the lawful and proper 

undertaking thereof; 

 

 (d) all alterations when completed shall be of such a nature as not to (i) reduce or otherwise adversely affect the value 
of the Premises; (ii) diminish the general utility or change the general character thereof; (iii) result in an increase of 
the Operating Expenses, (iv) adversely affect the mechanical, electrical, plumbing, security or other such systems of 
the Building or the Premises; or (v) be of a structural nature; and  

 

 (e) all alterations made by Tenant shall remain on and be surrendered with the Premises on expiration or earlier 

termination of this Lease.   

 
Section 11.2  Construction, Materialmen's and Laborer's Liens.   

 
Tenant agrees that it will make full and prompt payment of all sums necessary to pay for the cost of repairs, alterations, 

improvements, changes or other work done by Tenant to the Premises and further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 
Landlord from and against any  and all such costs and liabilities incurred by Tenant, and against any and all construction, 
materialman's or laborer's liens arising out  of or from such work or the cost thereof which may be asserted, claimed or 

charged against the Premises or the Building or site on which it is located. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this 
Lease, the interest of Landlord in the Premises shall not be subject to liens for improvements made by or for Tenant, whether 

or not the same shall be made or done in accordance with any agreement between Landlord and Tenant, and it is specifically 
understood and agreed that in no event shall Landlord or the interest of Landlord in the Premises be liable for or subjected 
to any construction, materialmen's or laborer's liens for improvements or work made by or for Tenant; and this Lease 

specifically prohibits the subjecting of Landlord's  interest in the Premises to any construction, materialmen's or laborer's liens 
for improvements made by Tenant or for which Tenant is responsible for payment under the terms of this Lease.  All persons 
dealing with Tenant are hereby placed upon notice of this provision.  In the event any notice or claim of lien shall be  asserted 

of record against the interest of Landlord in the Premises or Building or the site on which it is located on account of or growing 
out of any improvement or work done by or for Tenant, or any person claiming by, through or under Tenant, for improvements 
or work the cost of which is the responsibility of Tenant, Tenant agrees to have such notice of claim of lien canceled and 

discharged of record as a claim against the interest of Landlord in the Premises, the Building or the Property (either by 
payment or bond as permitted by law), within ten (10) days after notice to Tenant by Landlord, and in the event Tenant shall 
fail to do so, Tenant shall be considered in default under this Lease. 

 
ARTICLE XII 

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 

 
Section 12.1  Tenant's Transfer.   

 
(a)  Tenant shall not voluntarily assign or encumber its interest in this Lease or in the Premises, or sublease all or 

any part of the Premises, or allow any other person or entity (except Tenant's authorized representatives) to occupy or use 

all or any part of the Premises, without first obtaining Landlord's written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.  Any assignment, encumbrance or sublease without Landlord's written consent shall be voidable and, at Landlord's 
election, shall constitute a default hereunder.  No consent to any assignment, encumbrance, or sublease shall constitute a 

further waiver of the provisions of this Section. 
 

(b)  If Tenant is a partnership, a withdrawal or change, voluntary, involuntary, or by operation of law, of any 

partner/or partners owning 50% or more of the partnership, or the dissolution of the partnership, shall be deemed a voluntary 
assignment. 
 

(c)  If Tenant is a corporation, any dissolution, merger, consolidation or other reorganization of Tenant, or the 
sale or  transfer of a controlling percentage of the capital stock of Tenant, or the sale of 51% of the total combined voting 
power of all classes of Tenant's capital stock issued, outstanding, and entitled to vote for the election of directors, shall be 

deemed a voluntary assignment.   
 

(d)  Landlord may consent to the sublease of all or any part of the Premises provided Tenant and the sublessee 
enter into a sublease incorporating the same terms and conditions as contained herein (exclusive of rent), and Landlord shall 
be entitled to receive the total amount of any increased Rent, including sales tax, paid by a sublessee or assignee. 

DRAFT



 
(e)  Any assignment agreed to by Landlord shall be evidenced by a validly executed Assignment and Assumption 

of Lease Agreement.  Any attempted transfer, assignment, subletting, mortgaging or encumbering of this Lease in violation 
of this Section shall be void and confer no rights upon any third person.  Such attempt shall constitute a material breach of 
this Lease and entitle Landlord to the remedies provided for default. 

 
(f)  If, without such prior written consent, this Lease is transferred or assigned by Tenant, or if the Premises, or 

any part thereof, are sublet or occupied by anybody other than Tenant, whether as a result of any act or omission by Tenant, 

or by operation of law or otherwise, Landlord may, in addition to and not in diminution of, or substitution for, any other rights 
and remedies under this Lease, or pursuant to law to which Landlord may be entitled as a result thereof, collect Rent directly 

from the transferee, assignee, subtenant or occupant and apply the net amount collected to the Rent herein reserved. 
(g) Any transfer to an affiliate of Tenant or in connection with a merger or consolidation by Tenant’s business 

shall not require Landlord’s consent and shall not result in any payment to Landlord. 

 
Section 12.2  Tenant's Liability.  Notwithstanding any assignment or sublease, and notwithstanding the 

acceptance of Rent by Landlord from any such assignee or sublessee, Tenant shall continue to remain liable for the payment 

of Rent hereunder and for the performance of all of the agreements, conditions, covenants and terms herein contained. 
 

Section 12.3  Landlord's Right of Cancellation.  Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, 

should Tenant desire to assign the Lease or sublease the Premises, and Landlord’s consent is required, Landlord shall have 
the right, but not the obligation, to cancel and terminate the Lease and deal with Tenant's prospective assignee or sublessee 
directly and without any obligation to Tenant. 

 
Section 12.4  Landlord's Transfer.  Landlord shall have the right to sell, mortgage, or otherwise encumber or 

dispose of Landlord's interest in the Premises, the Building, the Property and this Lease. 

 
Section 12.5  Minimum Rental Requirement.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this 

ARTICLE XII or in this Lease, Tenant may not, under any circumstances, assign this Lease or sublet the Premises or any part 

thereof until at least seventy-five (75%) percent of the rentable space in the Building has been leased by Landlord. 
 

ARTICLE XIII 
OBLIGATIONS 

 

Section 13.1  Obligations of Tenant.  Tenant shall, during the Term of this Lease, at its sole cost and expense, 
comply with all valid laws, ordinances, regulations, orders and requirements of any governmental authority which may now 
or hereafter be applicable to the Premises or to its use, whether or not the same shall interfere with the use or occupancy of 

the Premises, arising from (a) Tenant's specific use of the Premises (but not office uses generally); (b) the manner or conduct 
of Tenant's business or operation of its installations, equipment or other property therein; (c) any cause or condition created 
by or at the instance of Tenant; or (d) breach of any of Tenant's obligations hereunder, whether or not such compliance 

requires work which is structural or non-structural, ordinary or extraordinary, foreseen or unforeseen; and Tenant shall pay 
all of the costs, expenses, fines, penalties and damages which may be imposed upon Landlord by reason or arising out of 
Tenant's failure to fully and promptly comply with and observe the provisions of this Section.  Tenant shall give prompt notice 

to Landlord of any notice it receives of the violation of any law or requirement of any public authority with respect to the 
Premises or the use or occupation thereof. 
 

Section 13.2  Rules and Regulations.  Tenant shall also comply with all reasonable and uniformly applied rules 
and regulations now existing (See Exhibit "E"), or as may be subsequently applied by Landlord to all tenants of the Building.   

 
ARTICLE XIV 

RIGHT OF LANDLORD TO PERFORM TENANT'S COVENANTS 

 
Section 14.1  Payment or Performance.  Landlord shall have the right, upon ten (10) days prior written notice 

to Tenant (or without notice in case of emergency or in order to avoid any fine, penalty, or cost which may otherwise be 

imposed or incurred), following the expiration of any applicable cure period, to make any payment or perform any act required 
of Tenant under any provision in this Lease, and in exercising such right, to incur necessary and incidental costs and expenses, 
including reasonable attorney's fees.  Nothing herein shall imply any obligation on the part of Landlord to make any payment 

or perform any act required of Tenant, and the exercise of the right to do so shall not constitute a release of any obligation 
or a waiver of any default. 
 

Section 14.2  Reimbursement.  All payments made and all reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection 
with Landlord's exercise of the right set forth in Section 14.1, shall be reimbursed by Tenant within ten (10) days after receipt 
of a bill setting forth the amounts so expended, together with interest at the annual rate of 10% from the respective dates 

of the making of such payments or the incurring of such costs and expenses.  Any such payments, costs and expenses made 
or incurred by Landlord may be treated as Additional Rent owed by Tenant. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

DRAFT



 
 Page 11 of 17 

 

ARTICLE XV 
NON-LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
Section 15.1  Non-Liability of Landlord.  Neither Landlord, nor any beneficiary, joint venture partner, agent, 

servant, or employee of Landlord, nor any Superior Mortgagee (as defined in Article XX below), shall be liable to Tenant for 

any loss, injury, or damage to Tenant or to any other person, or to its property, except to the extent caused by or resulting 
from the gross negligence or intentional wrongful act of Landlord, its agents, servants or employees.  Tenant recognizes that 
any Superior Mortgagee will not be liable to Tenant for injury, damage or loss caused by or resulting from the negligence of 

Landlord.  Further, neither Landlord, nor any Superior Mortgagee, nor any joint venture partner, director, officer, agent, 
servant, or employee of Landlord shall be liable (a) for any such damage caused by other tenants or persons in, upon or 

about the Building, or caused by operations in construction of any private, public or quasi-public work; or (b) for incidental 
or consequential damages or lost profits arising out of any loss of use of the Premises, or any equipment or facilities therein, 
by Tenant or any person claiming through or under Tenant. 

 
Section 15.2  Indemnification by Tenant.  Tenant hereby agrees to indemnify Landlord and hold it harmless 

from and against all claims, actions, damages, liability, and expenses which may arise in connection with bodily injury, loss 

of life, and/or damage to property arising from or out of any occurrence in, upon, or at the Demised Premises, or the 
occupancy or use by Tenant of the Demised Premises or any part thereof, or to the extent occasioned by any negligent act 
or omission of Tenant, its agents, contractors, employees, servants, or subtenants except to the extent such damage is due 

to the negligent act or omission of Landlord, its agents or employees.  In case Landlord shall, without fault on its part, be 
made a party to any litigation commenced by or against Tenant in connection with the Demised Premises, Tenant hereby 
agrees to hold Landlord harmless and pay all costs, expenses, and reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred by 

Landlord in connection with such litigation.  Tenant also agrees to pay all costs, expenses, and reasonable attorney's fees 
which may be incurred by Landlord in enforcing the obligations of Tenant under this Lease.  To the maximum extent 
permitted by law and except as otherwise provided in this Lease, Tenant agrees to use and occupy the Demised Premises 

at Tenant's own risk. 
 

Section 15.3  Independent Obligations; Force Majeure.  The obligations of Tenant or Landlord hereunder shall 

not be affected, impaired or excused, nor shall either party  have any liability whatsoever to the other, because (a) such party 
is unable to fulfill, or is delayed in fulfilling, any of its obligations under this Lease by reason of strike, other labor trouble, 

governmental pre-emption of priorities or other controls in connection with a national or other public emergency or shortages 
of fuel, supplies, labor or materials, acts of God or any other cause, whether similar or dissimilar, beyond such performing 
party’s reasonable control; or (b) of any failure or defect in the supply, quantity or character of electricity or water furnished 

to the Premises, by reason of any requirement, act or omission of the public utility or others serving the Building with electric 
energy, steam, oil, gas or water, or for any other reason whether similar or dissimilar, beyond such performing party’s 
reasonable control.  Tenant shall not hold Landlord liable for any latent defect in the Premises or the Building (provided the 

same is repaired by Landlord following notice from Tenant) nor shall Landlord be liable for injury or damage to person or 
property caused by fire, theft, or resulting from the operation of elevators, heating or air conditioning or lighting apparatus, 
of from falling plaster, or from steam, gas, electricity, water, rain, or dampness, which may leak or flow from any part of the 

Building, or from the pipes, appliances or plumbing work of the same except, in all such cases, if Landlord fails to repair the 
same within a reasonable period following notice from Tenant. 
 

ARTICLE XVI 
DEFAULT 

 

Section 16.1  Events of Default.  Tenant shall be in default under this Lease if any one or more of the following 
events shall occur: 

 
(a) Tenant shall fail to pay any installment of the Rent and/or any expenses called for hereunder as and when 

the same shall become due and payable, and such default shall continue for a period of ten (10) days after the same is due; 

or 
 

  (b) Tenant shall default in the performance of or compliance with any of the other terms or provisions of this 
Lease, and such default shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after the giving of written notice thereof from Landlord 
to Tenant, or, in the case of any such default which cannot, with bona fide due diligence, be cured within said thirty (30) 

days, Tenant shall fail to proceed within said thirty (30) day period to cure such default and thereafter to prosecute the curing 
of same with all due diligence (it being intended that as to a default not susceptible of being cured with due diligence within 

such period of thirty (30) days, the time within which such default may be cured shall be extended for such period as may 
be necessary to permit the same to be cured with due diligence); or 

 

  (c) Tenant shall assign, transfer, mortgage or encumber this Lease or sublet the Premises in a manner not 
permitted by ARTICLE XII; or 

 

  (d) Tenant shall file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or any Order for Relief be entered against it, or shall 
file any petition or answer seeking any arrangement, reorganization, composition, re-adjustment or similar relief under any 
present or future bankruptcy or other applicable law, or shall seek or consent to or acquiesce in the appointment of any 

trustee, receiver, or liquidator of Tenant of all or any substantial part of Tenant's properties; or 

DRAFT



 

  (e) If any creditor of Tenant shall file a petition in bankruptcy against Tenant or for reorganization of Tenant, 
under state or federal law, and if such petition is not discharged within ninety (90) days after the date on which it is filed; or 

 

  (f) Tenant shall abandon the Premises, then, and in any such event, or during the continuance thereof 
(subject to the time period described in subparagraph (e) above), Landlord may, at its option, by written notice to Tenant, 
designate a date not less than five (5) days from the giving of such notice on which this Lease shall end, and thereupon, on 

such date, this Lease and all rights of Tenant hereunder shall terminate. 

 

Section 16.2  Surrender of Premises.  Upon any such termination of this Lease, Tenant shall surrender the 
Premises to Landlord, and Landlord, at any time after such termination, may, without further notice re-enter and repossess 
the Premises without being liable to any prosecution or damages therefore, and no person claiming through or under Tenant 
or by virtue of any statute or of any order of any court shall be entitled to possession of the Premises. 

 

Section 16.3  Reletting.  At any time or from time to time after any such termination of this Lease, Landlord may 

relet the Premises or any part thereof, in the name of Landlord or otherwise, for such term or terms and on such conditions 
as Landlord, in its sole discretion, may determine, and may collect and receive the rents therefore.  Landlord shall in no way 
be responsible or liable for any failure to relet the Premises or any part thereof or for any failure to collect any rent due upon 

any such reletting; provided, however, Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate its damages. 
 

Section 16.4  Survival of Obligations.  No termination, pursuant to this ARTICLE XVI, shall relieve Tenant of its 

liability and obligations under this Lease, and such liability and obligations shall survive any such termination. 

 

Section 16.5  Holdover.  Should Tenant hold over and remain in possession of the Premises at the expiration of 
any Term hereby created, Tenant shall, by virtue of this Section, become a Tenant at sufferance and shall pay Landlord twice 
the Rent per month of the last monthly installment of Rent above provided to be paid, calculated on a daily basis for the 
period of such holdover.  Said tenancy at sufferance shall be subject to all the conditions and covenants of this Lease as 

though the same had been a tenancy at sufferance instead of a tenancy as provided herein, and Tenant shall give to Landlord 
at least five (5) days prior written notice of any intention to vacate the Premises, and shall be entitled to ten (10) days prior 
notice of any intention of Landlord to evict Tenant from the Premises in the event Landlord desires possession of the Premises; 

provided, however, that said Tenant at sufferance shall not be entitled to ten (10) days’ notice in the event the said Rent is 
not paid in advance without demand, the ten (10) days written notice otherwise required being hereby expressly waived. 

 
ARTICLE XVII 

DAMAGES/REMEDIES 

 
Section 17.1  Damages.  In the event this Lease is terminated under the provisions or any provisions of law by 

reason of default hereunder on the part of Tenant, Tenant shall pay to Landlord, as damages, at the election of Landlord, 

either: 
 

 (a)  The present value of the entire amount of the Rent which would have become due and payable during the 
remainder of the Term of this Lease, in which event Tenant agrees to pay the same at once, together with all Rent theretofore 

due, at Landlord's address as provided herein; provided, however, that such payment shall not constitute a penalty or 
forfeiture or liquidated damages, but shall merely constitute payment in advance of the Rent for the remainder of the said 
Term.  Such present value shall be determined utilizing a discount rate of six percent (6%).  The acceptance of such payment 

by Landlord shall not constitute a waiver of any failure of Tenant thereafter occurring to comply with any term, provision, 
condition or covenant of this Lease.  If Landlord elects the remedy given in this Section 17.1(a), then same shall be Landlord's 
sole remedy for such default; or comply with any term, provision, condition or covenant of this Lease.  If Landlord elects the 

remedy given in this Section 17.1(a), then same shall be Landlord's sole remedy for such default; or 
 
 (b) Sums equal to the Rent which would have been payable by Tenant had this Lease not been so terminated, payable 

upon the due dates therefor following such termination through the Expiration Date of this Lease. 

 

 If Landlord, at its option shall select the remedy set forth in Section 17.1(a), and shall thereafter relet the Premises during 
said period, Landlord shall credit Tenant with the net rents received by Landlord from such reletting, such net rents to be 
determined by first deducting from the gross rents, as and when received by Landlord, the reasonable expenses incurred or 
paid by Landlord in terminating this Lease and in securing possession thereof, as well as the expenses of reletting, including, 

without limitation, the alteration and preparation of the Premises for new tenants, brokers' commissions, attorneys' fees and 
all other expenses properly chargeable against the Premises and the rental therefrom.  It is hereby understood that any such 
reletting may be for a period shorter or longer than the remaining Term of this Lease but in no event shall Tenant be entitled 

to receive any excess of such net rents over the sum payable by Tenant to Landlord hereunder, nor shall Tenant be entitled 
in any suit for the collection of damages pursuant hereto to a credit in respect of any net rents from a reletting, except to the 

extent that such rents are actually received by Landlord. 
 

Section 17.2  Remedies.  Lawsuits for the recovery of such damages, or any installments thereof, may be brought 
by Landlord from time to time at its election, and nothing contained herein shall be deemed to require Landlord to postpone 
suit until the date when the Term of this Lease would have expired, nor limit or preclude recovery by Landlord against Tenant 

of any sums or damages which, in addition to the damages particularly provided above, Landlord may lawfully be entitled by 

DRAFT



 
 Page 13 of 17 

 

reason of any default hereunder on the part of Tenant.  All remedies of Landlord provided for herein, or otherwise at law or 
in equity, shall be cumulative and concurrent. 

 

ARTICLE XVIII 
EMINENT DOMAIN 

 

Section 18.1  Taking.  If the whole of the Building or the Premises or if more than 20% of the Building or the 
Property shall be taken by condemnation or in any other manner for any public or quasi-public use or purpose, which renders 

the Premises untenantable, this Lease shall terminate as of the date of vesting of title as a result of such taking, and the Base 
Rent and Additional Rent shall be prorated and adjusted as of such date. 

 

Section 18.2  Award.  Landlord shall be entitled to receive the entire award or payment in connection with any 
taking without deduction therefrom; provided, however, Tenant shall be entitled to receive a separate award attributable to 

its relocation costs and its tenant improvements so long as any such separate award does not represent the value of the loss 
of the Tenant's leasehold estate or otherwise reduce the amount of the award that would have otherwise been made payable 
to Landlord. 

 

Section 18.3  Temporary Taking.  If the temporary use or occupancy of all or any part of the Premises shall be 
taken by condemnation or in any other manner for any public or quasi-public use or purpose during the Term of this Lease, 

Tenant shall be entitled, except as hereinafter set forth, to receive that portion of the award or payment for such taking which 
represents compensation for the use and occupancy of the Premises, for the taking of Tenant's Property and for moving 
expenses, and Landlord shall be entitled to receive that portion which represents reimbursement for the cost of restoration 

of the Premises.  This Lease shall be and remain unaffected by such taking and Tenant shall continue to pay the Rent in full 
when due.  If the period of temporary use or occupancy shall extend beyond the Expiration Date of this Lease, that part of 
the award which represents compensation for the use and occupancy of the Premises (or a part thereof) shall be divided 

between Landlord and Tenant so that Tenant shall receive so much thereof as represents the period up to and including such 
Expiration Date and Landlord shall receive so much as represents the period after such Expiration Date.  All monies received 
by Landlord as, or as part of, an award for temporary use and occupancy for a period beyond the date through which the 

Rent has been paid by Tenant, shall be held and applied by Landlord as a credit against the Rent becoming due hereunder. 

 

Section 18.4  Partial Taking.  In the event of any taking of less than the whole of the Premises, the Building 
and/or the Property, which does not result in termination of this Lease:  (a) subject to the prior rights of a Superior Mortgagee, 
Landlord, at its expense, shall proceed with reasonable diligence to repair the remaining parts of the Building and the Premises 

(other than those parts of the Premises which are Tenant's Property) to substantially their former condition to the extent of 
the award or payment made to Landlord and to the extent that the same is feasible (subject to reasonable changes which 
Landlord shall deem desirable), so as to constitute a complete and tenantable Building and Premises; and (b) Tenant, at its 

expense, shall proceed with reasonable diligence to repair the remaining parts of the Premises which are deemed Tenant's 
Property pursuant hereto, to substantially their former condition to the extent feasible, subject to reasonable changes which 
Tenant shall deem desirable.  Such work by Tenant shall be deemed alterations as described in Section 11.1 hereinabove.  In 

the event of any partial taking of the Premises, Tenant shall be entitled to a reduction in Rent for the remainder of the Lease 
Term following such partial taking based upon the percentage of space taken from the Premises relative to the original 
Premises leased.  

 
ARTICLE XIX 

QUIET ENJOYMENT 
 

Section 19.1  Quiet Enjoyment.  Landlord agrees that Tenant, upon paying all Rent and all other charges herein 

provided for and observing and keeping the covenants, agreements, terms and conditions of this Lease and the rules and 
regulations of Landlord affecting the Premises on its part to be performed, shall lawfully and quietly hold, occupy and enjoy 
the Premises during the Term of this Lease. 

 

ARTICLE XX 
SUBORDINATION AND ATTORNMENT 

 

Section 20.1  Subordination.  This Lease, and all rights of Tenant hereunder, are and shall be subordinate to any 
mortgage or other encumbrance, whether now of record or recorded after the date of this Lease, affecting the Premises, the 
Building or the Property.  Notwithstanding that such subordination is self-operative without any further act of Tenant, Tenant 

shall, from time to time, within ten (10) days of request from Landlord, execute and deliver any documents or instruments 
that may be required by a Superior Mortgagee to confirm such subordination.  Any mortgage to which this Lease is subject 
and subordinate is hereinafter referred to as a "Superior Mortgage", and the holder of a Superior Mortgage is hereinafter 

referred to as a "Superior Mortgagee".    

 

Section 20.2  Notice to Landlord and Superior Mortgagee.  If any act or omission of Landlord would give 
Tenant the right, immediately or after the lapse of a period of time, to cancel this Lease or to claim a partial or total eviction, 
Tenant shall not exercise such right (a) until it has given written notice of such act or omission to Landlord and any Superior 
Mortgagee whose name and address shall previously have been furnished to Tenant; and (b) until a reasonable period of 

DRAFT



time for remedying such act or omission shall have elapsed following the giving of such notice and following the time when 
such Superior Mortgagee shall have become entitled under such Superior Mortgage to remedy the same. 

 

Section 20.3  Attornment.  If any Superior Mortgagee shall succeed to the rights of Landlord hereunder whether 
through possession or foreclosure action or delivery of a new lease or deed, then, at the request of such Superior Mortgagee, 

Tenant shall attorn to and recognize such Superior Mortgagee as Tenant's Landlord under this Lease, and shall promptly 
execute and deliver any instrument such Superior Mortgagee may reasonably request to evidence such attornment.  Upon 
such attornment, this Lease shall continue in full force and effect as a direct Lease between such Superior Mortgagee and 

Tenant, upon all terms, conditions, and covenants as set forth in this Lease, except that the Superior Mortgagee shall not:  
(a) be liable for any previous act or omission of Landlord under this Lease; (b) be subject to any offset, not expressly provided 

for in this Lease; or (c) be bound by any previous modification of this Lease or by any previous prepayment, unless such 
modification or prepayment shall have been previously approved in writing by such Superior Mortgagee.  Further, upon such 
attornment, Landlord shall be released from any further obligations hereunder. 

 
ARTICLE XXI 

LANDLORD'S RIGHT OF ACCESS 
 

Section 21.1  Access for Maintenance and Repair.  Except for the space within the inside surfaces of all walls, 
hung ceilings, floors, windows, and doors bounding the Premises, all of the Building including, without limitation, exterior 

walls, core interior walls and doors and any core corridor entrance, any terraces or roofs adjacent to the Premises, and any 
space in or adjacent to the Premises used for shafts, stacks, pipes, conduits, fan rooms, ducts, electric or other utilities, sinks, 
or other facilities of the Building, and the use thereof, as well as access thereto throughout the Premises for the purposes of 

operation, maintenance, decoration and repair, are reserved to Landlord.  Landlord reserves the right, and Tenant shall permit 
Landlord, to install, erect, use and maintain pipes, ducts and conduits in and through the Premises provided the same are 
located above the dropped ceiling, behind walls, within columns or beneath the floor.  Landlord shall be allowed to take all 

materials into and upon the Premises that may be required in connection therewith, without any liability to Tenant and without 
any reduction of Tenant's covenants and obligations hereunder.  Upon reasonable prior notice to Tenant (except in an 
emergency), Landlord and its agents shall have the right to enter upon the Premises after normal business hours (except in 

an emergency) for the purpose of making any repairs therein or thereto which shall Landlord shall be required or permitted  
to make pursuant to this Lease, in such a manner as not to unreasonably interfere with Tenant in the conduct of Tenant's 

business on the Premises; and in addition, Landlord and its agents shall have the right to enter the Premises at any time in 
cases of emergency. 

 

 Section 21.2 Access for Inspection and Showing.  Upon reasonable notice to Tenant and during normal business 
hours, Landlord and its agents shall have the right to enter and/or pass through the Premises to examine the Premises and 
to show them to actual and prospective purchasers, mortgagees or lessors of the Building.  During the period of six (6) 

months prior to the Expiration Date of this Lease, Landlord and its agents may exhibit the Premises to prospective tenants. 

 

Section 21.3 Landlord's Alterations and Improvements.  If, at any time, any windows of the Premises are 
temporarily darkened or obstructed by reason of any repairs, improvements, maintenance and/or cleaning in or about the 
Building, or if any part of the Building, other than the Premises, is temporarily or permanently closed or inoperable, the same 
shall be without liability to Landlord and without any reduction or diminution of Tenant's obligations under this Lease.  Landlord 

reserves the right to make such changes, alterations, additions, and improvements in or to the Building (but not the Premises) 
and the fixtures and equipment thereof, as well as in or to the street entrances, doors, halls, passages, elevators, escalators 
and stairways thereof, and other public portions of the Building, as Landlord shall deem necessary or desirable, and no such 

alterations or changes shall be deemed a breach of Landlord's covenant of quiet enjoyment or a constructive eviction. 

 

       ARTICLE XXII 

SIGNS AND OBSTRUCTIONS 
 

Section 22.1 Signs.  Tenant shall not place or suffer to be placed or maintained upon any exterior door, roof, wall 
or window of the Premises or the Building, any sign, awning, canopy or advertising matter of any kind, and will not place or 
maintain any decoration, lettering or advertising matter on the glass of any window or door of the Premises except as 

approved by Landlord pursuant to the sign exhibit attached hereto as Exhibit "G", and will not place or maintain any 
freestanding standard within or upon the Common Area of the Building or immediately adjacent thereto, without first obtaining 
Landlord's express prior written consent.  No exterior or interior sign visible from the exterior of the Building shall be permitted.  

Tenant further agrees to maintain any such signage approved by Landlord in good condition and repair at all times and to 
remove the same at the end of the Term of this Lease if requested by Landlord. Upon removal thereof, Tenant agrees to 
repair any damage to the Premises caused by such installation and/or removal. 

 

Section 22.2 Obstructions.  Tenant shall not obstruct the sidewalks, parking lots or other public portions of the 
Building or the Property in any manner whatsoever. 

ARTICLE XXIII 

NOTICES 

 

Section 23.1 Notices.  Any notice or other information required or authorized by this Lease to be given by either 
party to the other may be sent (by first class pre-paid mail, or by federal express or otherwise nationally recognized courier 

service) to the other party at the address stated below.  Any notice or other information given by mail pursuant to this Section 
which is not returned to the sender as undelivered shall be deemed to have been given on the fifth (5th) day after the 

DRAFT



 
 Page 15 of 17 

 

envelope containing any such notice or information was properly addressed, pre-paid, registered and mailed, and on the day 
after having been deposited with federal express or another nationally recognized courier service.  The fact that the envelope 

has not been so returned to the sender shall be sufficient evidence that such notice or information has been duly given.   

 
  AS TO LANDLORD:   HH Promenade, LLC 

   c/o Strategic Realty Services, LLC 
500 Northpoint Parkway, STE 300 

      West Palm Beach, FL 33407 
      T: 561-471-5353 

      F: 561-471-5355 

 
   

 AS TO TENANT:  Attn:___________________ 

 414 Lake Avenue 
                  Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

. 
     
    T: 

      F: 

 
The above addresses may be changed at any time by giving thirty (30) days prior written notice as above provided.  

In addition to the foregoing, any notices of a legal nature shall be copied to: 
 

HH Promenade, LLC 
500 Northpoint Parkway, STE 300 
West Palm Beach, FL 33407 

 
   
 

ARTICLE XXIV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 24.1 Substitute Premises.  At any time during the Term of this Lease, Landlord shall have the right to 

request in writing that Tenant move to substitute premises situated within the Building.  The substitute premises shall contain 

the same approximate square footage and shall contain similar decor as the Premises.   Except for the change in designation 
of Premises, all provisions of this Lease shall remain the same.  Exclusive of the cost of address changes for supplies, Landlord 
shall pay the entire cost of relocating Tenant in, and all costs of preparing and decorating, the substitute premises.  Tenant 

shall have thirty (30) days from the date of Landlord's request to accept the substitute premises. If said substitute premises 
are comparable in size, configuration, décor and accessibility to the Premises and Tenant refuses to accept the substitute 
premises or fails to reply to Landlord's request within the time stated or no such substitute premises is available, either party 

may, at its option, terminate this Lease upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. 
 

Section 24.2 Environmental Indemnity.  Tenant agrees to indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from and 
against any and all loss, claim, liability, damages, injuries to person, property, or natural resources, cost, expense, action or 

cause of action, arising in connection with the introduction by Tenant of  any "Hazardous Substances" at the Premises, 
through the acts of Tenant, its employees, agents or invitees acting with Tenant's authority.  The foregoing indemnity includes, 
without limitation, all costs in law or in equity of removal, remediation of any kind, and disposal of such Hazardous Substances, 

all costs of determining whether the Premises is in compliance and to cause the Premises to be in compliance with all applicable 
environmental laws, all costs associated with claims for damages to persons, property, or natural resources, and Landlord's 
reasonable attorneys' and consultants' fees and court costs.  This indemnity shall survive the expiration or earlier termination 

of this Lease.  For the purposes of definition, Hazardous Substances means any toxic or hazardous wastes, pollutants or 
substances, including, without limitation, asbestos, PBCs, petroleum products and by-products, substances defined or listed 
as "hazardous substances" or "toxic substances" or similarly identified in or pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental 

Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 9061 et. seq., hazardous materials identified 
in or pursuant to the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act 49 U.S.C. Section 1802 et seq. 

 

Section 24.3  Radon Gas.  Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Section 404.056[8], the following disclosure is required by 
law:  Radon is a naturally occurring radioactive gas that, when it has accumulated in a building in sufficient quantities, may 

present health risks to persons who are exposed to it over time.  Levels of radon that exceed federal and state guidelines 
have been found in buildings in Florida.  Additional information regarding radon and radon testing may be obtained from your 
county public health unit. 

 

Section 24.4  Broker Commission.  Landlord and Tenant covenant, warrant and represent that Strategic Realty 
Services, LLC (hereinafter "Broker") were instrumental in bringing about and/or consummating this Lease.  Further, neither 

Landlord nor Tenant have had any conversations or negotiations with any broker except Broker concerning the leasing of the 
Premises.  Both parties agree to indemnify the other against and from any claims for any brokerage commissions (except 

DRAFT



those payable to Broker) and all costs, expenses and liabilities in connection therewith, including, without limitation, 
reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, for any breach of the foregoing.  This indemnity shall survive the expiration or 

earlier termination of this Lease.  Landlord shall pay all brokerage commissions due Broker in accordance with a separate 
agreement between Landlord and Broker. 

 

Section 24.5 Financial Statements.  Intentionally Deleted 

 

Section 24.6 Estoppel Certificates.  Tenant agrees, at any time and from time to time as requested by Landlord, 
to execute and deliver to Landlord an estoppel certificate in the form of Exhibit "D" attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference, together with such changes and additional information as a Superior Mortgagee may reasonably request.  

In the event Tenant fails to comply with this Section, such failure shall constitute a material breach of this Lease and Rent 
shall continue to accrue, but Landlord shall be under no obligation to deliver possession of the Premises. 

 

Section 24.7 Approval by Mortgagee.  Intentionally Deleted 

 

Section 24.8 No Recordation.  This Lease shall not be recorded by Tenant in the Public Records of Palm Beach 
County, Florida, or in any other place.  Any attempted recordation by Tenant shall render this Lease null and void and entitle 
Landlord to the remedies provided for Tenant's default.  However, at the request of Landlord, Tenant shall promptly execute, 
acknowledge and deliver to Landlord a Memorandum of Lease with respect to this Lease, and a Memorandum of Modification 

of Lease with respect to any modification of this Lease, sufficient for recording.  Such Memorandum shall not be deemed to 
change or otherwise affect any of the obligations or provisions of this Lease. 

 

Section 24.9 Governing Law.  This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Florida.  If any provision of this Lease or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall, for any reason 
and to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease shall remain in full force and effect.  The table of 

contents, captions, headings and titles in this Lease are solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect its 
interpretation.  This Lease shall be construed without regard to any presumption or other rule requiring construction against 
the party causing this Lease to be drafted.  Each covenant, agreement, obligation, or other provision of this Lease on Tenant's 

or Landlord’s part to be performed, shall be deemed and construed as a separate and independent covenant, not dependent 
on any other provision of this Lease.  All terms and words used in this Lease, regardless of the number or gender in which 

they are used, shall be deemed to include any other number and any other gender, as the context may require. 
 
Section 24.10 Relationship of Parties.  Nothing contained in this Lease will be deemed or construed to create a 

partnership or joint venture between Landlord and Tenant, or to create any other relationship between the parties other than 
that of Landlord and Tenant. 

 

Section 24.11 Capacity to Execute Lease.  If Tenant is other than a natural person, Tenant represents that it is 
legally constituted, in good standing and authorized to conduct business in the State of Florida.  Tenant further represents 
that the person who is executing this Lease on its behalf has the full power and authority to perform such execution and 

deliver the Lease to Landlord, and that upon such execution and delivery, the Lease shall be valid and binding upon Tenant 
in accordance with its respective terms and conditions.  To further evidence the foregoing, upon request by Landlord, Tenant 
shall deliver to Landlord an appropriate corporate or partnership resolution specifying that the signator to the Lease has been 

duly authorized to execute same on behalf of Tenant. Landlord represents that the person who is executing this Lease on its 
behalf has the full power and authority to perform such execution and deliver the Lease to Tenant, and that upon such 
execution and delivery, the Lease shall be valid and binding upon Landlord in accordance with its respective terms and 

conditions. 

 

Section 24.12  Exculpation of Landlord.  Landlord's obligations and liability to Tenant with respect to this Lease 
shall be limited solely to Landlord's interest in the Property, and neither Landlord nor any of the partners of Landlord, nor any 
officer, director, or shareholder of Landlord, shall have any personal liability whatsoever with respect to this Lease. 

 
Section 24.13  Waiver of Trial by Jury.  It is mutually agreed by and between Landlord and Tenant that the 

respective parties hereto shall, and they hereby do, waive trial by jury in any action, proceeding or counterclaim brought by 

either of the parties against the other on any matter arising out of or in any way connected with this Lease, the relationship 
of Landlord and Tenant or Tenant's use or occupancy of the Premises.   

 

Section 24.14 Attorney's Fees.  Tenant agrees to pay to Landlord all costs and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys' fees and court costs, incurred by Landlord in enforcing any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Lease, or 
of any of its rights and remedies under Chapter 83, Florida Statutes, as may hereinafter be amended. 

 
Section 24.15 Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA).  Subject to the provisions of the Lease, Landlord 

agrees and acknowledges that Landlord shall be responsible for compliance with the Title III of the ADA in the common areas 

of the Building, as defined elsewhere in the Lease.  Landlord represents that it is currently making good faith efforts to being 
the common areas into compliance with the requirements of Title III of the ADA.  Tenant represents and covenants that 

Tenant shall be fully responsible for compliance with the ADA of any and all improvements located within the Leased Premises, 
regardless of who pays for or performs such improvements.  Tenant covenants and agrees that any and all future alterations 
or improvements made by Tenant to the Leased Premises shall comply with the ADA.  Upon the request of Landlord, Tenant 

shall provide landlord with evidence reasonably satisfactory to landlord that such work was performed in compliance with the 
ADA.  Tenant represents and covenants that it shall conduct its occupancy and use of the Premises in accordance with the 

DRAFT



 
 Page 17 of 17 

 

ADA (including, but not limited to modifying its policies, practices and procedures, and providing auxiliary aids and services 
to persons with disabilities.)  Landlord and Tenant agree to indemnify the other for any costs, claims, damages, losses or 

expenses (including the costs of consulting and legal fees) arising out of the other's breaching its respective responsibilities 
for compliance with the ADA as required in this Lease.  This indemnity shall survive the termination of this Lease. 

 

Section 24.16 Entire Agreement.  This Lease constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and shall 
bind the parties hereto, their successors and assigns.  No representations, except as herein expressly set forth, have been 
made by either party to the other, and this Lease cannot be amended or modified except by a writing signed by Landlord and 

Tenant.  
 

Section 24.17. Submission of Lease.  Submission of this Lease for examination does not constitute an option for 
the demised premises and becomes effective as a lease only upon execution and delivery thereof by Landlord to Tenant. 

 

 
 
 

 
The parties have executed this Lease as of the day and year first above written. 

 

 
 

       "LANDLORD" 

 
  HH Promenade, LLC 

                         A Florida Limited Liability Company 

                             
               
 

  By:                                                               
             _______________, Manager 

  
 
 

  “TENANT” 
        _________________________________________. 

                                                                                       

 
 
            By:                                                                                        

  
   

   
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT



 

 

 

 
 

 EXHIBIT "A" 
 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

 
 

 

TOWN OF LAKE WORTH LTS 3 THRU 8 (LESS W 5 FT N FED HWY R/W) BLK 28. 

          

DRAFT



 

 
 

 

Exhibit “B” 

 

Floor Plans 

 
Suite 202-203 

 

 
 
 
 

Suite 104 
 

DRAFT



EXHIBIT "C" 
 
 

SITE PLAN  
 

 

DRAFT



 

EXHIBIT “D” 
 

ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE  - TENANT 

 
 

 
 
Re: Lease dated                                                                   

between HH Promenade, LLC, (Landlord) 
and                           (Tenant) 

 

 
Gentlemen: 
 

We understand and acknowledge the receipt of notice that the Lease between ourselves, as Tenant, and HH 
Promenade, LLC, a Florida Limited Liability Company as Landlord, dated                                (hereinafter called the 
“lease”, which term shall include the amendments thereto, if any) which leased to us the premises described therein (the 

“Demised Premises”), was or will be assigned to you by the Landlord, in an Assignment of Rents, Leases, and Other Benefits, 
in consideration of a Loan made by you to Landlord, all as more fully described in said Assignment. 
 

To induce you to make the Loan evidenced by the Note to Landlord, we hereby certify and represent to you the 
following: 
 

1. The Lease constitutes the entire agreement between the parties to it and has not been modified or 
amended except by Amendments dated                                          . 

 
2. We have not “right of first refusal,” “option to purchase” or any other right to purchase all, or any 

portion of,  the Demised Premises.  

 
3. We have accepted and are in possession of the Demised Premises, which have been satisfactorily 

completed in all respects, and we are currently open for business. 

 
4. The Lease is in full force and effect and the Landlord has fulfilled all of its obligations, covenants, and 

warranties under the Lease and is not in default in any manner. 

 
5. We have no defenses, offsets, credits, or counterclaims to our obligations under the Lease. 

 

6. We have commenced to pay fixed rent in the amount of $            per month under the 
Lease, the primary term of which commenced on              and expires on             ; and, we have 
deposited the sum of $              as a security deposit and the sum of $           prepaid rent. 

 
7. No advance rental or other payment has been made in connection with the Lease, except rental for the 

current month, there is not “free rent” or other concession under the remaining term of the Lease and the rent has been 
paid to and including                 , 20           . 
 

8. All rental payments and other monies due under the Lease shall be paid as therein provided until we 
have been otherwise notified by you, and thereafter in accordance with your notification.  Any monies due pursuant to a 
lease buyout agreement, which buyout shall require your prior written consent, shall be delivered to you in full.  

 
9. We agree not to change the use of or structurally alter the Demised Premises, or to amend, cancel or 

assign the Lease or to sublease without your prior written consent. 

 
10. You are hereby given the right to cure Landlord’s defaults within thirty (30) days after receipt of written 

notice by the undersigned of Landlord’s failure so to do; provided, however, that said thirty (30) day period shall be extended 

(i) so long as within said thirty (30) day period you have commenced to cure and are proceeding with due diligence to cure 
said defaults, or (ii) so long as you are proceeding with a foreclosure action against Landlord and will commence to cure 
and will proceed with due diligence to cure said defaults upon the resolution of said foreclosure action. 

 
11. We shall not look to you, your successors or assigns, for the return or credit of the security deposit or 

prepaid rent, if any, unless said monies have been transferred to you.  The amount of the security deposit held by the 

Landlord is $                        the amount of prepaid rent is $                                   . 
 

12. The person executing this Certificate is duly authorized and empowered in all respects to do so on behalf 
of the undersigned Tenant. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

DRAFT



Exhibit “D” - Page 2 
 

 
 

13. We do not engage in the generation, storage, or disposal of hazardous wastes or hazardous substances, and 

the Demised Premises are not and shall not be used for such purposes.  We have received no notice of, and otherwise have 
no knowledge of, any local, state or federal environmental regulatory action regarding the conduct of our business, the 
Demised Premises, or the property of Landlord of which the Demised Premises are a part (the “Property”).  We agree to 

send to you a copy of any notice received by us of any pending or threatened environmental regulatory action, and to notify 
you immediately should we become aware of the release or discharge of any hazardous substances on or in the Demised 

Premises or the Property. 
 

14. Neither you nor your successors or assigns shall be or become subject to any liability or obligation under 

the Lease or otherwise, until you shall have obtained title to the Demised Premises, by foreclosure or otherwise, and then 
only to the extent of liabilities or obligations accruing subsequent to the date that you obtain title to the Demised Premises. 
 

Very truly yours, 
TENANT:  

 

       
 

 

       By:                                                                       
       Name:                        

 
  Title:                                                         

 
Date:                                                

DRAFT



 

EXHIBIT "E" 
 

TENANT RULES & REGULATIONS 

 
 

1. PARKING 
 

Tenants and occupants of the building shall have access to the parking area through common driveways.  The parking 
areas are non-exclusive and available to all Tenants and their employees, licensees, and guests, other than reserved 
spaces.  Landlord may, at any time during the term by notice to Tenant, designate for Tenants' use other reasonable 

parking spaces on the land, provided the number of parking spaces is not reduced, by mutual agreement.  No 
commercial or recreational vehicles shall be parked on the premises except those vehicles parked on a short-time 
temporary basis while delivering, repairing or servicing the Building and/or its Tenants. 

 
2. SIGNAGE 
 

Tenant shall not affix any device, sign or other fixture to the outside of the building or any window, door, or hallway 
without the written consent of the Landlord, in each and every case. 

 

It is hereby understood that the Premises herein leased are part of an office building consisting of professional suites, 
and it is understood that there shall be uniformity as to appearance of all signage relating to this Building.  Signage 

shall consist of the following: 

 

A. A site sign designed by Landlord and maintained by Landlord shall contain the name of the Center. 

 

B. All signage for the building will be of the same look and family size and letter style.  No advertising type signs 
shall be allowed.  The Landlord reserves the right, however, to attach such signs to the Premises as are 

necessary for leasing and marketing purposes. 

 

C.   Landlord shall cause to be placed a sign directly adjacent to each Tenants' entrance.  Each sign shall be of a 
standard size and background color that will conform to the overall concept of the Center.  At the Tenant's 
expense, the Landlord shall provide the Tenant with a sign face, identifying the Tenant and his line of work.  

Such sign faces shall conform to the artwork as approved by both Landlord and Tenant. 

 

  3. No curtains, draperies, blinds, shades, screens or other covering shall be attached to or hung or used in 

connection with any window or door of the demised Premises without the prior written consent of the Landlord, 
in each and every case.  Curtains, draperies, blinds, shades, screens or other covering must be of a quality type 
design and color approved by Landlord.  Further, all draperies, shades, screens, or other covers shall have a 

neutral color of fabric facing exterior window views. 

 

No awnings or other projections shall be attached to the outside walls of the Building.  Tenant shall not place 
anything or allow anything to be placed near the glass of any window, door, partition, or wall which may appear 
unsightly from inside or outside of the Premises. 

 
4. The parking areas, sidewalks, entrances, passages, courts, stairways, corridors, and halls shall not be obstructed 

or encumbered by any Tenant, unless a Tenant is specifically granted such right in his Lease, nor used for any 
purpose other than ingress or egress to and from the Premises. 

 

5.  In the event Tenant must dispose of crates, boxes, etc. which will not fit into office wastepaper baskets, it will 
be the responsibility of Tenant to dispose of same.  In no event shall Tenant set such items in the public hallways 
or other areas of the building or parking areas, excepting Tenant's own premises for disposal. 

 
6.  The water and wash closets and other plumbing fixtures shall not be used for any purposes other than those 

for which they were constructed and no sweepings, rubbish, rags, or other substances shall be placed therein.  

All damages resulting from any misuse of the fixtures shall be borne by the Tenant who, or whose servants, 
employees, agents, visitors, or licensees shall have caused the same. 

 

7.  No Tenant shall mark, paint, drill into, or in any way deface any part of the Premises or the building of which 
they form a part.  No boring, cutting, or stringing of wires shall be permitted, except with the prior written 
consent of the Landlord and as it may direct, in each and every case. 

 

  8. No bicycles, vehicles, or animals of any kind shall be brought into or kept in or about the Premises.  No Tenant 
shall cause or permit any unusual or objectionable odors to be produced upon or permeate from the Premises. 

 
9. No Tenant shall make, or permit to be made, any unseemly or disturbing noises or disturb or interfere with 

occupants of this or neighboring buildings or premises or those having business with them, whether by the use 
of any musical instrument, radio, talking machine, musical noise, whistling, singing, or in any other way.  No 
Tenant shall throw anything out of the doors, windows, or skylights, or down the passageways. 

DRAFT



10. Each Tenant, upon occupancy of its space, will be issued two (2) keys to the leased space.  No additional locks 
or bolts of any kind shall be placed upon any of the doors or windows by any Tenant, nor shall any changes be 

made in existing locks or the mechanism thereof.  Each Tenant must, upon the termination of his tenancy, 
return to the Landlord all keys of offices and toilet rooms, either furnished to, or otherwise procured by, such 
Tenant, and in the event of the need for additional keys, or the loss of any keys so furnished, such Tenant shall 

pay to the Landlord the cost thereof, as determined, from time to time, by the Landlord. 
 

  11. All removals, or the carrying in or out of any safes, freight, furniture or bulky matter of any description must 
take place during the normal business hours which the Landlord or its agent may determine from time to time.  

The Landlord reserves the right to prescribe the weight and position of all safes, which must be placed upon 2 
inch thick plank strips to distribute the weight.  The moving of safes or other fixtures or bulky matter of any 
kind must be made after previous notice to and approval of the Manager of the building.  Any damage done to 

the Building or to the Tenants or to other persons in bringing in or removing safes, furniture or other bulky or 
heavy articles shall be paid for by the Tenant. 

 

  12. Canvassing, soliciting and peddling in the Building is prohibited and each Tenant shall cooperate to prevent the 
same. 

 
13.  The Landlord may retain a pass key to the Leased Premises, and allowed admittance thereto at all times to 

enable the representatives to examine the said Premises. 
 
14.  The Landlord reserves the right to make such other and further reasonable rules and regulations as in its 

judgment may from time to time be needed for the safety, care and cleanliness of the Premises, and for the 
preservation of good order therein, and any such other or further rules and regulations shall be binding upon 
the parties hereto with the same force and effect as if they had been inserted herein at the time of the execution 

hereof. 
 
15.  No Tenant, nor any of the Tenant's servants, employees, agents, visitors, or licensees, shall at any time bring 

or keep upon the Premises any inflammable, combustible, or explosive fluid, chemical or substance. 
 

16.  Landlord will not be responsible for any lost or stolen personal property, equipment, money or jewelry from 
Tenant's Premises or public rooms regardless of whether such loss occurs when the area is locked against entry 
or not. 

 
17.  Landlord shall not permit the preparation of food for consumption on the Premises nor use the facilities for the 

preparation of food without written consent, in each and every case.  Tenant shall not use the Premises for 

housing, lodging, sleeping nor any immoral or illegal purpose. 
 
18.  Tenant and its employees, and visitors are not permitted to smoke or consume food or beverages in the common 

area. 
 
19.  Tenant shall not operate, or permit to be operated, any mechanical machinery, steam engine, boiler, or stove 

without Landlord's written consent, in each and every case; Tenant will not allow the use of oil, burning fluids, 
kerosene, gasoline or other fuels within the Premises. 

 

20.  No article deemed as extra hazardous on account of fire or explosion shall be brought into the Premises. 
 

21.  No loitering or littering. 
 
22.  It is understood and agreed that Landlord has the undisputed right to temporarily discontinue water, electric, 

air conditioning, elevator, or any other service necessary for the proper maintenance, repair or improvement of 
the Building. 

 

23.  In the event of any inconsistency between the Lease with Tenant and the rules and regulations herein, the 
terms of the Lease shall control. 

DRAFT



 

EXHIBIT "F" 
 
 

ELECTRICAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

 
 
PREMISES: Suite 203 

 
Address: 120 N Federal Highway, Lake Worth, FL 33460   

 

 
 
LEASE DATED:                                                      

 
BETWEEN:   HH Promenade, LLC. 
 

and 
 

_________________________________________.                                                                         

            
 

 
 

1. Tenant's electrical service is separately metered. 

 

   2. Tenant is responsible for initiating and terminating electrical service. 

 

   3. Tenant's security deposit will be applied to any unpaid electric utility bills, if applicable. 

DRAFT



EXHIBIT “G” 
 

The Promenade at Lake Worth 

 
 SIGN CRITERIA 

 
`a   Landlord agrees to furnish at tenant’s expense one sign located on a panel which is in conformity with the following criteria: 
 

 
 
 OFFICE SPACE 2nd and 3rd Floors 

 

 
 
 
     

 

 
 
TENANT’S SIGN TO READ:  _________________________________________.                                                                                                 

 
TENANT’S NAME:  _________________________________________.                                                                                                                      

 
DATE:                                                                                                                                                   
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

  
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

                                                                            

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT



 

 

DRAFT


	Top
	A.	05/31 U minutes
	DRAFT 053122 U minutes

	A.	The Bohemian Utility Easement and Bill of Sale
	1017 Lake Ave Staff Report
	Utility Easement
	Bill of Sale

	B.	PBC Interlocal Agreement for Congress/Lantana Rd
	Lantana Road Project Staff Report
	Interlocal Agreement

	C.	Change Order with Cleaveland Price Inc.
	Cleaveland Price Staff Report
	Price Quote
	Price Invoice

	A.	Water Conservation Ordinance - 2nd Reading
	Water Conservation Ordinance Staff Report
	Ordinance 11-2022

	A.	USIC Agreement
	USIC Staff Report
	Agreement

	B.	USP Technologies Agreement
	USP Staff Report
	Agreement

	C.	Integrated Resource Planning Process Presentation and Discussion
	Intergrated Resource Staff Report
	Intergrated Resource Presentation

	D.	Agreement with American Wire Group
	American Wire Group Staff Report
	Agreement
	Award-Memo-2022

	E.	First Amendment to Hooper Work Order No. 1
	Hooper Amendment 1 Staff Report
	First Amendment Hooper
	Hooper WO No. 1

	F.	Second Amendment to Hooper Work Order No. 1
	Hooper Amendment 2 Staff Report
	Second Amendment
	Work Order No. 1

	G.	Agreement with Stuart C. Irby Company for the purchase and delivery of underground cable
	Stuart C. Irby Staff Report
	Agreement
	Bid Tabulation

	H.	Annex Renovation/Temporary Lease to house Customer Service at 120 N. Federal Hwy. Lake Worth Beach
	Annex Relocation Staff Report
	Letter of Intent
	CPH Task Order No. 3
	Rental Calculation
	Draft Lease Agreement

	Bottom

